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FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

October 23, 2020
To the Honorable Chairman, Members of the Board of Directors, Customers and Interested
Parties:
We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
Western Virginia Water Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The
CAFR was prepared by the Authority in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and with emphasis on disclosure of the financial activities of
the Authority. Responsibility for both the completeness and reliability of the information,
including all disclosures, rest with the Authority, and is based upon a comprehensive
framework of internal control that has been established for this purpose. Because the
cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free
of any material misstatements. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed
financial data is accurate in all material respects and fairly presents the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority’s financial activities have
been included.
The basic financial statements have been audited by our independent auditors, Robinson,
Farmer, Cox Associates, who have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the financial
statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020. The audit was
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for
Audits of Authorities, Boards and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts
of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The annual audit is planned and performed to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the basic financial statements of the
Western Virginia Water Authority are free of any material misstatement.
The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read with it.

Profile
The Authority was formed by the Council of the City of Roanoke and the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Roanoke on July 1, 2004 as a regional water authority to
establish and operate a water and sewer disposal system and related facilities. The
Authority was chartered in 2004 pursuant to the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act,
Chapter 51 title 15.2 of the Code of Virginia 1950 as amended. The Authority is authorized
to acquire, finance, construct, manage and maintain a fully integrated water,
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wastewater, septage disposal and related facilities pursuant to the Act. Additional
information on the formation of the Authority is covered under Note 1 of the Notes to
Financial Statements. On November 5, 2009 Franklin County joined as a member of the
Authority when the involved parties reorganized under amended and restated Articles of
Incorporation. Botetourt County joined as a member in the Authority on July 1, 2015.
The Authority’s Board of Directors consists of eight members; three of which are
appointed by the City Council of Roanoke, three appointed by the Board of Supervisors of
the County of Roanoke, one member is appointed by the Board of Supervisors of the
County of Franklin and one member is selected by the Board of Supervisors of the County
of Botetourt. Board terms are four years. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors are
normally held monthly.
The Authority is administered by an Executive Director, who serve at the pleasure of the
Board. The Executive Director has the direct supervision of all employees of the Authority,
are responsible for the operation of the Authority, and the establishment of guidelines for
efficient and sound fiscal management.
The Authority provides citizens in the Roanoke area and portions of Franklin and Botetourt
Counties with a dependable supply of water. The Authority treats and delivers 18 million
gallons of drinking water per day for 63,462 customer accounts. Major water sources
include the Spring Hollow reservoir, Carvins Cove reservoir, Falling Creek / Beaver Dam
Creek reservoirs and Crystal Spring. Other sources include various groundwater wells and
water purchased from the Bedford County Public Service Authority for a portion of the
Authority’s customers in Franklin County. Current rated system treatment capacity is
approximately 58 million gallons per day (MGD).
The Spring Hollow reservoir was constructed in 1993 and consists of a 243 foot high by 990
foot long roller-compacted concrete dam with a working volume of 3.2 billion gallons.
Water is pumped from the Roanoke River for storage, and the safe yield of this reservoir is
19.4 MGD. The treatment facility was constructed in 1996 and has a capacity of 18 MGD.
The Carvins Cove reservoir was completed in the late 1940s and includes an 80 foot high
dam with a 6.47 billion gallon impoundment. Tinker Creek tunnel, constructed in 1966 and
the Catawba Creek tunnel, constructed in 1974 enable additional source water to be
impounded. The reservoir has a safe yield of between 14 and 18 MGD. The reservoir is also
used for limited recreation purposes. The treatment facility capacity is 28 MGD.
Falling Creek / Beaver Dam Creek reservoirs have a combined storage volume of 520
million gallons. The Falling Creek reservoir was constructed in 1900 and the Beaver Dam
Creek reservoir was completed in 1926. Both are clay core, rock filled dams and have a
combined safe yield of 1.45 MGD. Treatment facility capacity is comparable to the yield.
Construction was completed on the Falling Creek dam and spillway in 2011.
Crystal Spring has a safe yield of 3.5 MGD and uses membrane filtration with a capacity of
4.84 MGD. Crystal Spring is located on the north side of Mill Mountain in the City of
Roanoke.
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The Authority also maintains 1,237 miles of water mains, 57 pumping stations, and 5,723
fire hydrants and 62 well facilities in the service area.
The Authority began operations in Franklin County during fiscal year 2009. The Authority
purchased several private water systems in the Smith Mountain Lake area and began
operations in January 2009. In May 2009, the County of Franklin and the Authority entered
into a water system transfer agreement where the County conveyed the ownership of the
transmission and distribution system along State Route 122 from the Franklin – Bedford
County line to Westlake Town Center to the Authority. The plan also authorizes the
Authority to proceed to develop line extensions in the area which will interconnect some
of the private systems purchased by the Authority. The Scruggs Road water line extension
was completed in 2010.
This water line interconnects the customers in the Westlake Town Center with several of
the water systems in the Smith Mountain Lake area. The Authority authorized the
acquisition of the Petrus Water Systems and the Lake Watch Wastewater System in
November 2015. At that time, the Authority assumed operation of the Land’s End water
system, and that system was interconnected to the existing Contentment Island and
Lakeside system in June 2016.
Botetourt County officially joined the Authority on July 1, 2015. A new pump station on
Roanoke Boulevard was constructed and put it into service on December 12, 2015 enabling
water from Carvins Cove to serve the Greenfield area. After an interconnection was
installed, the Tinkerview Gardens community began receiving Carvins Cove water on
January 20th. The Botetourt service area expanded as the Authority authorized the
acquisition of the Eagle Rock Water Company in January 2016, a water system serving 84
accounts with two additional locations that are vacant. The Eagle Rock wastewater
facility was previously acquired by the Authority when Botetourt County joined the
Authority.
The Roanoke Regional Water Pollution Control Facility serves the City of Roanoke,
Roanoke County, the City of Salem, the Town of Vinton and portions of Botetourt County.
The Water Authority treats 38 million gallons of wastewater a day from throughout the
valley for its 56,741 sewer customers (more than 186,000 residents including bulk
contracts described below). The facility’s permitted capacity was increased to 55 MGD
with the completion of a three year construction project. The original plant was
constructed in 1951, and major upgrades were made in 1959, 1977, 1998, 2004, 2007 and
in 2016. The most recent upgrade, the Peak Flow Enhancement Project, allows the
Roanoke Regional Water Pollution Control Plant to treat and discharge more flow to the
Roanoke River during high river stage events. The project involved construction of a new
chlorine contact basin, new effluent screw pumps and modifications to the Biological
Aerated Filter (BAF).
The Authority’s collection system consists of 987 miles of sewer gravity mains, over
25,961 manholes, 27 lift stations.
The Authority has bulk wastewater treatment agreements with the City of Salem and the
Town of Vinton. These jurisdictions share in the Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant
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capacity and plant upkeep. The agreements include the cost of treatment and the capital
maintenance on the regional facility.
In December 2008, Franklin County and the Authority entered into an operating
agreement for the Westlake Village Central Sewer System covering the Westlake Overlay
area of Franklin County. Under the agreement, the Authority contracted to purchase and
to operate the wastewater system which is being financed by the County. Additional
collection system lines were constructed in 2010 to provide service to more customers.
At the formation of the Authority in 2004, a six - year rate equalization plan was
developed to achieve equal user rates for customers in the City of Roanoke and Roanoke
County by 2010. This has been completed with the Authority’s customers in the City of
Roanoke and Roanoke County now having the same user rates. Customers in Franklin
County are under a separate user rate schedule. Botetourt County customers follow the
same sewer rate schedule as the customers in the City of Roanoke and Roanoke County
and Botetourt water customers are under a separate user rate schedule.

Reorganization
With the August 2019 retirement of Gary Robertson, Executive Director of Water
Operations, the Authority’s primary operating divisions were reorganized. The Water
Pollution Control (WPC) Division and the majority of the Water Division were combined
into a new group, Water Quality Operations. The remaining portion of the Water Division
joined Field Operations along will Billing and Customer Service, into a Customer
Operations Group.
The Customer Operations Division (CO) handles customer service, billing, collections,
information technology, meter services and construction and maintenance of the
Authority's water distribution and wastewater collection system. This new division is
responsible for providing customers with a seamless service experience.
The Water Quality Operations Division (WQ) is responsible for producing the highest
quality drinking water for customers and for returning the highest quality treated
wastewater back to our environment. This new division will consist primarily of physical
assets of the old water operations and water pollution control divisions including
treatment plants, storage tanks, pump station and lift stations. The new division is also
responsible for non-revenue water reductions.
Administrative Services is responsible for executive management to provide vision for the
organization as well as other internal services of engineering, public relations, finance
and human resources.

Economic Condition and Outlook
The Western Virginia Water Authority is located in the Roanoke Valley in South Western
Virginia. The valley is located between the Blue Ridge Mountains on the east and the
Alleghany Mountains to the west, with Interstate 81 running north and south. The
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Authority’s service area is contained in the Roanoke Metropolitan Statistical Area (RMSA).
Area attractions include Smith Mountain Lake to the east and the Blue Ridge Parkway runs
through the service area. The Roanoke area is the region’s rail center and is the largest
metropolitan area in western Virginia. The RMSA has a 2020 estimated population of
324,882 which includes the Cities of Roanoke and Salem and the Counties of Roanoke,
Botetourt, Franklin and Craig. For 2020, the City of Roanoke’s estimated population was
99,348, Roanoke County’s population was estimated to be 93,805 Franklin County’s
population was estimated to be 55,782 and Botetourt County’s population was estimated
to be 33,494. The Authority serves approximately 87% of the RMSA.
The principal employers of the area are the industries of manufacturing, retail trade,
health care and government. Both the City and Counties of Roanoke and Franklin are
proactive in attracting and developing new businesses which will lead to economic
growth. Unemployment as of June 30, 2020 was estimated to be 7.9% for the City of
Roanoke, 7.0% for the County of Roanoke, 3.4% for the County of Franklin and 3.7% for the
County of Botetourt. During the period the Virginia average was 8.5% and the national
average was 11.1%.
The Executive Director would like to note a number of accomplishments and achievements
completed through the dedication and determination of the employees of the Western
Virginia Water Authority (Authority). Major improvements, enhancements and expansions
have been made to the water distribution and wastewater collection systems, as well as
the treatment plants, to the benefit of all customers.

Awards
The Virginia section of the American Water Works Association (AWWA) and the Virginia
Water Environment Association (VWEA), recognized Scott Shirley, Chief Operating OfficerWater Quality, with the Sonny Roden Meritorious Service Award for outstanding service to
the VWEA and the wastewater industry. The award, which is not given annually, has only
been awarded ten times in the last thirty-five years.
Chris Carey, Field Operations Superintendent, was also recognized at the VA-AWWA
meeting with the Sherry Williams Leadership Award for his work chairing the section’s
Distribution Committee. Chris was also elected to the Virginia section Board of Trustees.
The Virginia section also recognized the Authority with its Employer Support Award for
promoting continuing education and professional development of employees.
The Finance Team was once again awarded the Certificate of Excellence in Financial
Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association for the FY 19 audit.
The Authority’s Operations Challenge Team competed in the National Operations
Challenge completion in September, 2019 and came in 7th place overall with 44 teams
competing.
The Authority received the Neighborhood Arts Award at the 2019 City of Roanoke
Neighborhood Awards Celebration. This award was for the installation of the Love SE sign
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that is located next to the Greenway at the Regional Water Pollution Control Plant. The
Authority was also nominated in the Neighborhood Community Partnership category.
The annual campaign to raise funds to
support the community through the United
Way of Roanoke Valley raised over $27,000.
The United Way of Roanoke Valley
campaign focused on identifying and
assisting ALICE – members of the community
who are Asset Limited, Income Constrained
and Employed. In support of this initiative,
the Authority ran a popular social media
campaign during ALICE awareness week to
focuses on how the Authority supports the
United Way and our community. A photo
collage of all the profiles ran on the final
day of the campaign. The Authority was
awarded the Community Spirit Award for its efforts this year.
The Virginia Department of Health Office of Drinking Water (ODW) awarded the Spring
Hollow Water Treatment Facility with the 2019 Excellence in Waterworks
Operations/Performance Award.

Regional Initiatives
Staff worked closely with Carilion and Whitman Requardt & Associates (WRA), LLP on
relocating the Crystal Spring Pump Station. Once pumps are installed and operational in
the portion of the Crystal Spring Water Treatment Facility that was formerly office space,
the 1957 pumps and building can be decommissioned. This project was initiated as part
of the overall site plan for the Carilion hospital expansion.
The Roanoke Valley Broadband Authority extend fiber to Spring Hollow and the Western
Regional Jail.
Staff hosted the eighth Annual Regional Chainsaw and Cut-off Safety class taught by City
of Virginia Beach employees in November, 2019 at the Cabin at Carvins Cove. Regional
organizations sent employees to the training showcasing regional participation led by the
Water Authority. This training prepares the region for emergency clean-up after storms
and saves many limbs and lives.
Staff participated in the Regional Apprenticeship Showcase at Green Ridge Recreation
Center in January. The Registered High School Apprenticeship Program, started by the
Authority in 2017, is now supported by more than ten other businesses in the valley.
Thirty of the 160 students who attended the event signed-up to receive more information
about the Authority’s apprenticeship program, and eight students were later interviewed.
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The CIP crews from Field Operations realigned a sewer line with compromised structural
integrity along a stream bank for the Town of Boones Mill. The crew successfully
abandoned the existing sewer line and installed 500 LF of new 8-inch sewer main, two
new manholes and performed stream bank restoration. The Town received funding to
replace this main from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) as it was
damaged during the flooding associated with Hurricane Michael.

Water Quality Division
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020, the WPC Plant treated 13.77 billion gallons of
wastewater, one of the highest years on record. 5,763 dry tons of Biosolids was land
applied, and 3,609 septage loads were received.
Average daily water production was 18.36 million gallons.
Construction of the Muse Spring Treatment Facility was completed in April 2020. The
plant has an average a production rate of 1.5 MGD.
The Carvins Cove Filter Upgrade Project was completed that included the rehabilitation of
six filters and underdrains that were originally installed in 1954. The new filters have a
designed filtration rate of 4 gpm/ft2 which equates to 24 million gallons per day (MGD),
and increase of the previous daily demand of 15 MGD.
An operating agreement was finalized for Stripers Landing and Bluewater Bay water
systems in Franklin County. The Authority began operating the two systems in October,
2019.
Staff worked with representatives of the Uttermost Company, located in Franklin County,
on the Grassy Hill Road water main extension. The $1.8M project was funded in equal
parts by Franklin County, the Authority and Uttermost. This extension will increase fire
protection at the Uttermost facility and bring water to several neighborhoods in the area
that have been requesting service.
Work continued on the Electrical Improvements at the Water Pollution Control (WPC)
Plant with an underground conduit system installed around the WPC Plant to replace most
of the current pole-mounted distribution system owned by AEP. Bids were received for the
138kv transformers that were placed on a utility lot at the facility.
A cooperative
purchasing agreement with the City of Salem was also finalized.
Staff provided a status update on the Electrical Improvements capital project at the
annual meeting with Partner Jurisdictions, the Town of Vinton and the City of Salem.
Additionally, bulk sewer rates for FY 21 were reviewed with the Partner Jurisdictions.
After two years of declines, rates increased approximately 17%.
Staff submitted an application to the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
(DEQ)’s Wastewater Revolving Loan Program for digester improvements at the WPC Plant.
This $12.7M project includes rehabilitation of select digesters and purification of the
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methane produced to pipeline quality that can then be sold to Roanoke Gas. A drone
inspection of digesters #3 & #5 was able to capture high resolution video allowing the
contractor to assess the interior condition without entering the digesters. The digesters
were found to be in relatively good condition given their age and amount of use. As
expected, most damage appears to be in the roof structure.
WPC Plant staff replaced the last two ferric storage tanks at the WPC Plant.
The Staroverlake community entered into an agreement with the Authority to assume
operation and ownership of their private water system in Franklin County.
A new septage receiving station at the WPC Plant was completed. Crews from Field
Operations assisted with the first phase of the project by installing a holding tank and wet
well. WPC Plant staff then installed the screening equipment and pumps. The project
allows septage to be sent directly to the biosolids digesters instead of the liquid
treatment process.
A new picnic shelter and mini amphitheater at
Carvins Cove was completed. This cooperative
project between Water Quality and Customer
Operations will provide improved facilities and
capacity for visitors and school groups.

The newly created WPC Plant SCADA section created a unified system that will include
best in class security. Staff worked with Verizon to create a Private LTE cellular network
covering the Water Authority’s operational area. Implementation of the network resulted
in a more secure communication portal between remote sites. As part of this effort, the
SCADA section has also completed an assessment of facilities and equipment and has
developed a standard equipment and communication protocol which will be applied to
new installations and as equipment in the SCADA network is replaced.
Emergency Action Plans (EAPs) for all of the dams were updated and distributed to local
Emergency Response Coordinators. A concrete deterioration survey, the two year P.E.
inspection, and the PMP analysis / dam breach inundation study were completed for the
Carvins Cove Dam. AECOM completed the dam break analysis and inundation zone study
for the Clifford D. Craig Memorial Dam at Spring Hollow. Water Quality staff worked with
GEI Consultants on specifications for a bid package to drill out the drain holes in the base
of the Craig Dam as well as a Dam Safety Surveillance and Monitoring Plan (DSSMP).
The Americas Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) requires community water systems that
serve more than 3,300 people to complete a risk and resilience (R&R) assessment and
develop an emergency response plan. Items to be considered include preparations for
natural disasters, accidents, etc.
Using software developed specifically for R&R
assessments, staff completed the task in-house, and submitted assessments for both the
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Roanoke system, which includes portions of Botetourt County, and the Westlake system in
Franklin County to the U.S. EPA on March 20.
Water Quality personnel, with the assistance of a crew from the Bedford Regional Water
Authority (BRWA), installed the piping and equipment to begin providing fluoridated water
to customers of the SML Water Treatment Plant in July 2020.
Hazen and Sawyer was selected as the consulting engineer for the Spring Hollow
Treatment Facility - Long Term Facility Plan.
The region experienced a second flooding event in as many months May 18th to 21st. The
USGS Walnut Street gage recorded a crest on the Roanoke River of 15.89 feet on May 21st,
a crest that ranked 8th highest for this gage, which has a data set going back more than
100 years. This wide spread rain event exceeded nine inches and covered the Authority’s
entire service area lasting four days. The storm frequency was estimated as a 50-year
event. The rains also caused the Carvins Cove Reservoir to exceed full pond with flow
being diverted through the dam spillway. When flow in the spillway exceeds two-feet in
depth, notification requirements are triggered which were made. The Cove’s emergency
action plan had just been reviewed and updated in December, 2019 so staff was prepared.
This is the first time since the flood of 1985 that anyone could recall notifications being
needed. Eventually spillway depth crested at 2.9 feet before receding. On June 17th,
Carvins Cove reservoir once again reached Stage II flood conditions. The reservoir crested
that afternoon at 2.5 feet above the spillway. By the next morning, it was down to 1.7
feet above the spillway. The Emergency Action Plan once again worked as it was
designed.
May flows at the Regional Water Pollution Control (WPC) Plant were also up substantially,
averaging 63.96 mgd, with a peak of 136.58 mgd. For six consecutive days the plant
received flows exceeding 100 mgd, and ten consecutive days with the flow exceeding 80
mgd. During the Authority’s almost sixteen year history, only three months have had
rainfall exceeding 10-inches. Monthly rainfall in Roanoke is typically moderate with most
months averaging 3 to 3.5 inches. However, the Authority’s capital improvements at the
WPC Plant and the sewer collection system have resulted in fewer overflows, as shown in
the chart below, and significant increases in flow captured and treated to permit
conditions.
Month

Rainfall (in)

Overflows

Sep-04
Jul-13
May-20

11.72
12.73
11.44

90
114
50

Avg Flow (mgd) Peak Day Flow (mgd)
39.72
64.04
63.96
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49.57
125.9
136.6

Customer Operations
Field Operations completed the directional drilling portion of the Azalea Road project in
Botetourt County, a project that took longer than expected due to the large amount of
rock in the area. Staff pulled pipe to replace a problematic 8-inch sewer main.
CIP crews completed a directional drill as part of the Youngwood Drive Sewer
Replacement Project by drilling and installing 510 LF of DR17 PVC main. The crew then
mobilized to the Valley View Mall area to ream the interior of a 10-inch sanitary sewer
line that had lost capacity due to a buildup of tuberculation inside of the pipe,
constricting the flow through over 300 LF of sewer line.
Customer Operations implemented a Blue Hard Hat
Program in October. The purpose of the program is
to maximize staff development in a condensed period
of time with a focus on safety. The program relies on
veteran employees guiding and mentoring those
wearing blue hard hats in developing the skills and
experience needed to successfully and safely grow in
their positions. The blue hard hats create awareness
amongst staff when there are employees with less
than three months experience with the Authority on a
jobsite and allows them to pay special attention to safety practices for these employees.
Every employee in the program must complete a detailed checklist of tasks in order to
demonstrate proper understanding and competence during the first three months of
service. After successful completion of all required training tasks and signoff from their
supervisors, the employees will graduate to a conventional white hardhat.
December marked the two-year anniversary for the Authority Cares program. This
program has been utilized to help customers financially impacted during the COVID-19
pandemic.
Staff performed a cost comparison analysis between using trenchless technology for sewer
pipe repairs versus the conventional “open cut” method. The results showed significant
savings in time and cost when using trenchless technology for pipe repairs making it the
preferred method to use whenever feasible. The pipe patch repair can be completed by
three Technicians in approximately three hours compared to a typical ten-hour
conventional pipe repair requiring four Technicians. In addition, approximately three
pipe patch repairs can be performed for less than the time and cost to perform one
conventional “open cut” pipe repair.
In January, 2020, Customer Service staff had the best call statistics for the last 12 months
with an answer rate of 96.5% and an average wait time of 29 seconds. The last time calls
were answered at this rate was in December, 2017.
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By the end of the fiscal year, the number of customers registered on the CustomerWeb
online portal increased to 32,796 registrations, and the number of customers registered
for paperless billing increased to 13,769.
The Sanitary Sewer Preventative Maintenance (SSPM) group utilized acoustic survey
technology to assess the free space in a sewer pipe by sending sound waves through the
pipe which mimics water flowing through the pipe. The data gathered from the survey
and resulting score indicates the likelihood of a blockage in each segment. This provides
a quick and efficient assessment of sewer mains so cleaning resources can be directed
appropriately. It also helps to locate blockages in portions of the wastewater collection
system without prior history. Additionally, it allows an opportunity for the SSPM crews to
conduct manhole inspections as they setup the acoustic equipment at each manhole.
With the creation of Customer Operations, the opportunity for cross-training arose as part
of the inclusion of the Water Distribution section with Field Operations during the
reorganization last fall. Throughout January, a team of Water Distribution operators
cross-trained Utility Construction supervisors to turn off/on water valves when water
breaks and repairs take place. With the Utility Construction supervisors already on-site
during water main breaks, educating and empowering them to operate the water valves
allows for improved efficiencies.
Construction of the new water tank at the Summit View Business Park
in Franklin County kicked off in January and was substantially
completed in October, 2020. The tank was designed, and the project
managed, by Field Operations. As part of the tank project, Field
Operations CIP crews installed approximately 800 LF of new 12-inch
waterline to connect the on-site piping to the existing waterline along
U.S. Route 220 that will feed the new tank. Franklin County and Visit
Virginia’s Blue Ridge logos were painted on the tank.
An analysis was performed on the cost of emergency repairs performed by Field
Operations. Over the past 12 months the highest number of emergency incidents were for
sewer blockages at 459, but the total cost to resolve these blockages was only
$148,027.50 compared to $326,093.60 for emergency repairs on 70 sewer mains over the
same period. The average cost to repair a sewer main was $4,658.48. The average cost for
an emergency repair on a water main varied from $2,218.49 for a 2–inch main to
$4,838.34 for a 12-inch main. Over the past 12 months, 2-inch water mains had the
highest number of breaks with 70 while 4-inch and 12-inch water mains tied for the lowest
number of breaks at 24. The average cost for a 12-inch water main emergency repair
consists of $1,168.34 for materials, $1,550.00 for paving/restoration, $960 for labor and
$480 in overtime pay, $480 for equipment cost and, on average over the 12 month period,
$200.00 for traffic control.
Due to the pandemic, disconnections for non-payment was put on hold on March 13th.
With the time that staff would normally be working on non-payment water cut-offs, staff
focused their efforts on performing visual inspections of water meters to assess their
condition and verify service line material.
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In March, Field Operations crews assisted the Water Quality Division in removing a 36-inch
water valve near the Boxley Pump Station in order to replace a failed seal. The crew was
given a 24-hour window during which the water could be turned off without significantly
impacting water pressure in the service area. Crews began the project at 3 AM and
continued non-stop until work was completed at 7 PM the same day with time to spare!
The Water Distribution Group at Field Operations implemented a new system to better
track the pressure reducing valves (PRVs) in the water distribution system. The
Link2Valves software package is utilized to track parts and maintenance records for all of
the PRVs in the system. A mobile app allows staff to use cell phones to instantly upload
location data, model/serial numbers and pictures. Monthly reports from this program
make it much easier to keep track of which valves are due for maintenance.
Implementation of the program will consist of three phases with the ultimate goal of
interfacing the data into the Authority’s asset management system.

Administrative Services
The Authority was awarded a $5,000 grant from VRSA, the Virginia Risk Sharing Association
(formerly VML Insurance) towards the purchase a safety notification and education
system. The digital signage system will broadcast safety education materials, messages,
training notices, etc. to staff from monitors placed in break rooms across divisions.
Staff represented the Authority at the Virginia Career Works – Blue Ridge to career
explore with 5,000 7th graders from the greater Roanoke Valley in September 2019. Staff
occupied two booths with multiple hands-on activities for students to explore careers at
the Authority involving GIS, lab work, meter installation, water treatment, wastewater
treatment and field activities. The Career Quest was a success for the area and expected
to continue annually with the hope of interested students being employees in the future.
Also in September, staff hosted and presented at the 3rd annual Operations and
Maintenance Distribution Systems (OMDS) “Short School”.
This week-long course,
presented by Virginia Department of Health and Virginia Tech, was devoted to all aspects
of the operation and maintenance (O&M) of water distribution systems. Authority staff
presented on a variety of professional subjects (water main breaks, safety, meters) for
other localities attending the event at multiple Authority properties.
FY20 Capital Improvement projects included a focused effort by staff on enhanced
coordination with Roanoke City Transportation and paving schedules. Design and
construction continued to progress in city-identified neighborhood blitz areas, and staff
initiated planning for projects for the next fiscal year.
Engineering Services staff worked with Authority Counsel to develop an agreement and
related documents to address the disposition of existing water system infrastructure
serving the Roanoke Industrial Center on 9th Street in Southeast Roanoke. This includes
delineation of infrastructure ownership and new water line easements needed to
complete a water distribution loop to serve the Industrial Center. The work is in support
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of the Industrial Development & Investment Company’s redevelopment efforts for the
facility and will greatly improve reliability and fire protection for the site.
Staff helped organize and attend a new annual Utility Worker Honor Walk on October 26th
with other local underground utilities to promote awareness of employees lost during the
past year. Staff provided heavy equipment, vehicles and demonstration of safe work
practices at the Water Authority.
Also on October 26, staff participated in the National Drug Take-Back Day. Residents
turned in 2,542.8 pounds of unwanted or expired medications at 14 collection sites around
the valley. Since 2010 when this program started, 37,645 pounds of medication have been
collected for safe disposal at these semi-annual events. The April event was cancelled
due to the pandemic.
In an effort to improve water service, fire protection, and water quality for this portion of
the service area, the Hollymeade-Glebe Road Extension in Botetourt County consisting of
approximately 6,000 LF of 12-inch water main was installed to interconnect the existing
main at The Glebe to a main from the Greenfield Water Tank. The new line also positions
the Auithority for additional service improvements in other nearby neighborhoods and
main extensions to support future economic development needs.
Staff installed pipe to interconnect the Lakewood Forest & Weatherwood systems in the
SML area of Franklin County to the main along Scruggs Road. An additional 2,600 LF of 4inch main is being installed within the subdivision.
During the month of March, 2020, the Authority moved from preparation to
implementation of its pandemic plan including dispersing staff through staggered shifts
and telework options, reducing in-person customer interactions by closing the payment
lobby and suspending fees at Carvins Cove, enhanced cleaning of workspaces, deploying
updated leave policies for employees, and issuance of personal protective equipment.
Five Customer Service representatives answered calls from home through the At-Home
Agent software tool that was implemented in 2016.
Due to the lobby closing, the percentage of payments processed manually dropped to the
lowest percentage in the Authority’s history. An analysis of the number of customers
visiting the office to make a payment showed that, on average, 2,706 customers visited
the office each month between July 2019 and February 2020, prior to the COVID-19
impact. During March, 1,762 customers visited the office, paying either in-person or
depositing their payments in the cash drop box inside the building. With the payment
lobby closed in April and May, 577 customers in April and 553 in May visited the office and
used the cash drop box inside the building to deposit their payments.
Disconnection of service for non-payment was put on hold on March 13th. Fifty-one
employees were set up with Cisco WebEx conferencing software allowing work teams
throughout the Authority to continue meeting while working remotely. Although Carvins
Cove Natural Reserve remained open, fee collection at Carvins Cove was temporarily
suspended to minimize the public’s interaction with staff until an online payment option
could be established. Boat rentals were also suspended for the season.
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The Authority’s Public Outreach team has run a number of social media campaigns to
recognize staff and the role they play in managing the valley’s water resources and to
remind customers not to flush disposable wipes. HR staff developed procedures in April to
have a virtual benefit open enrollment process in May.
Because classroom visits and
field trips were suspended due to the COVID19 social distancing requirements, the Public
Relations staff developed videos of our in-class presentations and facility tours so that the
outreach to our community can continue. These videos are publically available on the
Western Virginia Water Authority YouTube channel.
On-line benefit open enrollment was completed during the month with 100% participation
of full-time and part time staff. Employees completed benefit updates within eight days
which is less time than previous years. Health Insurance was provided as a self-funded
option this year.
Wastewater samples from the WPC Plant and the Town of Fincastle were submitted as
part of a national study to detect virus particles in wastewater.
Staff advertised a Request for Proposals (RFP) for professional engineering services to
assist with development of Comprehensive Water and Sewer Infrastructure Master Plans.
The water and sewer infrastructure master planning project will advance implementation
of several strategies and objectives included in the Authority’s 2020 Strategic Plan Update
related to Sustainable Practices and Resource Management. The planning includes all of
the Authority’s service area with an initial detailed focus on system assets, service
opportunities and expansion in Botetourt County and Franklin County.
Staff continues to make progress implementing several other strategic initiatives outlined
in the recently completed Asset Management and GIS Needs Assessment. Working with IT
staff, completion of the initial upgrade of GIS software is complete. Further upgrades and
enhancements to the GIS will continue as we also begin focus on the Asset Management
components of the initiative. Staff is taking a fresh look at our asset management
program and software upgrades with an emphasis on leveraging asset and condition
assessment data, enhanced risk-based decision making, criticality analyses, planning
tools, geospatial visualization, and improved modeling capabilities.
Human Resources reported that there were no terminations, retirements or voluntary
resignations during April. This is believed to be a first.
A total of 37,732 Miss Utility location tickets were processed by Field Operations staff
during the Fiscal Year. In April, 4,001 tickets were marked which is the highest for Fiscal
Year 2020.
Four apprentices were hired to full time status, bringing the total to five since the
program started three years ago. Two of the apprentices are high school graduates this
year. Full time positions filled have been with Water Treatment, Wastewater Treatment,
Field Operations and Meter Operations. The program is exceeding expectations.
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Relevant Financial Policies
Accounting System & Budget Control
The Authority’s accounting records are maintained on an accrual basis under which
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.
Accounting functions are separated to the extent possible for a small sized staff. The
County of Roanoke, under the Operating Agreement between the City of Roanoke and
County of Roanoke provides fleet and fuel management services to the Authority.
Under the Water and Waste Authorities Act, the Authority is not required to adopt a legal
budget, but its bylaws and bond covenants states the Authority’s Board of Directors must
adopt an annual budget before the first day of each fiscal year. The budget is prepared
by the finance and administration divisions and serves as a framework for the Authority’s
financial planning for the year. The Executive Directors have authorization from the
Board to move funds within the line item budget without additional Board approval. A
report of revenues and expenses is presented to the Board each month at the public
meeting.
The annual budget process includes use of rate modeling to prepare a five year plan which
is used to assure that short and long term financial objectives are being met. A five year
Operational and Maintenance forecast and a five year Capital Improvement Plan are
prepared annually in the budget process.
The Authority’s finances are organized into two funds, Water and Water Pollution Control.
The Water fund fully supports debt incurred for water facilities and the water capital
improvement plan, as well as fully funding the water operations division and 50% of the
operation of field operation, engineering services, finance and administration, and utility
internal services.
The WPC Fund supports debt incurred for wastewater facilities, the wastewater and water
pollution control plant capital improvement plans, the operations of the water pollution
control division, and 50% of the operations of field operations, engineering services,
finance and administration, and utility internal services.
The Authority has in place a fiscal policy as a component of its financial strategic plan
that will preserve and improve the sound financial condition of the Authority. The policy
outlines the targeted levels and timeframe to fund several reserve funds including
contingency reserve and emergency operating reserve funds. These funds will accumulate
to reach an appropriate level over a 10 to 15 year period.

Risk Management
The Authority relies on several techniques to minimize risk: safety training for employees,
proper maintenance of equipment and facilities, continued observation for potential
hazards, and prompt response upon discovery of a problem. Not only do these actions
reduce potential risks to the Water Authority, they are also sound business practices that
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improve customer service and overall organizational performance. Worker’s
compensation, property, vehicle, equipment and liability insurance services are carried by
Virginia Municipal League. Note 10 of the Notes to Financial Statements provides
additional information on risk management.

Cash Management
Cash and investments are maintained by the Authority. An investment policy acts to
guide the investment of Authority funds in accordance with the terms of the Virginia
Water and Waste Authorities Act. The policy’s primary objectives are safety of principal,
liquidity of funds and yield on investment. Note 2 of the Notes to Financial Statements
will provide the reader with additional information.

Debt Administration
Total long-term debt obligations outstanding for the Authority as of June 30, 2020 were
$143,630,601. Of this amount, $74,640,697 is for the Water fund and $68,989,904 for the
WPC fund. A debt policy is in place which sets forth comprehensive guidelines for the
financing of capital expenditures. Objectives of the policy are to assure the credit rating
of the Authority stays strong and that the Authority conforms to the applicable state and
federal laws and existing indenture covenants. Annual review of specific debt ratios is
required. Note 4 of the Notes to Financial Statements will provide additional information
to the reader.

Asset Management
The Authority is committed to a best practices approach to managing its infrastructure
capital assets that provides a means to protect, maintain, or improve the asset value of
our water distribution system and wastewater collection systems with planned
maintenance and repair based on predicted deterioration of the systems. Major parts of
the asset management program are the five - year capital plan, the geographical
information system (GIS), the financial rate model, the work order system and the SCADA
system.
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awarded for a fifteenth straight year the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the Western Virginia Water Authority for its comprehensive annual
financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, the Authority had to publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR that satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors
Western Virginia Water Authority
Roanoke, Virginia
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Western Virginia
Water Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and
Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business-type activities of the Western Virginia Water Authority, as of June 30, 2020, and the
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and schedules related to pension and OPEB funding on pages 24-31 and 80-90 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Western Virginia Water Authority’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
supporting schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.
The supporting schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supporting schedules are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23, 2020,
on our consideration of the Western Virginia Water Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Western Virginia Water Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Western Virginia Water Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Blacksburg, Virginia
October 23, 2020

-23-

Western Virginia Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
As management of the Western Virginia Water Authority, (the “Authority”), we offer readers of our financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider information presented here in conjunction with our
letter of transmittal, which can be found on page 2 through 18.
Financial Highlights







The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $341,305,885 for the Water fund and $253,777,268 for the
WPC fund. Of this amount $26,565,703 for the Water fund and $13,519,382 for the WPC fund are
unrestricted net position and may be used to meet the Authority’s ongoing obligations to customers and
creditors.
Operating revenues for the Water fund increased $882,781 over 2019 levels due primarily to an increase
in customer charges. Operating revenues for the WPC fund decreased $85,706 over 2019 due primarily to
decrease in bulk sales and other revenue and partially offset with increase in customer charges and fire
services.
Operating expenses for the Water fund increased $898,432 from 2019 due to increases in field operations,
internal services and depreciation. Expenses increased $2,326,643 for the WPC fund from 2019 due to
increases in field operations.
Total long-term debt for the Authority decreased $8,518,683 in 2020 due to retirements of long term debt
on both the Water and WPC Funds. Water fund debt decreased $6,959,144, which was attributed to
retirements, while the WPC fund debt decreased for the year by $1,559,539 for both issuances and
retirements.

Overview of the Financial Statements:
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial
statements. Since the Authority is engaged only in business – type activities, its basic financial statements are
comprised of two components: 1) enterprise fund financial statements and 2) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.
Enterprise fund financial statements. The enterprise fund financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on the Authority’s 1) assets and deferred outflows of
resources and 2) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the two reported
as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how the
Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g. earned but unused vacation leave).
The basic enterprise fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 through 34 of this report.
Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to financial statements can be
found on pages 35 through 79.
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Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Authority’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and OPEB benefits to its employees.
Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an Authority’s financial position. In
the case of the Authority, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources by $595,083,153 and $572,894,088, at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. In the Water fund,
assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$341,305,885 and $328,211,245, at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. For the WPC fund, assets and
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $253,777,268 and
$244,682,843, at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
By far the largest portion of the Water and WPC fund’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets,
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. For the Water fund, 92.2% is
invested in capital assets net of related debt. For the WPC fund, the percentage is 94.7%. The Authority uses
these capital assets to provide services to its customers; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Authority’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Table A presents the Condensed Statement of Net Position for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 by
fund. At June 30, 2020, and 2019, unrestricted net position was $26,565,703 and $26,236,924, respectively,
for the Water Fund. Of total net position for the Water fund, unrestricted net position represented 7.8% and
8.0% at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, unrestricted net position was
$13,519,382 and $16,628,357, respectively, for the WPC Fund. Of total net position for the WPC fund,
unrestricted net position represented 5.3% and 6.8% for fiscal year 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Table A
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Water Fund
2020
Assets:
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net

Water Pollution Control Fund
2020
2019

2019

Total
2020

2019

$

35,558,749 $
384,806,361

38,712,185 $
377,093,318

25,523,256 $
301,068,358

24,060,777 $ 61,082,005 $ 62,772,962
295,001,320
685,874,719 672,094,638

$

420,365,110 $

415,805,503 $

326,591,614 $

319,062,097 $ 746,956,724 $ 734,867,600

Deferred outflows of resources: $

1,534,864 $

1,323,294 $

1,270,729 $

$

69,520,163 $
10,485,505

76,479,307 $
11,595,531

63,486,981 $
9,894,005

65,046,520 $ 133,007,144 $ 141,525,827
9,267,249
20,379,510
20,862,780

$

80,005,668 $

88,074,838 $

73,380,986 $

74,313,769 $ 153,386,654 $ 162,388,607

$

588,421 $

842,714 $

704,089 $

$

314,740,182 $
26,565,703

301,974,321 $
26,236,924

240,257,886 $
13,519,382

228,054,486 $ 554,998,068 $ 530,028,807
16,628,357
40,085,085
42,865,281

$

341,305,885 $

328,211,245 $

253,777,268 $

244,682,843 $ 595,083,153 $ 572,894,088

Total assets

Liabilities:
Long-term debt outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Net Position:
Net investment in capital
assets
Unrestricted
Total net position
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961,397 $

1,026,882 $

2,805,593 $

1,292,510 $

2,284,691

1,869,596

Financial Analysis (Continued)
The total long-term debt outstanding to net capital assets are 18.1% for the Water fund and 21.1% for the
WPC fund at June 30, 2020. The percentage decreased slightly from 2019 for both the Water and WPC funds.
This ratio shows the existing debt leverage of capital assets and indicates that the Authority is not heavily
leveraged relative to the size of its net capital assets.
The total long-term outstanding liabilities to net capital assets were 20.3% for the Water fund and 22.0% for
the WPC fund at June 30, 2019.
The current ratio for the Water fund for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was 2.50 and 2.37
respectively. The current ratio for the WPC fund for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was 1.53 and
1.91, respectively. The combined funds have a current ratio for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was
2.04 and 2.17, respectively. The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities. This ratio is a
liquidity ratio and shows the ability of the company to pay its current liabilities with its current assets.
Table B presents the Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 by each fund.
Table B
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Water Fund
2020
Operating Revenues:
Customer charges
Connection fees
Bulk sales
Fire services
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses:
Operating expenses
Field operations
Internal Services
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest earned
Rental income
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Nonoperating contributions
Rental expense
Interest expense
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions

2020

2019

Total
2020

2019

30,055,104 $
168,350
158,745
1,454,906
1,187,036
33,024,141 $

29,806,176 $
156,750
1,750,580
483,658
881,472
33,078,636 $

29,275,296 $
86,400
2,299,175
1,503,471
33,164,342 $

60,593,905 $
418,423
1,957,815
1,983,604
2,031,811
66,985,558 $

59,330,400
254,750
2,457,920
1,454,906
2,690,507
66,188,483

$

9,175,903 $
4,222,290
3,805,630
8,306,697
25,510,520 $

9,135,318 $
3,980,138
3,552,951
7,943,681
24,612,088 $

10,933,064 $
5,047,836
3,805,630
7,969,119
27,755,649 $

10,666,794 $
3,351,904
3,552,951
7,857,357
25,429,006 $

20,108,967 $
9,270,126
7,611,260
16,275,816
53,266,169 $

19,802,112
7,332,042
7,105,902
15,801,038
50,041,094

$

8,396,402 $

8,412,053 $

5,322,987 $

7,735,336 $

13,719,389 $

16,147,389

$

341,835 $
730,152
20,842
543,954
(103,217)
(2,084,038)

465,200 $
757,539
28,127
724,174
(120,599)
(2,329,826)

486,946 $
69,295
18,204
(103,217)
(1,518,540)

501,009 $
96,213
11,970
(120,599)
(1,580,171)

828,781 $
799,447
39,046
543,954
(206,434)
(3,602,578)

966,209
853,752
40,097
724,174
(241,198)
(3,909,997)

$

(550,472) $

(475,385) $

(1,047,312) $

(1,091,578) $

(1,597,784) $

(1,566,963)

$

7,845,930 $

7,936,668 $

4,275,675 $

6,643,758 $

12,121,605 $

14,580,426

4,818,750

2,589,799

10,067,460

$

13,094,640 $

9,094,425 $

9,233,557 $

22,189,065 $

$
$

5,248,710

Total net position, beginning of year
Total net position, end of year

Water Pollution Control Fund

30,787,729 $
261,673
207,235
1,499,946
1,150,339
33,906,922 $

$

Capital contributions
Changes in net position

2019

$

3,205,149
11,141,817 $

5,794,948
20,375,374

328,211,245

317,069,428

244,682,843

235,449,286

572,894,088

552,518,714

341,305,885 $

328,211,245 $

253,777,268 $

244,682,843 $

595,083,153 $

572,894,088
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Review of Operations
Operating revenues for the Water fund increased $882,781 from the year ended June 30, 2019 to the year
ended June 30, 2020. Customer charges increased 2% due to a rate increase in January 2020. Bulk sales
increased $48,490 from 2019 revenues due to increased quantities sold. Income from connection fees
increased by $93,323. Fire service revenues increased $45,040 over last year while other revenues decreased
from last year by $36,697.
Operating revenues for the WPC fund decreased $85,706 from the year ended June 30, 2019 to year ended
June 30, 2020. Customer charges increased $530,880 or 2% over 2019. Revenue from other charges decreased
$621,999 from the year ended June 30, 2019 to the year ended June 30, 2020.
The operating margins for the Water and WPC funds were 49% and 40%, 50% and 47%, respectively, for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. The operating margin indicates the financial margin by comparing
operating expenses (less depreciation) with operating revenues. A healthy operating margin indicates that the
organization has adequate funds to cover interest and capital requirements. Median operating margins
typically range from 30% to 40% for water and sewer utilities.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets. The Authority’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) totaled
$685,874,719 and $672,094,638, at June 30, 2020 and 2019. Tables C and D present the Net Capital Assets by
fund for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
The Water funds’ net capital assets increased $7,713,043 or 2.0% from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. Capital
assets increased $15,891,413 during the year while depreciation expense totaled $8,306,697. Capital projects
closed for the year were primarily waterline replacement projects. Construction in progress balances
decreased $22,222 from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020.
Net capital assets for the WPC fund increased $6,067,038 from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. Capital assets
increased $13,948,548 as new projects were started at the Regional Water Pollution Control Plant.
Depreciation expense totaled $7,969,119. Capital projects closed and assets placed in service for the WPC
fund included various sewer line projects.
Additional information regarding the Authority's capital assets is located in Note 3 of the Notes to Financial
Statements.
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Table C
Capital Assets - Water Fund
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Fiscal Year
2020
Water supply

$

Treatment

2019

73,820,335 $

73,820,335

68,088,959

63,765,809

209,611,298

201,198,550

Pumping and storage

19,754,148

19,239,582

Services

88,342,674

86,321,980

Transmission and distribution lines

General equipment and transportation
Less accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable assets
Construction in progress

15,003,623
(120,634,413)

$

346,413,531 $

338,715,466

$

19,034,530 $

19,056,752

19,358,300

19,321,100

384,806,361 $

377,093,318

Land
Net capital assets

15,608,900
(128,812,783)

$

Table D
Capital Assets - Water Pollution Control Fund
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Fiscal Year
2020
Collection facilities

$

General Plant

262,560,625 $

2019
256,070,647

62,472

62,472

137,450,571

137,413,838

5,470,779

5,470,779

Services

29,180,810

28,846,005

General equipment and transportation

15,215,268

14,915,681

Treatment
Pumping and metering

Other Plant

319,693

319,693

Power generation equipment

385,272

385,272

(175,986,531)

(168,105,021)

Less accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable assets

$

Construction in progress
Land
Net capital assets

$

-28-

274,658,959 $

275,379,366

23,581,978

16,794,533

2,827,421

2,827,421

301,068,358 $

295,001,320

Capital Asset and Debt Administration: (Continued)
Major capital asset events during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 included the following:







Upgrades to the Carvins Cove Filter continued in fiscal year 2020 totaling $4,245,198.
Waterline replacement and paving projects on Route 220 to Rocky Mount totaling $7,189,358 and
Hershberger/Williamson Road totaling $4,910,583.
An interconnection project between the Lakewood Forest and Weatherwood water systems at Smith
Mountain Lake totaling $1,471,832.
Purchases of capital equipment and vehicles totaled $578,751 for the Water fund and $247,287 for the
WPC fund.
A sewer line improvement project on Salem Turnpike totaling $1,787,867.
A system-wide manhole rehabilitation project continued in fiscal year 2020 totaling $357,741.

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 included the following:







Waterline replacement projects on Melrose Avenue/Peters Creek Road, Hollins Road, Hamilton
Terrace, Westside Boulevard, Raleigh Court Area, Amber Way Circle, Edgewood Street/Windsor Avenue
and Syracuse Avenue totaling $8,540,974.18.
Water Storage Tank improvements totaling $625,531.82.
Continuation of an interconnection project to Royal Estates at Smith Mountain Lake totaling
$594,252.40.
Rutrough Road Improvements for Phase 2 totaled $1,351,336.98 for the Water Fund and $1,465,959.02
for the WPC fund.
Purchases of capital equipment and vehicles totaled $865,616.56 for the Water fund and $1,275,539.12
for the WPC fund.
Sewer line replacement and improvement projects on Harvest Lane, Patterson Avenue, Epperley
Avenue and Greenbrier Avenue totaled $3,223,755.52

Debt Administration. Table E presents the long-term debt outstanding of the Authority at June 30, 2020 and
2019. Note 4 of the Notes to Financial Statements provides additional information about the activity during
the fiscal year and balances at June 30, 2020.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Water Fund issued debt totaling $845,516 and retired debt of
$6,944,041. The WPC fund issued debt totaling $5,095,840 (including premiums) and retired debt of
$6,445,236.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Water Fund issued debt totaling $6,065,517 (including
premiums) and retired debt of $5,712,933. There was no new debt issued during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2019 on the WPC Fund and $6,966,030 of debt was retired.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration: (Continued)
Table E
Long-Term Debt Outstanding
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Fiscal Year
2020

2019

Water Fund
Revenue bonds

$

Locality compensation payments
Premiums on issuances
Long-term debt

64,269,521

$

69,988,762

845,516

1,224,800

4,405,126

5,265,745

$

69,520,163

$

76,479,307

$

55,433,696

$

56,743,932

Water Pollution Control Fund
Revenue bonds
Locality compensation payments

5,785,000

6,760,000

Premiums on issuances

2,268,285

1,542,588

Long-term debt

$

63,486,981

$

65,046,520

In fiscal year 2020, the Authority submitted final draws related to the 2018C VRA debt totaling $2,786,696.
In fiscal year 2019, the Authority submitted final draws related to the 2017C VRA debt totaling $8,083,286.15.
Additionally, the Authority submitted the first draws related to the 2018C VRA debt totaling $3,325,003.08,
which is related to revenue bonds of $5,490,000 issued in fiscal year 2019 by the Water Fund for water
replacement and improvement projects.
The Authority has a debt policy which sets forth comprehensive guidelines for the financing of capital
expenditures. The policy details a number of ratios to be monitored throughout the year and in the five year
budget plan to ensure that the debt level and creditworthiness of the Authority remain sound.
The Authority’s debt service coverage for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 1.96 times for the Water fund.
The Water fund’s debt service coverage for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 2.19 times. The debt service
coverage for the WPC fund was 1.81 times for the year ended June 30, 2020. The debt service coverage for
the WPC fund was 1.95 times for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Authority’s bond issues require a minimum
coverage of 1.15 times for its water and wastewater revenue bonds. Locality compensation debt of the Water
and WPC funds require only 1.0 times. The Authority has met its debt service coverage for the fiscal year.
Net take down is a ratio to measure the share of revenues remaining after payment of operating expenses.
The net take down for the Water fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 is 53% and 43% for the WPC fund. The
ratio for the combined funds is 48%. The net take down for the Water fund for the year ended June 30, 2019
was 53% and 49% for the WPC fund. The ratio for the combined funds was 51% for fiscal year 2019.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration: (Continued)
Total outstanding long–term debt per customer is a measurement that indicates the existing debt burden
attributable to each customer. The total outstanding long-term debt at year ended June 30, 2020 per customer
is $1,133 for the water fund and $1,125 for the WPC fund. The total outstanding long-term debt at year ended
June 30, 2019 per customer was $1,252 for the water fund and $1,158 for the WPC fund. This information is
presented in Table 11.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for the reader.
Questions concerning information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Western Virginia Water Authority, Finance Department, 601 South Jefferson St.,
Suite 210, Roanoke, VA 24011.
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Basic Financial Statements

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Exhibit 1

Statement of Net Position
At June 30, 2020
Water
Pollution
Control Fund

Water
Fund

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

26,354,024

$

9,217,129

$

35,571,153

Investments

2,112,869

2,112,869

4,225,738

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

3,702,766

4,131,486

7,834,252

331,887

1,965,244

2,297,131

6,250

6,250

12,500

84,904

104,736

189,640

Inventory of materials and supplies, at cost
Prepaid items
Notes receivable - current portion
Other receivables

350,542

Total current assets

$

32,943,242

228,346
$

17,766,060

578,888
$

50,709,302

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

-

$

5,014,457

$

5,014,457

Total restricted assets

$

-

$

5,014,457

$

5,014,457

$

219,908

$

228,307

$

448,215

$

2,395,599
2,615,507

$

2,514,432
2,742,739

$

4,910,031
5,358,246

$

19,358,300

$

2,827,421

$

22,185,721

Other Assets:
Net pension asset
Notes receivable - net of current portion
Total other assets
Capital Assets:
Land
Construction work in progress
Buildings and system
Accumulated depreciation

19,034,530

23,581,978

42,616,508

475,226,314

450,645,490

925,871,804

(128,812,783)

(175,986,531)

(304,799,314)

Sub-total depreciable assets

$

346,413,531

$

274,658,959

$

621,072,490

Total capital assets, net

$

384,806,361

$

301,068,358

$

685,874,719

Total noncurrent assets

$

387,421,868

$

308,825,554

$

696,247,422

$

420,365,110

$

326,591,614

$

746,956,724

651,422

$

328,801

$

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

$

Pension related items

708,669

OPEB related items

754,313

174,773

Total deferred outflows of resources

980,223
1,462,982

187,615

362,388

$

1,534,864

$

1,270,729

$

$

2,240,820

$

3,928,693

$

2,805,593

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Customers' deposits

2,442,534

12,177

6,169,513
2,454,711

Accrued interest payable

681,617

450,212

1,131,829

Compensated absences-current portion

650,317

735,676

1,385,993

Revenue bonds payable-current portion

6,724,992

5,500,050

12,225,042

424,901

1,021,817

Locality compensation payments payable-current portion
Total current liabilities

$

13,165,181

$

388,275

$

1,446,718

11,648,625

$

350,282

$

24,813,806

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences-net of current portion

$

Revenue bonds payable-net of current portion

738,557

61,949,655

51,963,775

113,913,430

Locality compensation payments payable-net of current portion

420,615

5,001,339

5,421,954

Net pension liability

1,714,099

1,786,706

3,500,805

Net OPEB liabilities

2,367,843

2,630,259

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

4,998,102

$

66,840,487

$

61,732,361

$

128,572,848

$

80,005,668

$

73,380,986

$

153,386,654

$

509,813

$

618,424

$

1,128,237

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items
OPEB related items

78,608

Total deferred inflows of resources

85,665

164,273

$

588,421

$

704,089

$

1,292,510

$

314,740,182

$

240,257,886

$

554,998,068

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

26,565,703

Total net position

$

341,305,885

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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13,519,382
$

253,777,268

40,085,085
$

595,083,153

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Exhibit 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Water
Pollution
Control Fund

Water
Fund
Operating revenues:
Customer charges
Connection fees
Bulk sales
Fire service
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Operating expenses
Field operations
Internal services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating income (expenses):
Interest earned
Rental income
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Nonoperating contribution
Rental expenses
Interest expense
Total nonoperating income (expenses)
Income before contributions

Total

$

30,787,729
261,673
207,235
1,499,946
1,150,339

$

29,806,176
156,750
1,750,580
483,658
881,472

$

60,593,905
418,423
1,957,815
1,983,604
2,031,811

$

33,906,922

$

33,078,636

$

66,985,558

$

9,175,903
4,222,290
3,805,630
8,306,697

$

10,933,064
5,047,836
3,805,630
7,969,119

$

20,108,967
9,270,126
7,611,260
16,275,816

$

25,510,520

$

27,755,649

$

53,266,169

$

8,396,402

$

5,322,987

$

13,719,389

$

341,835 $
730,152
20,842
543,954
(103,217)
(2,084,038)

486,946 $
69,295
18,204
(103,217)
(1,518,540)

828,781
799,447
39,046
543,954
(206,434)
(3,602,578)

$

(550,472) $

(1,047,312) $

(1,597,784)

$

7,845,930

$

4,275,675

$

12,121,605

$

5,248,710

$

4,818,750

$

10,067,460

$

5,248,710

$

4,818,750

$

10,067,460

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

$

13,094,640
328,211,245

$

9,094,425
244,682,843

$

22,189,065
572,894,088

Net position, end of year

$

341,305,885

$

253,777,268

$

595,083,153

Capital contributions
Total capital contributions

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Exhibit 3

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Water
Pollution
Control Fund

Water
Fund

Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users

$

Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

34,167,255

$

33,210,186

$

67,377,441

(6,687,776)

(8,719,057)

(15,406,833)

(10,599,241)

(10,929,991)

(21,529,232)

$

16,880,238

$

13,561,138

$

30,441,376

$

543,954

$

-

$

543,954

$

543,954

$

-

$

543,954

$

(15,764,797) $

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Subsidy from local governments
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Additions to utility plant
Proceeds from the sale of assets

20,842

Principal payments on bonds

(5,719,241)

Principal payments on locality compensation payments

(1,224,800)

Contributions in aid of construction
Proceeds from indebtedness
Interest payments

18,204

(28,707,201)
39,046

(5,470,236)

(11,189,477)

(975,000)

(2,199,800)

1,488,081

1,509,312

845,516

5,095,840

5,941,356

(1,716,649)

(4,665,140)

(2,948,491)

Rental income

(12,942,404) $

2,997,393

730,152

69,295

799,447

(103,217)

(103,217)

(206,434)

$

(22,675,955) $

(14,514,855) $

$

293,844

$

438,955

$

732,799

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

$

293,844

$

438,955

$

732,799

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

$

(4,957,919) $

Rental expenses
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities

(37,190,810)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income

(514,762) $

(5,472,681)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (including $2,748,732
and $0, respectively reported in restricted accounts)

31,311,943

14,746,348

46,058,291

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (including $0
and $5,014,547, respectively reported in restricted accounts)

$

26,354,024

$

14,231,586

$

40,585,610

$

8,396,402

$

5,322,987

$

13,719,389

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation

8,306,697

7,969,119

16,275,816

(Increase) decrease in receivables

227,679

132,493

360,172

(Increase) decrease in inventories

167,867

155,997

323,864

42,772

43,881

86,653

364,294

357,547

721,841

(250,671)

(269,183)

(519,854)

(65,075)

(74,300)

(139,375)

(23,202)

131,338

108,136

Changes in operating assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows
and inflows of resources:

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
(Increase) decrease in net pension asset
(Increase) decrease in pension related deferred outflows
(Increase) decrease in OPEB related deferred outflows
Increase (decrease) in operating payables and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits

32,654

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liabilities

(943)
49,355

15,571

54,641

57,460

112,101

(85,743)

Increase (decrease) in pension related deferred inflows

8,180

(251,892)

Increase (decrease) in OPEB related deferred inflows
$

(77,563)

(324,072)

(2,401)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

31,711

(33,784)

(575,964)

1,279

16,880,238

$

1,201,525

$

(1,122)

13,561,138

$

30,441,376

690,270

$

1,891,795

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets

$

Capital asset additions included in accounts payable at end of year

1,197,438

2,666,749

3,864,187

Construction contributions receivable at year end

2,559,104

2,619,168

5,178,272

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020
Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Western Virginia Water Authority was formed in early 2004 by the Board of Supervisors of Roanoke County,
Virginia and the Council of the City of Roanoke, Virginia pursuant to the Virginia Water and Waste Water
Authorities Act (Chapter 51, Title 15.2 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended) (“Act”). On November 5,
2009 Franklin County joined as a member and on July 1, 2015 Botetourt County joined as a member of the
Authority when the involved parties reorganized under amended and restated Articles of Incorporation. The
purposes for which the Authority was formed are to exercise all powers granted to the Authority to acquire,
finance, construct, operate, manage and maintain a water, wastewater, sewage disposal and storm water
control system and related facilities pursuant to the Act. The Authority shall have all of the rights, powers,
and duties of an authority under the Act. The Authority services the County of Roanoke, the City of
Roanoke, the County of Franklin and to the extent permitted by the Act and by the terms of the Articles of
Incorporation and the Western Virginia Water Authority Operating Agreement, such other public or private
entities as the Authority may determine upon the terms and conditions established pursuant to such
contracts. The Authority began operations on July 1, 2004.
The financial statements of the Western Virginia Water Authority have been prepared in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as specified by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board and the specifications promulgated by the Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.
A. Financial Reporting Entity
The Authority’s governing body is comprised of three members appointed by Roanoke County, three
members appointed by the City of Roanoke, one member appointed by Franklin County and one member
appointed by Botetourt County. Therefore, none of the participants appoints a voting majority of board
members.
The Authority is formed for a term of fifty years. No participating government has access to its
resources or surpluses, nor is any participant liable for the Authority’s debts or deficits with the
exception of the participants’ continuing obligations under their water and sewer general obligation
bonds. The Authority also has the ability to finance its capital projects through user charges or the sale
of revenue bonds.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has determined that, under certain
circumstances, related organizations should be considered component units of a primary entity and, as
such, reported as part of the primary entity. In so doing, GASB established criteria for determining
whether a related entity should be reported as a component unit and, under different circumstances,
how component units must be presented. In defining the Authority as a primary reporting entity, related
organizations were evaluated for possible inclusion, using the criteria established by the GASB. The
criteria would require the reporting entity to include entities that hold resources entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the Authority where the Authority has the ability to access a majority
of those resources and those resources are significant to the Authority. Based on these criteria, the
Authority does not have any component units, nor is the Authority considered a component unit of any of
the participating jurisdictions. Therefore, these financial statements are for the primary entity only.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
A. Financial Reporting Entity (Continued)
Western Virginia Water Authority has been determined to be a joint venture of the City of Roanoke and
the Counties of Roanoke, Franklin and Botetourt.
B. Basis of Presentation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The Authority follows the business-type activities requirements of GASB, which provides that the
following sections be included in the annual financial report:
1. Management’s discussion and analysis
2. Basic financial statements including a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows
3. Notes to financial statements
4. Required supplementary information including schedules related to pension and other
postemployment benefits funding
C. Basis of Accounting
For financial reporting purposes, the Western Virginia Water Authority is considered a special-purpose
government, engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the Authority’s financial statements
have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded
when an obligation has been incurred. All significant intra-agency transactions have been eliminated.
Proprietary Funds
Proprietary Funds account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to those found in private
business enterprises. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position,
and changes in financial position. Proprietary Funds consist of Enterprise Funds.
Enterprise Funds
Enterprise Funds account for the financing of services to the general public where all or most of the
operating expenses involved are recorded in the form of charges to users of such services. The Authority
prepares its financial reports utilizing two enterprise funds. The Water Fund is used to account for water
services and the Water Pollution Control (WPC) Fund is used to account for wastewater treatment
services.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
D. Proprietary Fund Revenue and Expense Classifications
The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the Authority’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers
for services.
Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions,
including gifts, and other revenue sources that are defined as nonoperating revenues, such as
government appropriations, rental income, and interest and other investment income.
Nonoperating expenses include interest on debt related to the purchase of capital assets, losses on the
disposal of capital assets, and rental expenses. All other expenses are classified as operating expenses.
E. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Authority has multiple
items that qualify for reporting in this category. One item is the deferred charge on refunding which
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The
other item is comprised of certain items related to the measurement of the net pension asset/liability
and net OPEB liabilities and contributions to the pension and OPEB plans made during the current year
and subsequent to the net pension asset/liability and net OPEB liabilities measurement date. For more
detailed information on these items, reference the related notes.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority has one type of item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. Certain items related to the measurement of the net pension asset/liability
and net OPEB liabilities are reported as deferred inflows of resources. For more detailed information on
these items, reference the related notes.
F. Net Position
The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources is called net position. Net position is comprised of three components: net investment in
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.


Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this component of net position.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
F. Net Position (Continued)




Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when constraints are placed
on asset use either by external parties or by law through constitutional provision or enabling
legislation.
Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories.

G. Net Position Flow Assumption
Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted—net position and unrestricted—net
position in the financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted—net position to
have been depleted before unrestricted—net position is applied.
H. Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the Authority’s revenue bonds and funds held in escrow are classified as restricted
assets on the statement of net position because they are maintained in separate bank accounts, and
their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or escrow agreements. The bond proceeds account
receives proceeds from Authority debt issuances and hold the proceeds until project costs are incurred.
These assets are held by a trustee financial institution in separate accounts and consist of cash and cash
equivalents. At year end, restricted assets consisted of unspent bond proceeds of $5,014,457.
I. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
A budget is prepared for information, fiscal planning purposes, and to provide the basis for setting user
rates. None of the participating entities are required to approve the budget. The budget is adopted as
a planning document and is not a legal control on expenses.
J. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the government. For
purposes of the statement of cash flows, demand deposits and all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash and cash
equivalents.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
K. Investments
Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchased, non-negotiable certificates of
deposit, and other nonparticipating investments (external investment pools) are stated at cost or
amortized cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when purchased are stated at fair
value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment in an orderly transaction at
year end.
L. Inventory
Inventories of material and supplies are recorded at cost, using the first-in, first-out method of
valuation.
M. Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors represent costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in the financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as an expense when
consumed rather than when purchased.
N. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
Accounts receivable are stated at book value net of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts amounted to $248,169 and $248,169 at June 30, 2020 for water and
water pollution control, respectively.
O. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., pipes,
hydrants, pumps, and similar items), are reported in the financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the Authority as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not
rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation. The capital assets donated to the Authority by the organizing
localities were valued by a consulting engineer.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend its useful life are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Assets

Years

Structures, lines and accessories
Machinery and equipment
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
P. Interest on Indebtedness
Interest costs of the Authority are treated as nonoperating expenses.
Q. Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences reported in the financial statements consists of unpaid
accumulated leave balances. The liability is based on the leave accumulated at June 30. Limited leave
may be accumulated until retirement or termination. Accumulated leave is paid at the employee’s
current wage upon retirement or termination.
R. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension asset/liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Authority’s Retirement Plans and the additions to/deductions from the Authority’s
Retirement Plans’ net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported
by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS) and the City of Roanoke Pension Plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
S. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the net GLI Plan OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB, and GLI OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the VRS GLI Plan OPEB and the additions to/deductions from the VRS GLI OPEB’s net fiduciary
position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. In addition, benefit
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
T. Long-Term Obligations
The Authority assumed existing revenue bond obligations of both Roanoke County and the City of
Roanoke upon the formation of the Authority. The obligations of the County and the City which could
not be assumed by the Authority are reported as locality compensation payments. These amounts are
paid to the locality in accordance with the locality’s existing debt service requirements.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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U. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from these amounts.
Note 2—Deposits and Investments:
Deposits
Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized in
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”), Section 2.2-4400 et. Seq. of the
Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the
amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board.
Financial Institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that
choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly,
all deposits are considered fully collateralized.
Investments
Statutes authorize the Authority to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof, obligations
of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank,
“prime quality” commercial paper that has received at least two of the following ratings: P-1 by Moody’s
Investors Service, Inc.; A-1 by Standard and Poor’s; or F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc. (Section 2.2-4502), banker’s
acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).
A summary of the Authority's deposits and investments at June 30, 2020 is as follows:
Water
Pollution
Water
Petty cash

$

Control

2,950 $

2,950 $

Total
5,900

VML/VACO Virginia Investment Pool

1,080,421

1,080,421

2,160,842

Local Government Investment Pool

1,131,343

1,131,343

2,262,686

-

5,014,457

5,014,457

24,139,310

7,002,415

31,141,725

2,112,869

2,112,869

4,225,738

SNAP
Bank Deposits
Certificate of Deposit
Totals

$

28,466,893 $
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)
Credit Risk
The Authority’s investment policy provides that securities purchased for the Authority shall be held by the
Authority Treasurer or by the Treasurer’s custodian. If held by a custodian, the securities must be in the
Authority’s name or in the custodian’s nominee name and identifiable on the custodian’s books as belonging
to the Authority. Further, if held by a custodian, the custodian must be a third party, not a counterparty
(buyer or seller) to the transaction. At June 30, 2020, all of the Authority’s investments were held in
accordance with this policy.
The following investment types and quality levels are approved for use by the Treasurer in the investment of
its public funds:
1. U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, and other direct obligations of the United States Government.
2. Obligations of Agencies of the Federal Government including but not limited to the Federal Farm
Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Association, Government
National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Student Loan
Marketing Association.
3. Obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia and of its local governments and public bodies,
including the Local Government Investment Pool, provided such obligations have a debt rating of
at least “AA” or equivalent by Moody’s and/or Standard & Poor’s.
4. Repurchase Agreements executed through Federal Reserve Member Banks or Primary Dealers in
U. S. Government securities, and collateralized by Treasury or Agency obligations the fair value
of which is at least 102% of the purchase price of the repo.
5. Certificates of deposit or other deposits of national banks located within the Commonwealth and
state-chartered banks under Commonwealth supervision provided such deposits are insured or
collateralized as provided by the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act.
6. U. S. dollar denominated Bankers’ Acceptances issued by a domestic bank or a foreign bank with
an agency domiciled in the U. S., and rated by Thomson Bankwatch at least B/C (issuing bank)
and I (country of origin). Not more than 40% of the total funds available for investment may be
invested in Bankers’ acceptances.
7. U. S. dollar denominated Commercial Paper issued by an entity incorporated in the U. S. and
rated by at least two of the following: Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., within its NCO/Moody’s
rating of prime 1, by Standard & Poor’s Inc., within its rating of A-1, by Fitch Investor Services,
Inc., within its rating of F-1, by Duff and Phelps, Inc., within its rating of D-1, or by their
corporate successors. Not more that 35% of the total funds available for investment may be
invested in commercial paper, and not more that 5% in the obligations of any one issuer.
8. U. S. dollar denominated high quality corporate notes and bonds with a duration of no more than
five years and a rating of at least A by two rating agencies, one of which must be either Moody’s
Investor Services, Inc., or Standard and Poor’s, Inc.
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Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)
9. Money Market Mutual Funds which trade on a constant net asset value and which invest solely in
securities otherwise eligible for investment under these guidelines.
10. Asset-backed securities with a duration of no more than 5 years and a rating of no less than AAA
by two rating agencies, one of which must be either Moody’s Investor Services, Inc., or Standard
and Poor’s, Inc.
The Authority’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2020 were rated by Standard & Poor’s and the ratings
are presented below using the Standard & Poor’s rating scale.
Authority's Rated Debt Investments' Values
Fair Quality Ratings
AAAm
VML/VACO Virginia Investment Pool

$

AA+f/S1
- $

2,160,842

Local Government Investment Pool

2,262,686

-

SNAP

5,014,457

-

Total

$

7,277,143 $

2,160,842

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Authority’s investment policy limits the investment in bankers’ acceptances to 40% of total funds
available for investment. Not more than 35% of the Authority’s total investments may be in commercial
paper and not more than 5% of commercial paper investments in the obligations of any one issuing
corporation.
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Interest Rate Risk
All Authority investments must be in securities maturing within five years to reduce the volatility associated
with interest rate risk. Investments subject to interest rate risk are presented below along with their
corresponding maturities.
Investment Maturities (in years)
Investment Type
Local Government Investment Pool

$

VML/VACO Virginia Investment Pool

Fair

Less than

Value

1 Year

2,262,686 $

2,262,686

2,160,842

2,160,842

SNAP

5,014,457

5,014,457

Certificate of Deposit

4,225,738

4,225,738

13,663,723 $

13,663,723

Total

$

External Investment Pools
The value of the positions in the external investment pools (Local Government Investment Pool and State
Non-Arbitrage Pool) is the same as the value of the pool shares. As LGIP and SNAP are not SEC registered,
regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the Virginia State Treasury. LGIP and SNAP are amortized cost
basis portfolios. There are no withdrawal limitations or restrictions imposed on participants.
Redemption Restrictions
VML/VACO Virginia Investment Pool allows the Authority to have the option to have access to withdrawal
funds twice a month, with a five day period notice. Additionally, fund are available to meet unexpected
needs such as fluctuations in revenue sources, one-time outlays (disasters, immediate capital needs, state
budget cuts, and etc.).
Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority has measured fair value
of the above VML/VACO Investment Pool investment at the net asset value (NAV).
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Note 3—Capital Assets:
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Water Fund:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures, lines and accessories
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Accumulated depreciation:
Structures, lines and accessories
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Total Water Fund
Water Pollution Control Fund:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures, lines and accessories
Machinery and equipment

Beginning
Balance

Increases

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

19,321,100 $
37,200 $
- $
19,056,752
14,818,216
(14,840,438)

19,358,300
19,034,530

$

38,377,852 $ 14,855,416 $ (14,840,438) $

38,392,830

$

449,431,210 $ 15,430,892 $
9,918,669
573,870

- $
(128,327)

464,862,102
10,364,212

$

459,349,879 $ 16,004,762 $

(128,327) $

475,226,314

(120,917,357)
(7,895,426)
(128,812,783)

$
$

(113,421,134) $
(7,213,279)
(120,634,413) $

(7,496,223) $
(810,474)
(8,306,697) $

- $
128,327
128,327 $

$

338,715,466 $

7,698,065 $

- $

346,413,531

$

377,093,318 $ 22,553,481 $ (14,840,438) $

384,806,361

$

2,827,421 $
- $
16,794,533
11,705,553

- $
(4,918,108)

2,827,421
23,581,978

$

19,621,954 $ 11,705,553 $

(4,918,108) $

26,409,399

$

433,598,053 $
9,886,334

7,003,654 $
245,058

- $
(87,609)

440,601,707
10,043,783

$

443,484,387 $

7,248,712 $

(87,609) $

450,645,490

$
$

(161,064,306) $
(7,040,715)
(168,105,021) $

(7,199,670) $
(769,449)
(7,969,119) $

- $
87,609
87,609 $

(168,263,976)
(7,722,555)
(175,986,531)

$

275,379,366 $

(720,407) $

- $

274,658,959

Total Water Pollution Control Fund

$

295,001,320 $ 10,985,146 $

(4,918,108) $

301,068,358

Total Authority Capital Assets

$

672,094,638 $ 33,538,627 $ (19,758,546) $

685,874,719

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Accumulated depreciation:
Structures, lines and accessories
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
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Construction Commitments:

The Authority has active construction projects as of June 30, 2020 detailed below:
Water Fund
Contract
Amount

Project Description
Crystal Spring Pump Station

$

Brick Church Road

Spentto-Date

4,931,027 $

266,971 $

566,548

6,533

Remaining
Commitment
4,664,056
560,015

Water Pollution Control Fund
Project Description
Old Roanoke River Interceptor Phase 3

904,929

-

904,929

Systemwide Manhole Rehabilitation

814,091

119,686

694,405

Regional Water Pollution Control Plant – Substation Electrical Equipment & Cable

509,618

-

509,618

Regional Water Pollution Control Plant – Substation Electrical Equipment & Cable

830,400

-

830,400

1,456,314

-

1,456,314

Regional Water Pollution Control Plant – Planning and Design Digester Improvements

Total

$

10,012,927 $

393,190 $

9,619,737

The above projects are to be funded from the proceeds of revenue bonds and funds generated from
operations. The Authority has entered into an agreement with Carilion Medical Center, Inc. (Carilion) for
the relocation of the Crystal Springs Pump Station. In accordance with terms of the agreement, Carilion will
reimburse the Authority for 100% of all costs associated with the project.
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Note 4—Long-Term Obligations:
Business-type Activities Indebtedness:
The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of the Authority for the year ended June 30,
2020:
Due
Beginning

Issuances/

Retirement/

Ending

Within

Balance

Additions

Reductions

Balance

One Year

64,269,521 $

5,930,323

Water Fund:
Direct borrowings and placements:
Revenue bonds

$

69,988,762 $

- $

(5,719,241) $

Locality compensation
payments

1,224,800

845,516

(1,224,800)

845,516

424,901

5,265,745

-

(860,619)

4,405,126

794,669

Unamortized bond
premium
Total direct borrowings and placements

$

Compensated absences

76,479,307 $

845,516 $

(7,804,660) $

69,520,163 $

7,149,893

1,072,376

770,498

(804,282)

1,038,592

650,317

1,659,458

601,495

(546,854)

1,714,099

-

2,453,586

280,199

(365,942)

2,367,843

-

Net pension liability - City of
Roanoke
Net OPEB liabilities
Total Water Fund

$

81,664,727 $

2,497,708 $

(9,521,738) $

74,640,697 $

7,800,210

$

56,743,932 $

4,160,000 $

(5,470,236) $

55,433,696 $

5,230,836

Water Pollution Control Fund:
Direct borrowings and placements:
Revenue bonds
Locality compensation
payments

6,760,000

-

(975,000)

5,785,000

990,000

Unamortized bond
premium
Total direct borrowings and placements

1,542,588
$

Compensated absences

935,840

(210,143)

5,095,840 $

(6,655,379) $

1,036,603

826,807

(777,452)

1,085,958

735,676

1,729,246

626,968

(569,508)

1,786,706

-

2,622,079

356,758

(348,578)

2,630,259

-

65,046,520 $

2,268,285
63,486,981 $

301,031
6,521,867

Net pension liability - City of
Roanoke
Net OPEB liabilities
Total Water Pollution
Control Fund
Total business-type activities

$

70,434,448 $

6,906,373 $

(8,350,917) $

68,989,904 $

7,257,543

$

152,099,175 $

9,404,081 $

(17,872,655) $

143,630,601 $

15,057,753
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Note 4—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)
Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and the related interest are as follows:
Direct Borrowings and Placements: Revenue Bonds
Water Pollution
Year Ending

Water Fund

June 30
2021

Principal
$

Control Fund

Interest

Principal

5,930,323 $

2,617,675

2022

6,160,963

2,350,053

5,493,669

1,344,236

2023

6,381,691

2,065,922

5,618,764

1,189,688

2024

6,658,421

1,781,518

5,786,173

1,030,519

2025

6,582,721

1,497,290

5,945,953

865,905

2026-2030

21,955,957

3,641,048

18,684,835

2,198,706

2031-2035

6,969,187

1,234,358

7,008,468

726,672

2036-2040

3,603,465

225,119

1,355,000

208,621

309,998

6,394

2041
Total

26,793
$

$

-

64,269,521 $

15,412,983 $

5,230,836

Interest

55,433,696

$

$

1,471,850

9,042,591

Direct Borrowings and Placements: Locality Compensation Payments
Water Pollution
Year Ending

Water Fund

June 30
2021

Principal
$

Control Fund

Interest

424,901

$

Principal

10,516

$

990,000

Interest
$

172,945

2022

420,615

3,494

1,015,000

146,087

2023

-

-

1,035,000

116,496

2024

-

-

1,060,000

83,961

2025

-

-

120,000

64,119

2026-2030

-

-

705,000

233,734

2031-2035

-

-

860,000

79,994

Total

$

845,516

$

14,010
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Note 4—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)
Details of the Authority's outstanding long-term indebtedness at June 30, 2020 are as follows:
W ater Fund

Final

Amount of

Balance

Amount

Interest

Installment

Maturity

Original

Enterprise

Due Within

Rates

Amounts

Date

Issue

Activities

One Year

$420,615-$424,901 (a+)

10/1/2021

Type

Direct Borrowings and Placements - Locality Compensation Payments:
City of Roanoke, VA - 2019 Refunding

1.67%

$

845,516

Total Direct Borrowings and Placements - Locality Compensation Payments

$

845,516

$

424,901

$

845,516

$

424,901

$

22,623

$

22,623

Direct Borrowings and Placements - Revenue Bonds:
VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2000B

3.00%

$22,962 (sa)

9/1/2020

VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2000A

4.00%

$6,629 (sa)

9/1/2020

178,340

6,499

6,499

VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2008

3.05%

$13,523(sa)

11/1/2028

389,557

193,100

21,319

VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2010

0.00%

$13,397 (sa+)

1/1/2041

803,823

562,676

26,794

VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2011

2.64%

$18,746 (sa)

3/1/2032

564,401

378,380

27,684

ARRA - VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2009

0.00%

$597 (sa+)

6/1/2040

35,919

23,861

1,193

ARRA - VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2009

0.00%

$353 (sa+)

6/1/2040

21,242

14,117

705

VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2011

2.83%

$7,273 (sa)

6/1/2031

216,850

136,436

10,761
1,100,000

VRA Pool Bond Water Series 2011B

$

674,269

4.67-5.13%

$830,000-$1,550,000 (a+)

10/1/2021

17,035,000

2,250,000

VRA Water Revolving Loan Series 2012

1.45%

$26,811 (sa)

4/1/2033

907,965

632,462

44,613

VRA VPFP Refunding Bond Series 2013B

3.435-4.826%

$2,090,000-$3,510,000 (a+)

10/1/2026

35,855,000

21,590,000

2,685,000
525,000

VRA Pool Bond Water Series 2014B Refunding

2.00-5.25%

$505,000-$765,000 (a+)

10/1/2028

6,355,000

5,780,000

2016A VRA Refunding of 2011B

4.80-5.13%

$1,150,000-$1,475,000 (a+)

10/1/2027

7,870,000

7,870,000

-

VRA 2011 Bond Series 2011A

2.125-5.125%

$20,000-$40,000 (a+)

10/1/2031

510,000

365,000

25,000

2017C VRA Bond

2.827-5.125%

$285,000-$635,000 (a+)

4/1/2038

10,000,000

8,455,000

310,000

2018C VRA Bond

4.125-5.125%

$165,000-$415,000 (a+)

10/30/2018

5,490,000

5,325,000

170,000

BB&T Revenue Bond Series 2009

3.91%

$177,496 (sa)

5/15/2024

4,000,000

1,302,773

307,027

Carter Bank and Trust Series 2013A

2.75%

$51,857 (sa+)

10/1/2029

1,556,000

985,463

103,734

Carter Bank and Trust - Series 2015

3.80%

$389,855 (sa)

4/1/2033

10,000,000

8,376,131

542,371

Add: Premium on issuance
Total Direct Borrowings and Placements - Revenue Bonds

4,405,126

794,669

$ 68,674,647

$ 6,724,992

$

$

Other Long-Term Obligations:
Compensated absences

1,038,592

Net pension liability-City of Roanoke

1,714,099

Net OPEB liabilities

2,367,843

Total Other Long-Term Obligations

$

Total Long-Term Obligations Payable from the W ater Fund

$ 74,640,697

(a+)-annual principal installments shown, does not include semi-annual interest installments
(sa)-semi-annual installments, includes interest as applicable
(sa+)-semi-annual principal installments shown, does not include semi-annual interest installments
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5,120,534

650,317

$

650,317

$ 7,800,210

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 4—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)
Details of the Authority's outstanding long-term indebtedness at June 30, 2020 are as follows: (Continued)
Final

Amount of

Balance

Amount

Interest

Installment

Maturity

Original

Enterprise

Due Within

Rates

Amounts

Date

Issue

Activities

One Year

1.15-2.96%

$845,000-$945,000 (a+)

10/1/2023

$ 7,105,000

2.125-5.125%

$5,000-$185,000 (a+)

10/1/2034

2,155,000

W ater Pollution Control Fund
Type

Direct Borrowings and Placements - Locality Compensation Payments:
City of Roanoke, VA - 2012B Refunding
VRA Bond Series 2016B

$

Add: Premium on issuance
Total Direct Borrowings and Placements - Locality Compensation Payments

3,670,000

$

2,115,000
$

890,000
100,000

238,156

31,817

6,023,156

$ 1,021,817

3,565,216

$

Direct Borrowings - Revenue Bonds:
VRA Wastewater Revolving Loan Series 2003

2.30%

$306,492 (sa)

10/1/2026

$ 9,000,000

VRA Wastewater Revolving Loan Series 2003

2.30%

$1,051,566 (sa)

10/1/2026

31,665,134

12,232,190

1,765,583

VRA Wastewater Revolving Loan Series 2007

2.50%

$343,375 (sa)

8/1/2028

9,993,612

5,058,123

541,143

VRA Clean Water Revolving Loan Series 2011

2.35%

$48,166 (sa)

3/1/2032

1,500,000

999,096

73,282

4.82-5.13%

$545,000-$1,035,000 (a+)

10/1/2021

11,285,000

1,485,000

725,000

VRA Wastewater Revolving Loan Series 2011

2.35%

$149,659 (sa)

9/1/2033

4,660,693

3,424,853

220,120

VRA Wastewater Revolving Loan Series 2011

2.35%

$191,135 (sa)

9/1/2032

5,952,344

4,058,027

288,593

VRA Wastewater Revolving Loan Series 2012

1.45%

$363,739 (sa)

4/1/2035

12,318,074

9,416,480

588,250

VRA Pool Bond Sewer Series 2014B Refunding

1.18-5.13%

$20,000-$235,000 (a+)

10/1/2028

1,930,000

1,760,000

160,000

VRA Refunding Bond Series 2016A

4.80-5.13%

$770,000-$990,000 (a+)

10/1/2027

5,270,000

5,270,000

-

VRA Bond Series 2012

2.40%

$86,700 (sa)

3/1/2033

2,700,000

1,931,602

128,732

VRA Bond Series 2004

3.10%

$102,801 (sa)

9/1/2026

4,032,975

1,201,954

169,664

VRA Bond Series 2013

1.45%

$34,543 (sa)

4/1/2035

1,169,808

871,155

55,868

VRA Bond Series 2020

3.00%

$125,000-$310,000 (a+)

10/1/2040

4,160,000

4,160,000

-

2,030,129

269,214

$ 57,463,825

$ 5,500,050

$

$

VRA Pool Bond Sewer Series 2011B

$

Add: Premium on issuance
Total Direct Borrowings and Placements - Revenue Bonds

514,601

Other Long-Term Obligations:
Compensated absences

1,085,958

Net pension liability-City of Roanoke

1,786,706

Net OPEB liabilities

2,630,259
5,502,923

735,676

-

Total Other Long-Term Obligations

$

$

735,676

Total Long-Term Obligations Pay able from the W ater Pollution Control Fund

$ 68,989,904

$ 7,257,543

Grand Total

$ 143,630,601

$ 15,057,753

(a+)-annual principal installments shown, does not include semi-annual interest installments
(sa)-semi-annual installments, includes interest as applicable

Loans from the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) are governed by rate covenants with which the Authority
has been in compliance through June 30, 2020. Revenue bonds and locality compensation payments are
secured by the Authority’s revenues.
If an event of default occurs with VRA, BB&T, or Carter Bank and Trust bonds, the principal of the bond(s)
may be declared immediately due and payable to the registered owner of the bond(s) by written notice to
the Authority.
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Note 5—Capital Contributions:
The Authority received capital contributions from the following sources during the year:
Year Ended June 30, 2020:

Water

Availability fees

$

Water

Pollution

Fund

Control Fund

1,135,500 $

Total

1,043,000 $

2,178,500

Developer contributions

1,201,525

690,270

1,891,795

Contributions from other governments

2,711,685

3,085,480

5,797,165

Other capital contributions

200,000

Total Capital Contributions

$

5,248,710 $

-

200,000

4,818,750 $

10,067,460

Note 6—Pension Plans:
Aggregate Pension Information
The following is a summary of deferred outflows, deferred inflows, net pension liabilities (assets), and
pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Deferred
Outflows
Pension Plans:
Virginia Retirement System Plan
City of Roanoke Pension Plan
Totals

$ 531,028
177,641
$ 708,669

Water Fund
Net Pension
Deferred
Liability
Inflows
(Asset)
$ 222,002
287,811
$ 509,813

$

Pension
Expense

(219,908) $ 199,810
1,714,099
49,815
$ 1,494,191 $ 249,625

Water Pollution Control Fund
Net Pension
Deferred
Deferred
Liability
Pension
Outflows
Inflows
(Asset)
Expense
$ 551,489
202,824
$ 754,313

$ 236,607
381,817
$ 618,424

$

(228,307) $ 209,492
1,786,706
(17,474)
$ 1,558,399 $ 192,018

Virginia Retirement System Plan
Plan Description
All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Authority (that are not covered under the Roanoke City
Pension Plan) are automatically covered by VRS Retirement Plan upon employment. This is an agent
multiple-employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System) along with plans for
other employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. However, one entity’s whose financial information
is not included in the primary government’s report participates in the VRS plan through the Authority and
the participating entity reports its proportionate information on the basis of a cost-sharing plan. Members
earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their employer
pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria as
defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior
public service, active military service, certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

-51-

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Benefit Structures
The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees – Plan 1, Plan 2 and
Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria, as detailed below.
a. Employees hired before July 1, 2010, vested as of January 1, 2013, and have not taken a refund, are
covered under Plan 1, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty employees are eligible for an
unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with
at least 30 years of service credit. Non-hazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 55 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.
b. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2010, or their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were
not vested as of January 1, 2013 are covered under Plan 2, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty
employees are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security retirement age
with at least 5 years of service credit or when the sum of their age plus service credit equals 90. Nonhazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least 5 years of
service credit.
c. Non-hazardous duty employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 are covered by the Hybrid Plan
combining the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Plan 1 and Plan 2
members also had the option of opting into this plan during the election window held January 1 – April
30, 2014 with an effective date of July 1, 2014. Employees covered by this plan are eligible for an
unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security retirement age with at least 5 years of
service credit, or when the sum of their age plus service credit equals 90. Employees may retire with a
reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit. For the defined contribution
component, members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to
restrictions.
Average Final Compensation and Service Retirement Multiplier
The VRS defined benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of
the employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the employee’s total service credit. Under Plan 1,
average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation and the multiplier is 1.70% for non-hazardous duty employees and 1.85% for sheriffs and
regional jail superintendents. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60
consecutive months of highest compensation and the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for non-hazardous duty
employees and 1.85% for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents. Under the Hybrid Plan, average final
compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive months of highest compensation and the
multiplier is 1.00%. For members who opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the
applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in
those plans.
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement and Death and Disability Benefits
Retirees with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years of service credit are
eligible for an annual COLA beginning July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement date. Retirees
with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of service credit are eligible for an annual COLA
beginning on July 1 after one calendar year following the unreduced retirement eligibility date. Under Plan
1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%. Under Plan 2 and the Hybrid Plan, the COLA cannot exceed 3.00%. The
VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.
Contributions
The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the
Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their
retirement.
The Authority’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was
4.60% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.
This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions to the pension plan from the Authority were $411,061 and $412,555 for the years ended June
30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively.
Net Pension Asset
At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported an asset of $448,215 for its proportionate share of the net pension
asset. The Authority’s net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2018
and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019. In order to allocate the net pension asset to
all employers included in the plan, the Authority is required to determine its proportionate share of the net
pension asset. Contributions as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 were used as a basis for allocation to determine
the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension asset. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Authority’s
proportion was 99.2288% and 98.6714%, respectively.
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees
The total pension liability for General Employees in the Authority’s Retirement Plan was based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2019.

Inflation

2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation

3.50% – 5.35%

Investment rate of return

6.75%, net of pension plan investment
expenses, including inflation*

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the fair value of assets for the last experience study were found to
be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed
investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the
difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected
plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of return on
investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities.
Mortality rates:
All Others (Non-10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related
Pre-Retirement:
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.
Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.
Post-Disablement:
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years; 110%
of rates; females 125% of rates.
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Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees (Continued)
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial
assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:
All Others (Non-10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:
Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, postretirement healthy, and disabled)
Retirement Rates

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014
projected to 2020
Lowered rates at older ages and changed final
retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age
and service through 9 years of service
Lowered rates
No change
Increased rate from 14.00% to 15.00%
Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate
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Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class (Strategy)
Public Equity
Fixed Income
Credit Strategies
Real Assets
Private Equity
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies
PIP - Private Investment Partnership
Total

Target
Allocation

Arithmetic
Long-term
Expected
Rate of Return

Weighted
Average
Long-term
Expected
Rate of Return*

34.00%
15.00%
14.00%
14.00%
14.00%
6.00%
3.00%

5.61%
0.88%
5.13%
5.27%
8.77%
3.52%
6.29%

1.91%
0.13%
0.72%
0.74%
1.23%
0.21%
0.19%

100.00%
Inflation
Expected arithmetic nominal return*

5.13%
2.50%
7.63%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into
account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the
system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The
results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of
7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is
roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation.
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Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS
Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates
equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of
Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for
state and teacher employer contributions; the Authority was also provided with an opportunity to use an
alternative employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the alternate rate was the
employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution
rate from the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations, whichever was greater. From July 1, 2019 on,
participating employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in
the Discount Rate
The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one
percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(5.75%)
Authority's proportionate share of the
Authority Retirement Plan
Net Pension Liability (Asset)

$

2,019,555
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Rate
Current Discount
(6.75%)

$

(448,215)

1% Increase
(7.75%)

$

(2,389,274)

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense of $409,302. Since there was a
change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension expense was related to
deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from difference between employee contributions and the
proportionate share of employer contributions.
At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience

$

Changes in assumptions

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

232,207 $

139,040

439,249

173,186

Change in proportionate shares

-

5,456

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

-

140,927

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

411,061

Total

$
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
Virginia Retirement System Plan (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (Continued)
$411,601 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Authority’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension
Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future
reporting periods as follows:

Year ended June 30
2021
2022
2023

$

2024
Thereafter

17,851
(79,717)
179,656
95,057
-

Pension Plan Data
Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS
2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2019 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from
the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2019-annual-report-pdf, or by writing to the
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
City of Roanoke Pension Plan
Employees of the Authority who transferred their employment from the City of Roanoke are eligible to
continue their participation in the City’s Pension Plan.
General Information about the Pension Plan
The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan established by City Council and is
included in the City's basic financial statements as a Pension Trust Fund. The Pension Plan was established
by City Ordinance No. 8559 dated May 27, 1946, effective July 1, 1946. The Pension Plan covers
substantially all employees of the City, all employees of the Roanoke Regional Airport Commission, and the
Roanoke Valley Juvenile Detention Center, as well as certain employees of the City of Roanoke School
Board, the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, and the Western Virginia Water Authority. The City is the
major contributor of employer contributions to the Pension Plan. City Council appoints members of the
Pension Plan Board of Trustees to administer the Pension Plan. The Pension Plan is not subject to the
provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) of 1974.
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City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
Effective July 1, 1984, the Pension Plan changed its name from the Employees’ Retirement System of the
City of Roanoke, Virginia (ERS) to City of Roanoke Pension Plan and incorporated a provision for an
Employees’ Supplemental Retirement System (ESRS) which modified certain benefits as defined by the ERS.
All employees covered under the provisions of the ERS at June 30, 1984, could elect to remain with the ERS
or be covered under the provisions of the ESRS. Coverage under the ESRS was mandatory for all employees
hired or rehired on or after July 1, 1984. On November 28, 1994, June 1, 1998, November 2, 1998, and June
5, 2000, City Council authorized the Pension Plan to offer members of the ERS an opportunity to transfer to
the ESRS. The option was available from February 1, 1995 to May 16, 1995, July 1, 1998 through August 31,
1998, December 1, 1998 through December 31, 1998, and July 1, 2000 through July 31, 2000. Both the ERS
and the ESRS share a common trust fund from which all benefits are paid without distinction as to the
source of funds and are administered by the Board of Trustees. The Pension Plan provides retirement
benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Effective July 16, 2012, City Council adopted a restatement of the chapter of the City Code governing the
Pension Plan. The restated Chapter 22.3, Pensions and Retirement, provides for the introduction of an
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(h) health savings account, established as a component of the Pension
Plan effective July 1, 2013, and established new benefit tiers effective July 1, 2014. The restated Chapter
22.3 also provides for a defined cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2013.
Employees who are members of the ERS with 30 years of service and age 60 (normal retirement age) are
entitled to an annual retirement benefit equal to 1/70 (1.429%) of their average final compensation (highest
consecutive 12 months), excluding overtime, for each year of service. Employees may retire with 20 years of
service and receive a reduced retirement benefit. For employees who are married at their retirement date,
a joint and survivor annuity is payable monthly. There is no mandatory retirement age.
Employees who are members of the ESRS, hired prior to July 1, 2014, with 5 years or more of credited
service and age 65 or over, general employees who have attained age 50 with age plus service equal to 80,
and deputized police officers and firefighters who have attained age 45 with age plus service equal to 70,
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 2.1% of their
final average compensation for each year of credited service up to a maximum of 63%. Final average
compensation is the employee’s average salary, excluding overtime, over the highest 36 consecutive months
of credited service. Employees with 5 years of credited service may retire at age 55 and receive a reduced
retirement benefit. Employees may elect to receive their retirement benefits in the form of a single life
annuity or a joint and survivor annuity payable monthly from retirement. If employees terminate before
rendering five years of service, they forfeit the right to receive any Pension Plan benefits. There is no
mandatory retirement age.
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
Employees hired after June 30, 2014 become members of ESRS and choose between participation as a
traditional defined benefit ESRS member or as a Hybrid member. Employees hired after June 30, 2014 were
required to contribute 5% of earnable compensation to the plan. Effective July 1, 2015, the required
contribution of 5% of earnable compensation was extended to employees hired prior to July 1, 2015.
Employees have 60 days from their date of hire to make an irrevocable election to participate as either a
traditional defined benefit ESRS member or a Hybrid member. Employees electing Hybrid membership
participate in ESRS and accrue a lesser defined benefit than traditional defined benefit ESRS members and
also participate in a defined contribution plan established under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Employees who make no election participate as traditional defined benefit ESRS members.
ESRS members hired after June 30, 2014, choosing participation as a traditional defined benefit member
may retire with 5 years or more of credited service and age 65 or over, general employees who have
attained age 55 with age plus service equal to 85, and deputized police officers and firefighters who have
attained age 50 with age plus service equal to 75, are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life in an amount equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation for each year of credited
service up to a maximum of 63%. Final average compensation is the employee’s average salary, excluding
overtime, over the highest 60 consecutive months of credited service. Employees with 15 years of credited
service may retire at age 55 (age 50 for deputized police officers and firefighters) and receive a reduced
retirement benefit. Employees may elect to receive their retirement benefits in the form of a single life
annuity or a joint and survivor annuity payable monthly from retirement. If employees terminate before
rendering five years of service, they forfeit the right to receive any Pension Plan benefits. There is no
mandatory retirement age. Member contributions for traditional defined benefit participants are invested in
the pension trust fund.
Employees choosing participation as Hybrid members participate in ESRS for the defined benefit component
of their retirement benefit, subject to the same eligibility criteria as outlined for the traditional defined
benefit participants. Hybrid members’ defined benefit component is payable monthly for life in an amount
equal to 1.0% of their final average compensation for each year of credited service up to a maximum of 63%.
Final average compensation is the employee’s average salary, excluding overtime, over the highest 60
consecutive months of credited service. Hybrid member contributions are deposited in a defined
contribution plan established under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. Hybrid members are
responsible for the investment of funds in their defined contribution plan account.
Effective July 1, 2000, an additional monthly supplement equal to the greater of (a) $159 or (b) 75% of the
amount the City contributes toward the cost of a single active employee’s health insurance shall be paid for
eligible retirees terminating the month in which the retiree attains age 65. Any member of the Pension Plan
who was an employee of one of the participating employers of the Pension Plan (not including employees of
the School Board) and who retired after earning 20 or more years of creditable service but prior to attaining
the age of 65 is eligible for this supplement. This supplement is not available to retirees receiving the early
retiree incentive plan supplement granted in 1991. Employees hired after June 30, 2013 are not eligible for
this supplement.
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
The Internal Revenue Code Section 401(h) health savings account operates similarly to a defined
contribution plan. Employees eligible to participate in the Pension Plan are required to contribute 1% of
earnable compensation in their health savings account. Employees hired after June 30, 2013 and employees
hired prior to July 1, 2014, who made an irrevocable election to forego eligibility for the monthly
supplemental benefit enacted effective July 1, 2000, receive an employer paid matching contribution equal
to 1% of their earnable compensation. Employees vest in the employer paid matching contribution upon the
attainment of 5 years of creditable service in the Pension Plan. The Board of Trustees has delegated
authority for the oversight of the 401(h) health savings account to the Defined Contribution Board
established under the Chapter 22.3 of the City Code. The Defined Contribution Board has contracted with an
independent financial services organization for the custody and administration of the 401(h) accounts.
Assets accumulated in the individual accounts are available for use upon separation from service for
reimbursement of qualified medical expenses, as defined in section 213(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, as
a tax-free distribution. Non-vested employer contributions, including earnings thereon, are forfeited upon
separation from service. Any balance remaining in the account is forfeited upon death or attainment of
maximum age of the last eligible recipient.
Contributions
Effective July 1, 2015, employees contribute 5.00% of earnable compensation into the pension trust.
Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, electing participation as a Hybrid plan member contribute 5% of
earnable compensation into a defined contribution plan member account. Employer contributions to the
Pension Plan are based on a percentage of the earnable compensation of the active members. The City’s
contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was 16.60%, which, when combined with the
required employee contribution of 5.00%, totaled 21.60%. For fiscal year 2020, the total contribution rate of
21.60% of earnable compensation, actuarially determined as an amount that is expected to finance the cost
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the Authority were $290,124 for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported a liability of $3,500,805 for its’ proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to projected contributions of all participates, as
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Authority’s proportion was 2.5193% and 2.6667%,
respectively.
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City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense of $32,341. Since there was a
change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension expense was related to
deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between employer contributions and the
proportionate share of employer contributions.
At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to this pension from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Deferred

Deferred

Outflows

Inflows

of Resources

of Resources

$

$

Changes in assumptions

54,577
35,764

33,458
-

Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

-

423,341

-

212,829

Net differenc e between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Totals

290,124
$

380,465

$

669,628

$290,124 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the pension resulting from the Authority’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense in future reporting periods as follows:
Year Ended June 30
2021

$ (224,310)

2022
2023
2024
Total

(333,714)
(71,141)
49,878
-
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City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, updated to June 30,
2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation

2.25 %

Salary Increases

3.50 %, average, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.25 %, net of investment expenses
Cost of Living Adjustments 1.50 % for eligible participants, based on 2/3 of assumed 2.25% inflation
Mortality rates or pre-retirement and healthy annuitants were based on 125% of RP-2000 Combined Healthy
Mortality for males and females with generation mortality projection using Scale AA. For Disabled, mortality
rates were based on Society of Actuaries RP-2014 Adjusted to 2006 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table.
Actuarial assumptions are based on the last experience study performed as of June 30, 2016 for the period
July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. City Code requires that the Plan have an experience study performed
every 5 years. The experience study covers a 5 year period.
Long-term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was determined using projected longterm rates of returns developed for each asset class. The expected long-term rate of return for each asset
class as weighted by the Investment Policy target asset allocation was used, to derive the overall expected
rate of return for the portfolio. The following table reflected the long-term expected arithmetic real rate of
return based upon the defined target allocation for each asset class as defined in the Statement of
Investment Policy:

Asset Class (Strategy)

Target
Allocation

Equity
US Equity
International Equity
Real Estate
Fixed Income
US Fixed Income
Total
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Weighted
Average
Long-Term
Expected
Rate of Return

52.00%
22.00%
6.00%

5.20%
2.42%
0.42%

20.00%
100.00%

1.00%
9.04%
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Note 6—Pension Plans: (Continued)
City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made at the actuarially determined
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate
The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25%) or one percentage
point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability

1% Decrease
(6.25%)

Rate
Current Rate
(7.25%)

1% Increase
(8.25%)

$ 5,068,793

$

$ 2,177,380

3,500,805

Pension Plan Data
The Roanoke City Pension Plan issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. A copy of the most recent report
may be obtained by writing to the City of Roanoke Retirement Office, Attention: Retirement Administrator,
P.O. Box 1220, Roanoke, Virginia, 24006.
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The following is a summary of deferred outflows, deferred inflows, net OPEB liabilities, and OPEB expense
for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Health Insurance OPEB Plan
VRS OPEB Plans - Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan:
Western Virginia Water Authority GLI Plan
City of Roanoke GLI Plan
Totals

Water Fund
Deferred Deferred
Net OPEB
OPEB
Outflows
Inflows
Liability
Expense
$ 60,552 $ 43,685 $ 1,864,357 $ 104,721

Water Pollution Control Fund
Deferred Deferred
Net OPEB
OPEB
Outflows
Inflows
Liability
Expense
$ 68,441 $ 49,375 $ 2,107,228 $ 118,363

100,163
27,276
428,438
14,395
14,058
7,647
75,048
1,093
$ 174,773 $ 78,608 $ 2,367,843 $ 120,209

103,988
28,319
444,801
14,945
15,186
7,971
78,230
1,139
$ 187,615 $ 85,665 $ 2,630,259 $ 134,447

Note 8—Other Postemployment Benefits – Health Insurance:
Plan Description
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6, the Authority administers a single-employer defined
benefit healthcare plan, Western Virginia Water Authority OPEB Plan. The plan provides for participation by
eligible retirees of the Authority and their dependents in the health insurance programs available to
Authority employees. The plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.
Benefits Provided
The plan will provide retiring employees the option to continue health insurance offered by the Authority.
An eligible Authority retiree may receive this benefit until the retiree is eligible to receive Medicare. To be
eligible for this benefit a retiree must meet the following criteria:





The retiree must be a full time employee retiring on or after July 1, 2004.
The employee must be eligible to retire with the Virginia Retirement System (VRS) or the current
City of Roanoke retirement plan.
Active employees must have at least 10 years of service with combined VRS or City of Roanoke
and/or the Water Authority, with a minimum of five continuous years of service with the Water
Authority and must be hired before July 1, 2010.
Disabled employees are eligible after they meet retirement eligibilities

The benefits, employee contributions and the employer contributions are governed by the Board of Directors
of the Western Virginia Water Authority and can be amended through Board action.
Plan Membership
At January 1, 2020 (valuation date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Total active members
Total retirees and spouses

101
35

Total

136
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Contributions
The board does not pre-fund benefits; therefore, no assets are accumulated in a trust fund. The current
funding policy is to pay benefits directly from general assets on a pay-as-you-go basis. The funding
requirements are established and may be amended by the Authority’s Board. The amount paid by the
Authority for OPEB as the benefits came due during the year ended June 30, 2020 was $401,867.
Total OPEB Liability
The Authority’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2020.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation
Salary Increases
Discount Rate

2.50%
2.50% to 5.00%
2.21% as of June 30, 2020;
3.50% as of June 30, 2019

Mortality rates for pre-retirement and post-retirement employees were 125% of RP-2000 Combined Healthy
mortality rates for males and females with generational mortality projections using Scale AA. Mortality rates
for post-disabled employees were based on RP-2014 adjusted to 2006 Disabled Retiree mortality rates for
males and females.
The healthcare trend rate assumption starts at (4.30)% in 2020 increasing to 5.60% in 2021 and gradually
grading to 4.00% by the year 2073.
The date of the most recent actuarial experience study for which significant assumptions was based was
from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2017.
Discount Rate
The discount rate (as the entity has not established a trust for this OPEB) is based on the Bond Buyer 20Year Bond GO Index as of the respective measurement dates. The final equivalent single discount rate used
for this year’s valuation is 2.21% as of the end of the fiscal year with the expectation that the Authority will
continue to fund the program on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Balances at June 30, 2019
$
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs
Benefit payments
Net changes
$
Balances at June 30, 2020
$

Total OPEB Liability
4,119,598
77,347
139,921
(38,803)
75,389
(401,867)
(148,013)
3,971,585

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following amounts present the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (1.21%) or
one percentage point higher (3.21%) than the current discount rate:
Rate
1% Decrease
(1.21%)
$ 4,182,716

Current Discount
Rate (2.21%)
$
3,971,585

1% Increase
(3.21%)
$ 3,770,358

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower
((5.30)% in 2020, increasing to 4.60% in 2021 and gradually decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.00%) or one
percentage point higher ((3.30% in 2020, increasing to 6.60% in 2021 and gradually decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 5.00%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease

Rates
Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

1% Increase

((5.30)% increasing
to 3.00%)
$
3,749,408

((4.30)% increasing
to 4.00%)
$
3,971,585

((3.30)% increasing
to 5.00%)
$
4,222,996
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $223,084. At
June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience
Effect of assumption changes or inputs
Total

Deferred Outflows of
Resouces
$
128,993
128,993 $

$
$

Deferred Inflows of
Resources
33,338
59,722
93,060

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in
OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:
Year Ended June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

5,816
5,816
5,816
5,816
7,000
5,669

Additional disclosures on changes in the total OPEB liability, related ratios, and employer contributions can
be found in the required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.
Note 9—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan):
The Authority participates in two Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plans through the Virginia Retirement System
(VRS). Employees of the Authority who transferred their employment from the City of Roanoke are eligible
to continue their participation in the City’s VRS plan. All other employees who participate in VRS through
Western Virginia Water Authority are part of the Authority’s VRS Plan.
Plan Description
The GLI Plan was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which
provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or may be amended. All full-time, salaried
permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers, and employees of participating political subdivisions
are automatically covered by the VRS GLI Plan upon employment. This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System), along with pensions and other OPEB
plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
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Plan Description (Continued)
In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as
well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional GLI Plan. For members who elect the optional
group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums. Employers deduct these
premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully
insured plan, it is not included as part of the GLI Plan OPEB.
The specific information for GLI OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is described below:
Eligible Employees
The GLI Plan was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers, and employees of political
subdivisions that elect the plan. Basic GLI coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for
employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated
retirement member contributions and accrued interest.
Benefit Amounts
The GLI Plan is a defined benefit plan with several components. The natural death benefit is equal to the
employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled. The accidental
death benefit is double the natural death benefit. In addition to basic natural and accidental death benefits,
the plan provides additional benefits provided under specific circumstances that include the following:
accidental dismemberment benefit, safety belt benefit, repatriation benefit, felonious assault benefit, and
accelerated death benefit option. The benefit amounts are subject to a reduction factor. The benefit
amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces
by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value. For covered
members with at least 30 years of service credit, the minimum benefit payable was set at $8,000 by statute
in 2015. This will be increased annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation. The
minimum benefit adjusted for the COLA was $8,643 as of June 30, 2020.
Contributions
The contribution requirements for the GLI Plan are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school
divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Plan was 1.31% of covered employee
compensation. This was allocated into an employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The
employee component was 0.79% (1.31% x 60%) and the employer component was 0.52% (1.31% x 40%).
Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution; however, the employer must pay all of
the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year
ended June 30, 2020 was 0.52% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially
determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. The actuarially determined rate, when
combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits payable during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the Western
Virginia Water Authority GLI Plan from the entity were $57,002 and $54,313 for the years ended June 30,
2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively. Contributions to the City of Roanoke GLI Plan from the entity were
$9,373 and $9,849 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively.

-70-

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 9—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)
GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB
Western Virginia Water Authority GLI Plan
At June 30, 2020, the entity reported a liability of $873,239 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB
Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total GLI OPEB liability used
to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2018, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The covered employer’s proportion of
the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s actuarially determined employer
contributions to the GLI Plan for the year ended June 30, 2019 relative to the total of the actuarially
determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2019, the participating
employer’s proportion was 0.0536% as compared to 0.0528% at June 30, 2018.
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the participating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of $29,340.
Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB
expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.
City of Roanoke GLI Plan
At June 30, 2020, the entity reported a liability of $153,278 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB
Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total GLI OPEB liability used
to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2018, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The covered employer’s proportion of
the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s actuarially determined employer
contributions to the GLI Plan for the year ended June 30, 2019 relative to the total of the actuarially
determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2019, the participating
employer’s proportion was 0.0094% as compared to 0.0101% at June 30, 2018.
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the participating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of $2,232. Since
there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense
was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.
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GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB (Continued)
At June 30, 2020, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the GLI OPEB from the following sources:
Western Virginia Water Authority GLI
Plan
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $

58,076 $

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on GLI OPEB plan investments

11,327 $

City of Roanoke GLI Plan
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources
10,194 $

1,988

-

17,936

-

3,149

Change in assumptions

55,131

26,332

9,677

4,622

Changes in proportion

33,942

-

-

5,859

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

57,002

-

9,373

-

Total

$

204,151 $

55,595 $

29,244 $

15,618

$57,002 and $9,373 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the
employer’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net
GLI OPEB Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB
expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Western Virginia Water
Authority GLI Plan

Year Ended June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

12,250 $
12,250
19,846
22,489
19,284
5,435
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City of Roanoke GLI
Plan
(768)
(768)
566
1,944
2,529
750

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 9—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions
The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age
Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The assumptions include
several employer groups as noted below. Salary increase and mortality rates included herein are for
relevant employer groups. Information for other groups can be referenced in the VRS CAFR.
Inflation

2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation:
Locality - General employees

3.50%-5.35%

Investment rate of return

6.75%, net of investment expenses,
including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the fair value of assets for the last experience study were found to
be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed
investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the
difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected
plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of return on
investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of OPEB liabilities.
Mortality Rates – Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees
Pre-Retirement:
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with scale BB
to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.
Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.
Post-Disablement:
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110%
of rates; females 125% of rates.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 9—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
Mortality Rates – Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees (Continued)
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial
assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:
Mortality Rates (pre-retirement,
post-retirement healthy, and

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and
extended final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience
at each age and service year

Disability Rates

Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate

Increased rate from 14.00% to 15.00%
Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

NET GLI OPEB Liability
The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Plan represents the plan’s total OPEB liability determined in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the measurement
date of June 30, 2019, NOL amounts for the GLI Plan are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):
GLI OPEB
Plan
Total GLI OPEB Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
GLI Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

$
$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total GLI OPEB Liability

3,390,238
1,762,972
1,627,266

52.00%

The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is
reported in the System’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in the System’s notes to the financial statements and required
supplementary information.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 9—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class (Strategy)
Public Equity
Fixed Income
Credit Strategies
Real Assets
Private Equity
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies
PIP - Private Investment Partnership
Total

Target
Allocation

Arithmetic
Long-term
Expected
Rate of Return

Weighted
Average
Long-term
Expected
Rate of Return*

34.00%
15.00%
14.00%
14.00%
14.00%
6.00%
3.00%

5.61%
0.88%
5.13%
5.27%
8.77%
3.52%
6.29%

1.91%
0.13%
0.72%
0.74%
1.23%
0.21%
0.19%

100.00%
Inflation
Expected arithmetic nominal return*

5.13%
2.50%
7.63%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into
account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the
system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The
results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of
7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is
roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 9—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made per the VRS guidance and
the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the
member rate. Through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the rate contributed by the entity for the GLI
OPEB will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General
Assembly which was 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2019 on, employers
are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of eligible employees. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability.
Sensitivity of the Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate
The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the discount
rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point
higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(5.75%)

Rate
Current Discount
(6.75%)

1% Increase
(7.75%)

Western Virginia Water
Authority's proportionate
share of the GLI Plan
Net OPEB Liability

$

1,147,194

$

873,239

$

651,069

City of Roanoke's proportionate
share of the GLI Plan
Net OPEB Liability

$

201,366

$

153,278

$

114,282

GLI Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the GLI Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS
2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2019 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from
the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2019-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 10—Risk Management:
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority joined together
with other local governments in the Commonwealth to form the Virginia Municipal League Self Insurance
Risk Pool, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program
for member governments. The Authority pays an annual premium to the pool for its workers compensation,
general liability, automobile liability, property, crime and public official’s insurance coverages. The
Agreement for Formation of the pool provides that the pool will be self-sustaining through member
premiums. Settled claims have not exceeded pool coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
Note 11—Contingencies:
The Authority is operating under the terms of a Consent Special Order dated March 18, 2005 issued by the
Virginia State Water Control Board requiring certain improvements to the Authority’s water pollution control
plant. The Authority intends to comply with the provisions of this consent order through projects already
started or future improvements.
Note 12—Arbitrage Rebate Compliance:
As of June 30, 2020 and for the year then ended, the Authority was not liable for any amounts due under
current rules governing arbitrage earnings.
Note 13—Litigation:
As of June 30, 2020, the Authority was involved in three disputes with claims totaling approximately 1.5
million dollars. The Authority carries insurance, which may cover a portion of these claims, and has a
counter claim in one of the disputes. At the present time, the Authority’s liability (if any) is not subject to
reasonable estimation and therefore no adjustment has been made to the financial statements for these
claims.
Note 14—Joint Use Facility:
The Authority entered into a cooperative agreement with the Bedford Regional Water Authority for the
operation of the Smith Mountain Lake Water Facility. Under terms of the agreement, the participants
jointly operate the facility and are responsible for their prorated share of operating cost based on usage.
The Authority reports its’ undivided interest (the assets owned and liabilities for which it is responsible)
related to this agreement in these financial statements.
Note 15—Current Refunding:
On November 22, 2019, the Authority’s refunded $836,600 of their locality compensation payments by
issuing bonds totaling $845,516. In addition to the principal due, the proceeds were used to cover issuance
cost of $4,476 and accrued interest of $4,440. The refunding reduced future debt service of $13,915 over
the remaining life of the bonds (2 years). The present value savings at a discount rate of 1.67% was
approximately $13,675.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 16—Notes Receivable:
Notes receivable at year end consist of capital contributions financed by participating localities. Each note
bears interest at 3% and principal and interest payments are due annually on October 1st and April 1st
throughout the 20 year terms. A summary of notes receivable follows:

Locality
Franklin County
Town of Rocky Mount
Totals

Issuance
Initial
Date
Amount
4/1/2019 $ 4,164,666
4/1/2019
1,119,082
$ 5,283,748

Payment
Amounts
128,309
37,408

Amount
Due in
Oustanding One Year
$ 4,043,386 $ 146,832
1,056,285
42,808
$ 5,099,671 $ 189,640

Note 17—Subsequent Event:
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because
of a new strain of coronavirus (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community as
the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19
outbreak as a pandemic based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.
The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the release date of this report. As such,
the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the Authority’s financial condition, liquidity, and future
results of operations is uncertain. Management is monitoring the global situation and impact that it may
have on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily
evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and global responses to curb its spread, the Authority is not able to
estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity
for fiscal year 2021.
Note 18— Upcoming Pronouncements:
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and
local governments for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be
reported. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2019.
Statement No. 87, Leases, requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on
the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of GASB Statements No, 14 and No. 61,
provides guidance for reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and for reporting financial statement information for certain component units. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
At June 30, 2020 (Continued)
Note 18— Upcoming Pronouncements: (Continued)
Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations
by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2)
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, addresses practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics such as leases,
assets related to pension and postemployment benefits, and reference to nonrecurring fair value
measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative literature. The effective dates differ by topic, ranging
from January 2020 to periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, establishes accounting and financial reporting
requirements related to the replacement of Interbank Offered Rates (IBORs) in hedging derivative
instruments and leases. It also identifies appropriate benchmark interest rates for hedging derivative
instruments. The requirements of this Statement, except for removal of London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) as an appropriate benchmark interest rate and the requirements related to lease modifications, are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020. The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate
benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021. All requirements
related to lease modifications in this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2021.
Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability of Payment Arrangements,
addresses issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements. This Statement also
provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.
Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), (1) defines a SBITA;
(2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2022.
Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement. No 32, (1) increases consistency and comparability
related to reporting of fiduciary component units in certain circumstances; (2) mitigates costs associated
with the reporting of certain plans as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and
(3) enhances the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for
Section 457 plans that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.
The effective dates differ based on the requirements of the Statement, ranging from June 2020 to reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
Management is currently evaluating the impact these standards will have on the financial statements when
adopted.
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Required Supplementary Information

Western Virginia Water Authority
Schedule of Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
VRS Pension Plan
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2019

Date
(1)

Proportion of
the Net Pension
Liability (Asset)
(NPLA)
(2)

Virginia Retirement System Plan
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

99.2288% $
98.6714%
98.5944%
98.7264%
100.0000%
100.0000%

Proportionate
Share of the NPLA
(3)

Covered
Payroll
(4)

(448,215) $
(1,170,056)
(954,863)
375,007
139,166
(399,624)

10,303,051
9,901,457
9,644,034
8,976,762
8,650,612
8,243,754

Proportionate
Share of the NPLA
as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll
(3)/(4)
(5)

Pension Plan's
Fiduciary Net
Position as a
Percentage of Total
Pension Liability (Asset)
(6)

-4.35%
-11.82%
-9.90%
4.18%
1.61%
-4.85%

97.38%
108.13%
107.42%
96.87%
98.74%
104.34%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2014 valuation is not available. However, additional years will
be included as they become available.
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Western Virginia Water Authority
Schedule of Employer Contributions
VRS Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 through June 30, 2020

Contractually
Required
Contribution
(1)

Date
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

Contributions in
Relation to
Contractually
Required
Contribution
(2)

$

411,061
412,555
558,333
532,816
577,393
563,177
746,059
699,973
603,821
559,636

$

411,061
412,555
558,333
532,816
577,393
563,177
746,059
699,973
603,821
559,636

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
(3)
$

-

Current year and prior year contributions are from the Authority's records.
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Employer's
Covered
Payroll
(4)
$

10,794,174
10,303,051
9,901,457
9,644,034
8,976,762
8,650,612
8,243,754
7,734,509
7,004,889
6,492,302

Contributions
as a % of
Covered
Payroll
(5)
3.81%
4.00%
5.64%
5.52%
6.43%
6.51%
9.05%
9.05%
8.62%
8.62%

Western Virginia Water Authority
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
VRS Pension Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation.
Changes of assumptions – The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the
discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial
assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:
All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:
Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014
healthy, and disabled)
projected to 2020
Retirement Rates

Increased age 50 rates, and lowered rates at older ages

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age
and service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate

Increased rate from 14.00% to 15.00%
Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%
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Western Virginia Water Authority
Schedule of Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Roanoke City Pension Plan
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2019

Date
(1)

Proportion of
the Net Pension
Liability (Asset)
(NPLA)
(2)

Roanoke City Pension Plan
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

2.5193% $
2.6667%
2.9178%
3.1591%
3.4588%
3.5119%

Proportionate
Share of the NPLA
(3)

3,500,805
3,388,704
4,191,261
5,359,429
4,847,558
4,122,465

Covered
Payroll
(4)

$

1,895,201
1,997,207
2,169,469
2,449,994
2,354,112
2,505,800

Proportionate
Share of the NPLA
as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll
(3)/(4)
(5)

Pension Plan's
Fiduciary Net
Position as a
Percentage of Total
Pension Liability (Asset)
(6)

184.72%
169.67%
193.19%
218.75%
205.92%
164.52%

132.25%
77.32%
73.96%
68.70%
73.81%
77.23%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2014 valuation is not available. However, additional years will
be included as they become available.
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Western Virginia Water Authority
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Roanoke City Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 through June 30, 2020

Contractually
Required
Contribution
(1)

Date
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

Contributions in
Relation to
Contractually
Required
Contribution
(2)

$

290,124
315,172
340,324
342,993
383,179
523,319
452,798
418,474
514,909
466,306

$

290,124
315,172
340,324
342,993
383,179
523,319
452,798
418,474
514,909
466,306

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
(3)
$

-

Current year and prior year contributions are from the Authority's records.
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Employer's
Covered
Payroll
(4)
$

1,747,735
1,895,201
1,997,207
2,169,469
2,449,994
2,354,112
2,505,800
2,682,526
2,854,263
2,955,044

Contributions
as a % of
Covered
Payroll
(5)
16.60%
16.63%
17.04%
15.81%
15.64%
22.23%
18.07%
15.60%
18.04%
15.78%

Western Virginia Water Authority
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Roanoke City Pension Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Changes in benefit terms - There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since
the prior actuarial valuation.
Changes in assumptions - For the Roanoke City Retirement Plan, the following changes in actuarial assumptions
were made effective June 30, 2016 based on the most recent experience study for the System for the five years
period ending June 30, 2016.
Interest Rate
Inflation
Mortality Rates

7.25% as of June 30, 2019
2.25% as of June 30, 2019
Mortality rates of pre-retirement and healthy annuitants
were based on 125% of RP-2000. Combined Healthy Mortality
for males and females with generation mortality projection
using Scale AA. For Disabled, mortality rates were based on
Society of Actuaries RP-2014 adjusted to 2006 Disabled
Retiree Mortality table.

COLA Supplement

1.50% as of June 30, 2019
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios
Health Insurance
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2018 through June 30, 2020
2020
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses
Effect of assumption changes or inputs
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending

$

Covered payroll

$

$

$

Authority's total OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of
covered payroll

2019

77,347 $
139,921
(38,803)
75,389
(401,867)
(148,013) $
4,119,598
3,971,585 $
12,888,482

30.81%

$

2018

71,887 $
156,844
90,434
(357,613)
(38,448) $
4,158,046
4,119,598 $
12,160,246

33.88%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be included as they become available.

-86-

$

74,108
149,623
(97,052)
(336,000)
(209,321)
4,367,367
4,158,046
12,160,246

34.19%

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Health Insurance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Valuation Date:
Measurement Date:

1/1/2020
6/30/2020

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 to pay related benefits.
Methods and assumptions used to determine OPEB liability:
Actuarial Cost Method
Entry age normal level % of salary
Discount Rate
2.21% as of June 30, 2020;
3.50% as of June 30, 2019
Inflation
Healthcare Trend Rate

Salary Increase Rates
Retirement Age
Mortality Rates

2.50% per year as of June 30, 2020;
2.50% per year as of June 30, 2019
The healthcare trend rate assumption starts at
(4.30)% in 2020 increasing to 5.60% in 2021 and
gradually grading to 4.00% by the year 2073.
Salary increase rates range from 2.50% to 5.00%
The average age at retirement is 62.5
Mortality rates for pre-retirement and postretirement employees were 125% of RP-2000
Combined Healthy mortality rates for males and
females with generational mortality projections
using Scale AA. Mortality rates for post-disabled
employees were based on RP-2014 adjusted to
2006 Disabled Retiree mortality rates for males and
females.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Schedule of Authority's Share of Net OPEB Liability
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2019

Date
(1)

Employer's
Proportion of the
Net GLI OPEB
Liability (Asset)
(2)

Employer's
Proportionate Share
of the Net GLI OPEB
Liability (Asset)
as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll
(3)/(4)
(5)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as a
Percentage of Total
GLI OPEB Liability
(6)

873,239 $ 10,444,808
802,199
9,901,457
787,116
9,644,034

8.36%
8.10%
8.16%

52.00%
51.22%
48.86%

153,278 $
153,868
170,613

8.09%
7.70%
7.86%

52.00%
51.22%
48.86%

Employer's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net GLI OPEB
Liability (Asset)
(3)

Employer's
Covered
Payroll
(4)

Western Virginia Water Authority Group Life Insurance Program
2019
2018
2017

0.0536% $
0.0528%
0.0523%

City of Roanoke Group Life Insurance Program
2019
2018
2017

0.0094% $
0.0101%
0.0113%

1,894,038
1,997,207
2,169,469

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 valuation is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2020
Contributions in
Relation to
Contractually
Required
Contribution
(2)

Contractually
Required
Contribution
(1)

Date

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
(3)

Employer's
Covered
Payroll
(4)

Contributions
as a % of
Covered
Payroll
(5)

Western Virginia Water Authority Group Life Insurance Program
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

$

57,002
54,313
51,611
50,175
43,575
41,523

$

57,002
54,313
51,611
50,175
43,575
41,523

$

-

$

10,961,923
10,444,808
9,901,457
9,644,034
8,976,762
8,650,612

0.52%
0.52%
0.52%
0.52%
0.49%
0.48%

$

-

$

1,802,500
1,894,038
1,997,207
2,169,469
2,449,994
2,354,112

0.52%
0.52%
0.54%
0.46%
0.49%
0.48%

City of Roanoke Group Life Insurance Program
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

$

9,373
9,849
10,854
9,888
11,893
11,300

$

9,373
9,849
10,854
9,888
11,893
11,300

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to 2015 is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available.
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WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation.
Changes of assumptions – The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:
Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees
Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, postUpdated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 projected
retirement healthy, and disabled)
to 2020
Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final
retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each age
and service year

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate

Lowered disability rates
No change
Increased rate from 14.00% to 15.00%
Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%
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Other Supplementary Information

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Schedule 1

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual - Water Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Final
Budget
Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Water connection charges
Bulk sales
Fire service
Other fees
Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses:
Water treatment administration
Water treatment plants/systems:
Carvin's Cove
Spring Hollow
Crystal Spring
Falling Creek
Smith Mountain Lake systems
Westlake operations
Laboratory services
Water purchases
Contract operations
Pump and storage operations
Well operations
Distribution operations
Meter operations
Reservoir operations
Internal services
Field operations
Occupancy costs
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Nonoperating Income (Expenses):
Interest earned
Tower site rental
Office building lease income
Non operating contribution
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Office building maintenance expense
Interest expense
Total nonoperating income (expenses)

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Actual

$

32,297,357
210,000
150,000
1,468,920
1,005,809

$

30,787,729
261,673
207,235
1,499,946
1,150,339

$

(1,509,628)
51,673
57,235
31,026
144,530

$

35,132,086

$

33,906,922

$

(1,225,164)

$

1,356,384

$

1,010,240

$

1,730,004
1,848,073
405,254
96,800
437,800
188,000
389,313
10,000
8,614
1,268,628
464,650
739,713
1,335,834
444,045
4,054,180
4,293,885
26,782
8,306,697

1,502,749
1,672,901
349,133
79,215
393,502
165,067
317,638
2,162
1,137,013
307,641
673,354
1,220,736
318,184
3,805,630
4,222,290
26,368
8,306,697

346,144
227,255
175,172
56,121
17,585
44,298
22,933
71,675
7,838
8,614
131,615
157,009
66,359
115,098
125,861
248,550
71,595
414
-

$

27,404,656

$

25,510,520

$

1,894,136

$

7,727,430

$

8,396,402

$

668,972

$

155,000 $
638,015
81,295
706,669
(81,295)
(2,921,130)

341,835 $
660,857
69,295
543,954
20,842
(103,217)
(2,084,038)

$

(1,421,446) $

(550,472) $

Income (loss) before contributions

$

6,305,984

Capital contributions

$

5,246,737 $

Change in net position

$

11,552,721
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$

$

7,845,930

$

5,248,710 $
13,094,640

$

186,835
22,842
(12,000)
(162,715)
20,842
(21,922)
837,092
870,974
1,539,946
1,973
1,541,919

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Schedule 2

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual - Water Pollution Control Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Final
Budget

Actual

$

31,334,439 $
90,500
1,910,000
350,000
712,537

29,806,176 $
156,750
1,750,580
483,658
881,472

(1,528,263)
66,250
(159,420)
133,658
168,935

$

34,397,476 $

33,078,636 $

(1,318,840)

$

1,011,982 $
4,713,124
1,540,500
2,048,328
113,279
428,080
214,000
1,020,679
4,054,180
26,782
5,198,751
105,900
474,293
7,969,119

792,861 $
4,662,896
1,301,614
2,054,275
113,151
346,832
204,223
859,155
3,805,630
26,368
5,047,836
84,238
487,451
7,969,119

219,121
50,228
238,886
(5,947)
128
81,248
9,777
161,524
248,550
414
150,915
21,662
(13,158)
-

$

28,918,997 $

27,755,649 $

$

5,478,479 $

5,322,987 $

(155,492)

$

190,000 $
81,295
(81,295)
(1,633,244)

486,946 $
69,295
18,204
(103,217)
(1,518,540)

296,946
(12,000)
18,204
(21,922)
114,704

$

(1,443,244) $

(1,047,312) $

395,932

Income (loss) before contributions

$

4,035,235 $

4,275,675 $

240,440

Capital contributions

$

4,858,955 $

4,818,750 $

(40,205)

Change in net position

$

8,894,190 $

9,094,425 $

200,235

Operating Revenues:
Water pollution control charges
Sewer connection charges
Bulk sales
Septic disposal fees
Other fees
Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses:
Water pollution control:
Administration
Operations
Biosolids handling
Maintenance
Contract operations
Collection system metering
Metering and lift stations
Pretreatment
Internal services
Occupancy costs
Field operations
Westlake system
Botetourt system
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Income from Operations
Nonoperating Income (Expenses):
Interest earned
Office building lease income
Gain (loss) on sale of assets
Office building maintenance expense
Interest expense
Total nonoperating income (expenses)
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1,163,348

Statistical Section
This part of Western Virginia Water Authority's comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about
the Authority's overall financial health.
Contents
Financial Trends − Tables 1-6
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Authority's financial performance and well-being have changed over time as well as
show how the revenue and expenses are split between the water and sewer
departments.
Revenue Trends and Capacity − Tables 7-10
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the Authority's
most significant revenue sources, user rates, and the growth in water and sewer
connections.
Debt Service Trends and Capacity − Tables 11-12
These schedules present trend information to help the reader assess the Authority's
current levels of outstanding debt and the capacity to acquire additional debt with
appropriate revenue coverage.
Demographic and Economic Information − Tables 13-14
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators for the participating
localities to help the reader understand the environment within which the Authority's
financial activities take place.
Operating Information − Tables 15-18
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Authority's financial report relates to the
services the Authority provides and the activities it performs.
Sources:
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the audited
financial reports for the relevant year.
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$

$

$

$

253,777,268

240,257,886
13,519,382

2020

341,305,885

314,740,182
26,565,703

2020

$

Total Western Virginia Water Authority

595,083,153

554,998,068
40,085,085
$

$

$

$

$

$

572,894,088

530,028,807
42,865,281

2019

244,682,843

228,054,486
16,628,357

2019

328,211,245

301,974,321
26,236,924

2019

$

$

$

$

$

$

552,518,714

498,134,373
54,384,341

2018

235,449,286

210,243,831
25,205,455

2018

317,069,428

287,890,542
29,178,886

2018

Restatements have been applied retroactively to the extent possible with available data.

$

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

2020

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)

Total water pollution control
fund net position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Water Pollution Control Fund

Total water fund net position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Water Fund

Net Position By Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

484,634,713
49,219,528
533,854,241

$

2017

227,706,547

201,691,716
26,014,831

2017

306,147,694

282,942,997
23,204,697

$

$

$

$

$

2017

$

$

$

$

$

$

523,903,603

472,501,267
51,402,336

2016

223,944,602

197,395,104
26,549,498

2016

299,959,001

$

$

$

$

$

$

2015

568,781,445

524,425,307
44,356,138

2015

278,618,927

253,826,266
24,792,661

2015

290,162,518

270,599,041
19,563,477

Fiscal Year

275,106,163
24,852,838

2016

$

$

$

$

$

$

562,076,273

517,974,747
44,101,526

2014

274,560,799

249,680,507
24,880,292

2014

287,515,474

268,294,240
19,221,234

2014

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

552,587,106

$

$

$

$

509,742,484
42,844,622

2013

270,058,678

245,121,209
24,937,469

2013

282,528,428

264,621,275
17,907,153

2013

550,191,907

516,626,626
33,565,281

2012

265,382,931

244,620,766
20,762,165

2012

284,808,976

272,005,860
12,803,116

2012

$

$

$

$

$

$

541,001,479

508,823,556
32,177,923

2011

259,387,561

237,434,519
21,953,042

2011

281,613,918

271,389,037
10,224,881

2011

Table 1

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 2

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Water Fund

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Operating
Revenues
$

25,593,681 $
26,495,481
27,062,236
28,597,148
28,344,557
30,594,647
31,692,276
32,535,962
33,024,141
33,906,922

Operating
Expenses

Operating
Income (Loss)

21,474,008 $
23,802,637
23,710,753
24,725,547
24,106,927
22,493,540
23,146,458
23,850,906
24,612,088
25,510,520

Total
Nonoperating
Revenues/
(Expenses)

4,119,673 $
2,692,844
3,351,483
3,871,601
4,237,630
8,101,107
8,545,818
8,685,056
8,412,053
8,396,402

Income/(Loss)
before Capital
Contributions

(2,034,901) $
(2,231,520)
(6,633,646)
(1,479,084)
(571,705)
33,364
(800,091)
(623,955)
(475,385)
(550,472)

2,084,772 $
461,324
(3,282,163)
2,392,517
3,665,925
8,134,471
7,745,727
8,061,101
7,936,668
7,845,930

Capital
Contributions
1,942,203 $
2,733,734
1,001,615
2,594,529
1,412,193
10,425,679
987,935
2,860,633
3,205,149
5,248,710

Change in
Net
Position
4,026,975
3,195,058
(2,280,548)
4,987,046
5,078,118
18,560,150
8,733,662
10,921,734
11,141,817
13,094,640

Water Pollution Control Fund

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Operating
Revenues
$

27,690,477 $
28,548,004
29,003,472
30,486,279
28,850,165
31,427,048
31,414,514
31,773,686
33,164,342
33,078,636

Operating
Expenses

Operating
Income (Loss)

23,201,862 $
22,850,559
23,727,560
24,604,677
23,734,208
23,976,771
24,904,557
25,668,356
25,429,006
27,755,649

Total
Nonoperating
Revenues/
(Expenses)

4,488,615 $
5,697,445
5,275,912
5,881,602
5,115,957
7,450,277
6,509,957
6,105,330
7,735,336
5,322,987

Income/(Loss)
before Capital
Contributions

(2,044,259) $
(2,234,852)
(2,011,990)
(4,565,530)
(1,713,406)
(2,368,015)
(2,107,103)
(1,440,239)
(1,091,578)
(1,047,312)

2,444,356 $
3,462,593
3,263,922
1,316,072
3,402,551
5,082,262
4,402,854
4,665,091
6,643,758
4,275,675

Capital
Contributions
1,478,042 $
2,532,777
1,411,825
3,186,049
3,674,333
3,776,313
2,081,666
3,077,648
2,589,799
4,818,750

Change in
Net
Position
3,922,398
5,995,370
4,675,747
4,502,121
7,076,884
8,858,575
6,484,520
7,742,739
9,233,557
9,094,425

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Operating
Revenues
$

53,284,158 $
55,043,485
56,065,708
59,083,427
57,194,722
62,021,695
63,106,790
64,309,648
66,188,483
66,985,558

Operating
Expenses
44,675,870 $
46,653,196
47,438,313
49,330,224
47,841,135
46,470,311
48,051,015
49,519,262
50,041,094
53,266,169

Operating
Income (Loss)

Total
Nonoperating
Revenues/
(Expenses)

8,608,288 $
8,390,289
8,627,395
9,753,203
9,353,587
15,551,384
15,055,775
14,790,386
16,147,389
13,719,389

Income/(Loss)
before Capital
Contributions

(4,079,160) $
(4,466,372)
(8,645,636)
(6,044,614)
(2,285,111)
(2,334,651)
(2,907,194)
(2,064,194)
(1,566,963)
(1,597,784)

Restatements have been applied retroactively to the extent possible with available data.
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4,529,128 $
3,923,917
(18,241)
3,708,589
7,068,476
13,216,733
12,148,581
12,726,192
14,580,426
12,121,605

Capital
Contributions
3,420,245 $
5,266,511
2,413,440
5,780,578
5,086,526
14,201,992
3,069,601
5,938,281
5,794,948
10,067,460

Change in
Net
Position
7,949,373
9,190,428
2,395,199
9,489,167
12,155,002
27,418,725
15,218,182
18,664,473
20,375,374
22,189,065

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 3

Operating Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Water Fund
Fiscal
Year

Customer
Charges

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 22,679,166 $
23,718,542
24,292,043
26,046,352
25,460,809
28,039,511
28,650,637
29,488,341
30,055,104
30,787,729

Connection
Fees
340,800 $
244,009
137,376
163,304
268,972
199,344
208,811
202,362
168,350
261,673

Bulk
Sales
388,756 $
415,012
424,648
547,897
413,312
145,539
134,933
141,951
158,745
207,235

Fire
Service
1,256,060 $
1,257,747
1,255,954
1,282,672
1,293,822
1,390,143
1,383,328
1,408,434
1,454,906
1,499,946

Other
Revenues
928,899 $
860,171
952,215
556,923
907,642
820,110
1,314,567
1,294,874
1,187,036
1,150,339

Total
25,593,681
26,495,481
27,062,236
28,597,148
28,344,557
30,594,647
31,692,276
32,535,962
33,024,141
33,906,922

Water Pollution Control Fund
Fiscal
Year

Customer
Charges

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 24,245,313 $
25,252,650
25,604,607
27,374,347
25,864,309
28,190,896
28,122,335
28,620,774
29,275,296
29,806,176

Connection
Fees
56,750 $
73,495
56,375
88,070
73,050
73,625
122,380
95,750
86,400
156,750

Bulk
Sales
2,180,514 $
2,059,003
2,057,766
2,655,458
2,257,530
2,550,203
1,836,774
1,645,759
2,299,175
1,750,580

Fire
Service
- $
483,658

Other
Revenues
1,207,900 $
1,162,856
1,284,724
368,404
655,276
612,324
1,333,025
1,411,403
1,503,471
881,472

Total
27,690,477
28,548,004
29,003,472
30,486,279
28,850,165
31,427,048
31,414,514
31,773,686
33,164,342
33,078,636

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)
Fiscal
Year

Customer
Charges

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 46,924,479 $
48,971,192
49,896,650
53,420,699
51,325,118
56,230,407
56,772,972
58,109,115
59,330,400
60,593,905

Connection
Fees
397,550 $
317,504
193,751
251,374
342,022
272,969
331,191
298,112
254,750
418,423

Bulk
Sales
2,569,270 $
2,474,015
2,482,414
3,203,355
2,670,842
2,695,742
1,971,707
1,787,710
2,457,920
1,957,815
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Fire
Service
1,256,060 $
1,257,747
1,255,954
1,282,672
1,293,822
1,390,143
1,383,328
1,408,434
1,454,906
1,983,604

Other
Revenues
2,136,799 $
2,023,027
2,236,939
925,327
1,562,918
1,432,434
2,647,592
2,706,277
2,690,507
2,031,811

Total
53,284,158
55,043,485
56,065,708
59,083,427
57,194,722
62,021,695
63,106,790
64,309,648
66,188,483
66,985,558

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 4

Operating Expenses
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Fund
2020
Water Purchases
$
Water Treatment
Contract Operations
Pump & Storage Operations
Reservoir & Well Operations
Meter Operations
Water Distribution
Internal Services
Occupancy Cost
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

2,162 $
4,931,876
1,137,013
625,825
1,894,090
4,780,859
3,805,630
26,368
8,306,697

2019
7,165 $
4,637,924
18,298
1,644,778
696,280
1,532,228
4,553,201
3,552,951
25,582
7,943,681

2018
1,955 $
3,844,175
21,286
1,506,112
729,604
1,842,268
4,098,177
4,294,457
24,505
7,488,367

2017
1,727 $
3,960,397
17,651
1,396,956
502,054
1,805,187
4,419,301
4,084,798
24,433
6,933,954

Fiscal Year
2016
2015
1,659 $
3,788,986
21,556
1,008,631
459,828
1,677,561
4,277,866
4,068,471
20,926
7,168,056

1,826 $
3,771,537
14,264
1,031,549
464,107
1,603,979
4,087,283
3,804,364
22,120
9,305,898

2014
1,823 $
4,223,470
13,510
1,006,816
498,223
1,687,302
4,127,444
3,868,453
20,660
9,277,846

2013
13,614 $
4,222,046
13,075
999,177
622,854
1,523,192
3,785,169
3,772,612
24,292
8,734,722

2012
45,304 $
4,189,001
12,495
995,066
695,203
1,417,095
3,594,510
3,597,429
24,862
9,231,672

2011
73,369
3,936,928
11,793
850,161
542,610
1,630,937
3,602,627
3,556,784
24,986
7,243,813

$ 25,510,520 $ 24,612,088 $ 23,850,906 $ 23,146,458 $ 22,493,540 $ 24,106,927 $ 24,725,547 $ 23,710,753 $ 23,802,637 $ 21,474,008

Water Pollution Control Fund
2020
WPC Utility Administration
$
WPC Operations
WPC Maintenance
Contract Operations
Biosolids Handling
WPC Distribution
Inflow & Infiltration Control
Metering & Lift Stations
Occupancy Cost
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

5,457,646 $
4,662,896
2,054,275
197,389
1,301,614
5,535,287
551,055
26,368
7,969,119

2019
4,695,251 $
4,740,064
1,887,451
217,115
936,103
3,800,125
911,061
358,897
25,582
7,857,357

2018
4,879,362 $
3,925,718
1,887,471
299,555
1,337,939
3,815,666
1,225,231
394,873
24,505
7,878,036

2017
4,284,332 $
4,219,644
1,806,221
180,510
1,258,615
3,840,369
1,086,491
431,223
22,639
7,774,513

Fiscal Year
2016
2015
4,391,189 $
4,276,047
1,947,470
149,539
1,217,458
3,550,305
1,134,758
436,005
20,926
6,853,074

4,244,370 $
4,172,866
1,817,113
115,032
1,097,311
3,322,875
1,293,613
348,152
22,120
7,300,756

2014
4,358,513 $
4,124,422
1,931,336
99,507
1,544,215
3,610,335
1,263,527
332,568
20,660
7,319,594

2013
4,221,649 $
3,871,990
1,884,127
115,437
2,178,595
3,298,953
1,200,428
257,820
24,292
6,674,269

2012
3,926,939 $
3,914,759
1,862,114
81,724
1,881,558
3,026,784
1,155,950
417,690
24,862
6,558,179

2011
3,693,750
3,989,367
1,917,953
113,676
1,685,592
2,766,775
1,057,237
424,257
24,986
7,528,269

$ 27,755,649 $ 25,429,006 $ 25,668,356 $ 24,904,557 $ 23,976,771 $ 23,734,208 $ 24,604,677 $ 23,727,560 $ 22,850,559 $ 23,201,862

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)
2020

2019

2018

2017

Fiscal Year
2016
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

Utility Administration
$ 9,263,276 $ 8,248,202 $ 9,173,819 $ 8,369,130 $ 8,459,660 $ 8,048,734 $ 8,226,966 $ 7,994,261 $ 7,524,368 $ 7,250,534
Operations and Maintenance
10,571,488
10,736,214
10,212,014
9,928,223
9,540,632
9,218,910
9,361,116
9,029,852
8,978,456
9,056,497
Distribution
10,316,146
8,353,326
7,913,843
8,259,670
7,828,171
7,410,158
7,737,779
7,084,122
6,621,294
6,369,402
Water Purchases
2,162
7,165
1,955
1,727
1,659
1,826
1,823
13,614
45,304
73,369
Water Treatment
4,931,876
4,637,924
3,844,175
3,960,397
3,788,986
3,771,537
4,223,470
4,222,046
4,189,001
3,936,928
Biosolids Handling
1,301,614
936,103
1,337,939
1,258,615
1,217,458
1,097,311
1,544,215
2,178,595
1,881,558
1,685,592
Inflow & Infiltration Control
911,061
1,225,231
1,086,491
1,134,758
1,293,613
1,263,527
1,200,428
1,155,950
1,057,237
Metering & Lift Stations
551,055
358,897
394,873
431,223
436,005
348,152
332,568
257,820
417,690
424,257
Occupancy Cost
52,736
51,164
49,010
47,072
41,852
44,240
41,320
48,584
49,724
49,972
Depreciation and amortization
16,275,816
15,801,038
15,366,403
14,708,467
14,021,130
16,606,654
16,597,440
15,408,991
15,789,851
14,772,082
Total Operating Expenses

$ 53,266,169 $ 50,041,094 $ 49,519,262 $ 48,051,015 $ 46,470,311 $ 47,841,135 $ 49,330,224 $ 47,438,313 $ 46,653,196 $ 44,675,870
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Table 5

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Fund

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Interest
Earned
$

76,813 $
82,402
51,110
25,095
17,230
25,459
72,331
347,712
465,200
341,835

Rental
Income

Gain (Loss)
on Disposal
of Assets

489,614 $
(193,647) $
472,312
(96,364)
509,273
(4,653,555)
546,830
15,630
587,917
45,144
617,475
1,114,048
633,115
(173,635)
719,081
3,408
757,539
28,127
730,152
20,842

Insurance
Recoveries

Rental
Expense

30,493 $
23,209
46,675
92,660
30,887
-

(138,346) $
(120,203)
(121,334)
(117,418)
(125,829)
(122,976)
(141,648)
(128,439)
(120,599)
(103,217)

Interest
Expense
(2,920,965) $
(3,214,585)
(3,081,726)
(2,657,611)
(1,817,881)
(2,202,770)
(1,929,990)
(2,298,009)
(2,329,826)
(2,084,038)

Nonoperating
Contributions
621,137 $
621,709
615,911
615,730
690,827
602,128
739,736
732,292
724,174
543,954

Total
Nonoperating
Income/
(Expenses)
(2,034,901)
(2,231,520)
(6,633,646)
(1,479,084)
(571,705)
33,364
(800,091)
(623,955)
(475,385)
(550,472)

Water Pollution Control Fund

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Interest
Earned
$

204,887 $
155,208
100,354
56,651
44,840
62,754
115,549
351,586
501,009
486,946

Rental
Income
127,618 $
93,878
92,675
93,322
97,195
97,471
100,326
104,635
96,213
69,295

Gain (Loss)
on Disposal
of Assets
12,554 $
51,187
63,796
38,377
23,650
32,566
5,004
6,990
11,970
18,204

Insurance
Recoveries

Rental
Expense

1,194 $
4,620
29,963
1,493
241
-

(138,346) $
(120,203)
(121,334)
(117,418)
(125,829)
(122,976)
(141,648)
(128,439)
(120,599)
(103,217)

Interest
Expense
(2,252,166) $
(2,419,542)
(2,177,444)
(1,883,627)
(1,753,503)
(2,437,830)
(2,186,334)
(1,775,011)
(1,580,171)
(1,518,540)

Nonoperating
Contributions
- $
(2,754,328)
-

Total
Nonoperating
Income/
(Expenses)
(2,044,259)
(2,234,852)
(2,011,990)
(4,565,530)
(1,713,406)
(2,368,015)
(2,107,103)
(1,440,239)
(1,091,578)
(1,047,312)

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Interest
Earned
$

281,700 $
237,610
151,464
81,746
62,070
88,213
187,880
699,298
966,209
828,781

Rental
Income

Gain (Loss)
on Disposal
of Assets

617,232 $
(181,093) $
566,190
(45,177)
601,948
(4,589,759)
640,152
54,007
685,112
68,794
714,946
1,146,614
733,441
(168,631)
823,716
10,398
853,752
40,097
799,447
39,046

Insurance
Recoveries

Rental
Expense

31,687 $
27,829
76,638
94,153
31,128
-
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(276,692) $
(240,406)
(242,668)
(234,836)
(251,658)
(245,952)
(283,296)
(256,878)
(241,198)
(206,434)

Interest
Expense
(5,173,131) $
(5,634,127)
(5,259,170)
(4,541,238)
(3,571,384)
(4,640,600)
(4,116,324)
(4,073,020)
(3,909,997)
(3,602,578)

Nonoperating
Contributions
621,137 $
621,709
615,911
(2,138,598)
690,827
602,128
739,736
732,292
724,174
543,954

Total
Nonoperating
Income/
(Expenses)
(4,079,160)
(4,466,372)
(8,645,636)
(6,044,614)
(2,285,111)
(2,334,651)
(2,907,194)
(2,064,194)
(1,566,963)
(1,597,784)

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 6

Annual Capital Contributions by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Water Fund
Water
Availability
Fees

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

649,300
549,073
510,665
593,843
890,376
815,750
771,828
1,322,250
963,250
1,135,500

Developer
Contributions
$

786,520
1,156,080
440,450
1,197,186
316,900
3,322,487
181,220
807,785
1,295,170
1,201,525

Governments
$

506,383
1,028,581
50,500
803,500
204,917
832,744
34,887
730,598
946,729
2,711,685

Other
$

Total

200,000

$

1,942,203
2,733,734
1,001,615
2,594,529
1,412,193
4,970,981
987,935
2,860,633
3,205,149
5,248,710

Water Pollution Control Fund
Sewer
Availability
Fees

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

625,500
515,125
524,225
490,375
726,500
842,500
825,500
1,274,400
1,053,350
1,043,000

Developer
Contributions
$

490,942
1,159,360
148,665
759,510
347,910
1,574,298
220,450
710,295
632,950
690,270

Governments
$

361,600
858,292
738,935
1,936,164
2,599,923
809,475
1,035,716
1,092,953
903,499
3,085,480

Other
$

Total
-

$

1,478,042
2,532,777
1,411,825
3,186,049
3,674,333
3,226,273
2,081,666
3,077,648
2,589,799
4,818,750

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Availability
Fees
$

1,274,800
1,064,198
1,034,890
1,084,218
1,616,876
1,658,250
1,597,328
2,596,650
2,016,600
2,178,500

Developer
Contributions
$

1,277,462
2,315,440
589,115
1,956,696
664,810
4,896,785
401,670
1,518,080
1,928,120
1,891,795
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Governments
$

867,983
1,886,873
789,435
2,739,664
2,804,840
1,642,219
1,070,603
1,823,551
1,850,228
5,797,165

Other
$

200,000

Total
$

3,420,245
5,266,511
2,413,440
5,780,578
5,086,526
8,197,254
3,069,601
5,938,281
5,794,948
10,067,460

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 7

Water Produced, Consumed and Wastewater Treated
Gallons In Thousands
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Gallons of
Water
Produced
7,487,117
6,961,800
7,038,139
7,196,846
6,971,725
7,178,773
7,459,384
7,362,390
6,861,308
6,645,576

Gallons of
Water
Consumed

Gallons of
Water
Unbilled

5,188,055
5,183,625
5,148,885
5,289,324
5,074,953
5,272,062
5,133,048
5,224,934
5,127,958
5,055,073

2,299,062
1,778,175
1,889,254
1,907,522
1,896,772
1,906,711
2,326,336
2,137,456
1,733,350
1,590,503

(1) Regional flow
Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Billing & Customer Service.
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Average
Percent
Unbilled
31%
26%
27%
27%
27%
27%
31%
29%
25%
24%

Gallons of
Wastewater
Treated (1)
13,550,000
13,468,900
12,951,500
14,594,100
13,351,400
16,324,800
13,714,900
11,490,800
16,591,900
13,772,300

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 8

Number of Customers
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Water

Sewer

Total

Residential Commercial Industrial Residential Commercial Industrial

Bulk

Water

Sewer

2011

53,266

4,440

35

47,317

4,082

29

3

57,741

51,431

2012

53,642

4,465

33

47,438

4,094

27

3

58,140

51,562

2013

53,910

4,536

23

47,644

4,139

18

3

58,469

51,804

2014

52,374

5,123

25

47,659

4,190

14

3

57,522

51,866

2015

52,560

5,157

27

47,872

4,086

12

3

57,744

51,973

2016

53,831

5,257

34

49,704

4,491

22

2

59,122

54,219

2017

56,551

5,578

35

51,292

4,572

23

2

62,163

55,889

2018

57,037

5,615

33

51,567

4,502

19

2

62,685

56,090

2019

57,342

5,597

34

51,876

4,611

23

2

62,973

56,512

2020

57,729

5,699

34

52,115

4,601

23

2

63,462

56,741

Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Billing & Customer Service.
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Table 9

Schedule of User Rates (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2020

2019

2018

2017

Fiscal Year
2016
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

Water Rates:
City of Roanoke Residents (4)
Water Fixed Rate
Water Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$12.75
3.20
28.75

$12.25
3.00
27.25

$11.75
3.00
26.75

$11.25
3.00
26.25

$10.75
3.00
25.75

$10.25
3.00
25.25

$9.50
3.00
24.50

$8.65
3.00
23.65

$8.65
3.00
23.65

$7.75
3.00
22.75

County of Roanoke Residents (4)
Water Fixed Rate
Water Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$12.75
3.20
28.75

$12.25
3.00
27.25

$11.75
3.00
26.75

$11.25
3.00
26.25

$10.75
3.00
25.75

$10.25
3.00
25.25

$9.50
3.00
24.50

$8.65
3.00
23.65

$8.65
3.00
23.65

$7.75
3.00
22.75

County of Franklin Residents (2)
Water Fixed Rate
Water Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$30.00
5.00
30.00

$32.00
8.00
32.00

$32.00
8.00
32.00

County of Botetourt Residents (3)
Water Fixed Rate
Water Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$12.25
4.75
36.00

$12.25
4.75
36.00

$12.25
4.75
36.00

$12.25
4.75
36.00

$12.25
4.75
36.00

na
na
na

na
na
na

na
na
na

na
na
na

na
na
na

Sewer Rates:
City of Roanoke Residents (4)
Sewer Fixed Rate
Sewer Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$16.50
3.75
35.25

$15.50
3.75
34.25

$14.75
3.75
33.50

$14.25
3.75
33.00

$13.75
3.75
32.50

$13.00
3.75
31.75

$12.75
3.75
31.50

$12.25
3.50
29.75

$12.10
3.50
29.60

$11.20
3.50
28.70

County of Roanoke Residents (4)
Sewer Fixed Rate
Sewer Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$16.50
3.75
35.25

$15.50
3.75
34.25

$14.75
3.75
33.50

$14.25
3.75
33.00

$13.75
3.75
32.50

$13.00
3.75
31.75

$12.25
3.75
31.00

$12.25
3.50
29.75

$12.10
3.50
29.60

$11.20
3.50
28.70

County of Franklin Residents (2)
Sewer Fixed Rate
Sewer Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$16.50
4.20
37.50

$15.50
6.00
45.50

$14.75
6.35
46.50

$14.25
6.75
48.00

$11.00
7.60
49.00

$11.00
7.60
49.00

$11.00
7.60
49.00

$11.00
7.60
49.00

$11.00
7.60
49.00

$11.00
7.60
49.00

County of Botetourt Residents (3)
Sewer Fixed Rate
Sewer Variable Rate
Average monthly residential bill

$16.50
3.75
35.25

$15.50
3.75
34.25

$14.75
3.75
33.50

$14.25
3.75
33.00

$14.00
3.75
32.75

na
na
na

na
na
na

na
na
na

na
na
na

na
na
na

Residential bill based on 5/8 inch meter using 5,000 gallons
(1) Rates effective January 1 of each year
(2) County of Franklin joined the Authority in fiscal year 2010, rates are not applicable for years before fiscal year 2010
(3) County of Botetourt joined the Authority in fiscal year 2016, rates are not applicable for years before fiscal year 2016
(4) Rates approved by the Western Virginia Water Authority Board of Directors.
Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Billing & Customer Service.
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Table 10

Principal Customers
Comparison of June 30, 2020 and 2011

Customer

Fiscal Year 2020
Water Consumption
Sewer Flow
in 000/gals
% of System in 000/gals % of System

Norfolk Southern Corporation
Coca Cola
Carilion
Roanoke Redevelopment and Housing Authority
Steel Dynamics Roanoke
Dynax America Corporation
Hollins University
Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc.
ITT Exelis
City of Roanoke Schools
Total consumption (principal customers)
Balance from other customers
Total system annual consumption

Customer

160,748
118,099
98,323
83,212
50,897
44,024
38,621
33,174
29,036
28,648

3.2%
2.3%
1.9%
1.6%
1.0%
0.9%
0.8%
0.7%
0.6%
0.5%

187,421
22,507
78,258
82,382
37,475
44,024
29,311
33,174
21,006
28,587

4.7%
0.6%
2.0%
2.0%
0.9%
1.1%
0.7%
0.8%
0.5%
0.7%

684,782

13.5%

564,145

14.0%

4,370,291

86.5%

3,469,079

86.0%

5,055,073

100.0%

4,033,224

100.0%

Fiscal Year 2011
Water Consumption
Sewer Flow
in 000/gals
% of System in 000/gals % of System

Wometco Coca Cola
Carilion Hospitals
Norfolk Southern Corporation
Roanoke Redevelopment and Housing Authority
ITT
Steel Dynamics
Snyder Hunt Corporation
Pepsi Bottling Group
Hollins University
Maple Leaf Bakery
Total consumption (principal customers)
Balance from other customers
Total system annual consumption

129,111
115,811
90,291
87,165
65,914
62,159
58,844
38,996
35,597
25,781

2.5%
2.2%
1.7%
1.7%
1.3%
1.2%
1.1%
0.8%
0.7%
0.5%

46,790
94,294
38,143
87,165
57,598
22,047
58,844
25,911
25,781

1.1%
2.2%
0.9%
2.0%
1.4%
0.5%
1.4%
0.0%
0.6%
0.6%

709,669

13.7%

456,573

10.7%

4,478,386

86.3%

3,828,373

89.3%

5,188,055

100.0%

4,284,946

100.0%

Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Billing & Customer Service.
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Table 11

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Fund
Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Revenue
Bonds
$

61,645,717 $
79,352,270
76,461,851
74,404,938
70,843,099
67,976,059
65,094,505
75,426,147
75,254,507
68,674,647

Locality
Compensation
Payments
8,284,866 $
6,560,446
4,914,900
3,184,900
2,863,500
2,300,800
1,953,900
1,598,200
1,224,800
845,516

Total
69,930,583 $
85,912,716
81,376,751
77,589,838
73,706,599
70,276,859
67,048,405
77,024,347
76,479,307
69,520,163

Per
Connection
1,200
1,472
1,391
1,322
1,250
1,165
1,108
1,267
1,252
1,133

Water Pollution Control Fund
Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Revenue
Bonds
$

55,664,136 $
66,025,906
68,224,251
72,117,929
73,806,707
76,034,133
70,724,505
64,216,604
58,015,111
57,463,825

Locality
Compensation
Payments
11,475,000 $
10,901,817
8,475,000
10,554,359
9,774,390
9,694,420
8,990,778
8,013,990
7,031,409
6,023,156

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)
Locality
Fiscal
Revenue
Compensation
Year
Bonds
Payments
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

117,309,853 $
145,378,176
144,686,102
146,522,867
144,649,806
144,010,192
135,819,010
139,642,751
133,269,618
126,138,472

19,759,866 $
17,462,263
13,389,900
13,739,259
12,637,890
11,995,220
10,944,678
9,612,190
8,256,209
6,868,672
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Total
67,139,136 $
76,927,723
76,699,251
82,672,288
83,581,097
85,728,553
79,715,283
72,230,594
65,046,520
63,486,981

Total
137,069,719 $
162,840,439
158,076,002
160,262,126
157,287,696
156,005,412
146,763,688
149,254,941
141,525,827
133,007,144

Per
Connection
1,301
1,489
1,481
1,591
1,603
1,543
1,430
1,291
1,158
1,125

Per
Connection
1,249
1,480
1,434
1,448
1,416
1,346
1,262
1,279
1,207
1,129

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 12

Schedule of Debt Service & Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Fund

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Operating
Revenues
$

25,593,681 $
26,495,481
27,062,236
28,597,148
28,344,557
30,594,647
31,692,276
32,535,962
33,024,141
33,906,922

Availability
Fees

Interest
Earnings

649,300 $
549,073
510,665
593,843
890,376
815,750
771,828
1,322,250
963,250
1,135,500

76,813 $
82,402
51,110
25,095
17,230
25,459
72,331
347,712
465,200
341,835

Nonoperating
Revenues
1,141,244 $
1,117,230
1,171,859
1,270,850
1,354,775
2,333,651
1,372,851
1,453,781
1,509,840
1,294,948

Gross
Revenues
27,461,038 $
28,244,186
28,795,870
30,486,936
30,606,938
33,769,507
33,909,286
35,659,705
35,962,431
36,679,205

Operating
Expenses
(excluding
depreciation)
14,230,195 $
14,570,965
14,976,031
15,447,701
14,801,029
15,325,484
16,212,504
16,362,539
16,668,407
17,203,823

Nonoperating
Expenses
138,346 $
120,203
121,334
117,418
125,829
122,976
141,648
128,439
120,599
103,217

Net
Available
Revenues
13,092,497 $
13,553,018
13,698,505
14,921,817
15,680,080
18,321,047
17,555,134
19,168,727
19,173,425
19,372,165

Debt
Service
Requirements
7,594,064
8,120,261
8,468,400
8,871,666
7,463,889
8,399,023
7,245,574
7,245,574
8,745,177
9,892,532

Coverage
Ratio
1.72
1.67
1.62
1.68
2.10
2.18
2.42
2.65
2.19
1.96

Water Pollution Control Fund

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Operating
Revenues
$

27,690,477 $
28,548,004
29,003,472
30,486,279
28,850,165
31,427,048
31,414,514
31,773,686
33,164,342
33,078,636

Availability
Fees

Interest
Earnings

625,500 $
515,125
524,225
490,375
726,500
842,500
825,500
1,274,400
1,053,350
1,043,000

204,887 $
155,208
100,354
56,651
44,840
62,754
115,549
351,586
501,009
486,946

Nonoperating
Revenues
128,812 $
98,498
122,638
133,192
121,086
130,037
105,330
111,625
108,183
87,499

Gross
Revenues
28,649,676 $
29,316,835
29,750,689
31,166,497
29,742,591
32,462,339
32,460,893
33,511,297
34,826,884
34,696,081

Operating
Expenses
(excluding
depreciation)
15,673,593 $
16,292,380
17,053,291
17,285,083
16,433,452
17,123,697
17,130,044
17,790,320
17,571,649
19,786,530

Nonoperating
Expenses
138,346 $
120,203
121,334
117,418
125,829
122,976
141,648
128,439
120,599
103,217

Net
Available
Revenues
12,837,737 $
12,904,252
12,576,064
13,763,996
13,183,310
15,215,666
15,189,201
15,592,538
17,134,636
14,806,334

Debt
Service
Requirements
6,345,274
6,601,266
8,484,702
7,466,653
7,965,573
11,391,519
9,318,081
9,276,408
8,776,476
8,161,885

Coverage
Ratio
2.02
1.95
1.48
1.84
1.66
1.34
1.63
1.68
1.95
1.81

Western Virginia Water Authority (Total all funds)

Fiscal
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Operating
Revenues
$

53,284,158 $
55,043,485
56,065,708
59,083,427
57,194,722
62,021,695
63,106,790
64,309,648
66,188,483
66,985,558

Availability
Fees
1,274,800 $
1,064,198
1,034,890
1,084,218
1,616,876
1,658,250
1,597,328
2,596,650
2,016,600
2,178,500

Interest
Earnings
281,700 $
237,610
151,464
81,746
62,070
88,213
187,880
699,298
966,209
828,781

Nonoperating
Revenues
1,270,056 $
1,215,728
1,294,497
1,404,042
1,475,861
2,463,688
1,478,181
1,565,406
1,618,023
1,382,447

Gross
Revenues
56,110,714 $
57,561,021
58,546,559
61,653,433
60,349,529
66,231,846
66,370,179
69,171,002
70,789,315
71,375,286
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Expenses
(excluding
depreciation)
29,903,788 $
30,863,345
32,029,322
32,732,784
31,234,481
32,449,181
33,342,548
34,152,859
34,240,056
36,990,353

Nonoperating
Expenses
276,692 $
240,406
242,668
234,836
251,658
245,952
283,296
256,878
241,198
206,434

Net
Available
Revenues
25,930,234 $
26,457,270
26,274,569
28,685,813
28,863,390
33,536,713
32,744,335
34,761,265
36,308,061
34,178,499

Debt
Service
Requirements
13,939,338
14,721,527
16,953,102
16,338,319
15,429,462
19,790,542
16,563,655
16,521,982
17,521,653
18,054,417

Coverage
Ratio
1.86
1.80
1.55
1.76
1.87
1.69
1.98
2.10
2.07
1.89
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(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

97,061 $
97,206
98,641
98,913
99,320
99,681
99,644
99,837
99,920
99,348

36,948
39,100
38,453
39,385
39,385
39,385
40,947
42,263
41,946
43,451

92,376 $
92,687
93,256
92,703
93,569
93,775
93,924
93,735
93,672
93,805

City
County of
Per Capita
Roanoke
Income (1) Population (2)

Estimate from City of Roanoke
Estimate from County of Roanoke
Estimate from County of Franklin
Estimate from County of Botetourt
Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Fiscal
Year

City of
Roanoke
Population (1)

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

40,688
42,288
42,288
45,577
48,047
48,384
49,860
52,248
52,248
52,248

56,225 $
56,419
56,616
56,616
56,793
56,373
56,205
56,427
56,127
55,782

County of
Roanoke
County of
Per Capita
Franklin
Income (2) Population (3)
30,254
30,244
32,193
33,314
33,356
34,586
37,035
37,300
38,707
40,781

33,209 $
33,399
33,293
33,423
33,521
33,486
33,176
33,350
33,288
33,494

County of
Franklin
County of
Per Capita
Botetourt
Income (3) Population (4)
40,796
43,721
45,320
45,320
46,664
45,055
46,811
46,748
48,013
49,948

6.9%
6.5%
6.4%
5.7%
5.6%
4.1%
4.5%
3.4%
2.8%
7.9%

5.7%
5.6%
5.5%
5.2%
4.5%
3.5%
3.6%
3.1%
2.7%
7.0%

6.4%
6.2%
4.9%
5.2%
5.2%
4.2%
4.1%
3.9%
3.1%
3.2%

5.8%
5.6%
5.2%
5.1%
4.6%
3.7%
3.6%
3.2%
2.6%
3.7%

9.1%
8.2%
7.5%
6.1%
5.3%
4.9%
4.4%
4.0%
3.7%
11.1%

County of
County of
County of
County of
Botetourt City of Roanoke
Roanoke
Franklin
Botetourt
National
Per Capita Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment
Income (4)
Rate (1)
Rate (2)
Rate (3)
Rate (4)
Rate (5)

Table 13

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

Table 14

Principal Area Employers
Comparison of June 30, 2020 and 2011
Fiscal Year 2020
Employer
Roanoke County Schools
Wells Fargo Operations Center
County of Roanoke
Carilion Hospitals
Roanoke City Public Schools
City of Roanoke
Franklin County Public Schools
Ply Gem Windows (MW Manufacturers)
Altec Industries Inc
Botetourt County School Board

Employees (1,2)

Rank

2000+
2000+
1000+
1000+
1000+
1000+
1000+
1000+
1000+
500-999

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Fiscal Year 2011
Employer
Carilion Hospitals
Roanoke City Public Schools
Roanoke County Schools
Franklin County Public Schools
City of Roanoke
Wells Fargo Bank
Allstate Insurance Company
MW Manufacturers, Inc
Carilion Services
County of Roanoke

Employees

Rank

1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+
1,000+

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

(1) Per current Virginia Employment Guidelines, actual number of employees for each employer
are no longer available for publication.
(2) Data provided by City of Roanoke, County of Roanoke, Franklin and Botetourt.
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6
36
19
28

Field Operations
Field Operations
Field Operations
Field Operations
Field Operations

292

3
10
14
4
21

4
28
23
14
7

6
36
19
28

7
10
11
2
2
11
3
27
2

2019

287

3
10
14
4
21

4
28
23
14
7

6
31
19
28

7
10
11
2
2
11
3
27
2

2018

Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Payroll & Human Resources.

294

3
10
14
4
23

Administration
General Administration
Finance, Payroll & Human Resources
Billing & Customer Service
Information Technology
Engineering

Total Employees

4
28
23
14
7

Water Pollution Control Operation
WPC Administration
WPC Operations
WPC Maintenance
WPC Inflow & Infiltration Control
Water Pollution Pretreatment

Administration
Water
Sewer Maintenance
Sewer Construction

7
10
11
2
2
11
3
27
2

2020

Water Operations
Water Administration
Carvins Cove
Spring Hollow
Crystal Springs
Falling Creek
Pump & Storage
Well Operation
Meter & Distribution Operations
Watershed Maintenance/Security

Number of Employees by Identifiable Activity
Last Ten Fiscal Years

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

287

3
10
15
3
21

4
28
23
14
7

6
31
19
28

7
10
11
2
2
12
3
26
2

2017

287

3
9
21
3
21

4
28
19
14
7

6
31
19
28

7
10
11
2
2
12
2
26
2

2016

274

3
9
15
3
21

5
28
19
14
6

6
31
19
24

8
11
13
2
2
5
2
26
2

272

4
12
15
3
22

5
31
20
14
2

6
31
18
22

4
14
14
1
2
4
3
22
3

Fiscal Year
2015
2014

268

4
12
15
3
22

5
31
20
14
2

6
31
14
22

4
14
14
1
2
4
3
22
3

2013

268

4
12
15
3
22

5
31
20
14
2

6
31
14
22

4
14
14
1
2
4
3
22
3

2012

264

4
10
15
3
22

3
33
20
14
2

8
32
13
17

4
12
15
1
2
5
3
22
4

2011

Table 15

-10856,418
6
55
38
27
987

2020

61,354
13
58
18
102
57
1,237

2020

56,161
6
55
46
27
977

2019

61,080
13
58
19
101
57
1,222

2019

55,955
6
55
38
27
978

2018

60,772
13
58
20
104
58
1,217

2018

Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Engineering Services.

Number of service connections
Number of treatment plants
WPC plant permit (MGD)
Average annual daily flow (MGD)
Number of lift stations
Miles of sewer mains

Wastewater System

Number of service connections
Number of treatment plants
Treatment capacity (MGD)
Average production (MGD)
Number of storage tanks
Number of pump stations
Miles of water mains

Water System

Operating Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

55,750
6
55
38
30
974

2017

60,530
12
58
20
116
76
1,202

2017
58,951
4
56
19
123
88
1,123

55,572
5
55
45
30
973

52,147
3
55
36
25
891

Fiscal Year
2016
2015

60,315
4
56
19
116
75
1,174

Fiscal Year
2016
2015

51,959
2
55
36
25
873

2014

58,708
4
56
19
123
88
1,107

2014

51,774
2
55
36
25
873

2013

58,488
4
56
19
123
87
1,098

2013

51,681
2
55
37
25
874

2012

58,382
4
56
19
123
86
1,093

2012

51,607
2
55
37
24
873

2011

58,295
4
56
21
121
85
1,087

2011

Table 16
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76
87
106
220
243
1,364
215
242
308
274

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

58,295
58,382
58,488
58,708
58,951
60,315
60,530
60,772
61,080
61,354

Cumulative
Connections
0.13%
0.15%
0.18%
0.38%
0.41%
2.31%
0.36%
0.40%
0.51%
0.45%

% Water
Growth
47
74
93
185
188
3,425
178
205
206
257

Sewer
Connections
51,607
51,681
51,774
51,959
52,147
55,572
55,750
55,955
56,161
56,418

Cumulative
Connections

Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Billing & Customer Service.

Water
Connections

Fiscal
Year

Schedule of New Connections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

0.09%
0.14%
0.18%
0.36%
0.36%
6.57%
0.32%
0.37%
0.37%
0.46%

% Sewer
Growth

109,902
110,063
110,262
110,667
111,098
115,887
116,280
116,727
117,241
117,772

Total
Services

Table 17

-1101,838,581
1,918,938
275,705
4,033,224

2020

2,590,863
2,097,566
366,644
5,055,073

2020

1,822,976
2,059,914
291,541
4,174,431

2019

2,506,164
2,215,386
406,408
5,127,958

2019

2,074,861
1,839,535
318,980
4,233,376

2018

2,566,209
2,240,255
418,470
5,224,934

2018

1,825,595
2,021,710
372,085
4,219,390

2017

2,537,563
2,135,409
460,076
5,133,048

2017

Data provided by Western Virginia Water Authority Billing & Customer Service.

Type of Customer:
Residential flow
Commercial flow
Industrial flow
Total

Water Pollution Control Fund

Type of Customer:
Residential consumption
Commercial consumption
Industrial consumption
Total

Water Fund

Water Consumption and Wastewater Flow by Customer Group
Gallons In Thousands
Last Ten Fiscal Years

WESTERN VIRGINIA WATER AUTHORITY

2,461,620
2,255,711
357,622
5,074,953

1,882,257
2,075,862
353,663
4,311,782

1,815,311
1,958,585
265,991
4,039,887

Fiscal Year
2016
2015

2,251,472
2,565,490
455,100
5,272,062

Fiscal Year
2016
2015

2,147,812
1,999,867
332,776
4,480,455

2014

2,694,799
2,131,720
462,860
5,289,379

2014

2,255,115
1,865,559
172,945
4,293,619

2013

2,736,616
2,001,987
410,281
5,148,884

2013

2,284,818
1,846,436
110,032
4,241,286

2012

2,769,791
1,980,964
432,870
5,183,625

2012

2,328,346
1,860,807
95,793
4,284,946

2011

2,808,711
1,987,898
391,445
5,188,054

2011

Table 18

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Western Virginia Water Authority
Roanoke, Virginia
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards,
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial
statements of the business-type activities of the Western Virginia Water Authority as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Western Virginia Water Authority’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
October 23, 2020.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Western Virginia Water
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Western
Virginia Water Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Western Virginia Water Authority’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Western Virginia Water Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Blacksburg, Virginia
October 23, 2020
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ROANOKE CITY COUNCIL
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
JANUARY 4, 2021
2:00 P.M.
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER
215 CHURCH AVENUE, S. W.
AGENDA
The City of Roanoke is a safe, caring and economically vibrant community in
which to live, learn, work, play and prosper
A vibrant urban center with strong neighborhoods set amongst the spectacular
beauty of Virginia's Blue Ridge

1.

Call to Order.

2.

Roll Call.

NOTICE
This morning's meeting will be televised live and replayed on RVTV Channel 3 following
the 2:00 p.m. session on Thursday, January 7 at 7:00 p.m., and Saturday, January 9 at
4:00 p.m.; and video streamed through Facebook Live at facebook.com/RoanokeVa.
Council meetings are offered with closed captioning for the hearing impaired.
3.

Statement of Purpose. Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr.

4.

A report from the City Clerk advising of the qualification of the Honorable
Sherman P. Lea, Sr., as Mayor, and the Honorable Patricia White-Boyd,
Stephanie Moon Reynolds and Robert L. Jeffrey, Jr., as Members of the
Roanoke City Council for terms of four years, each, commencing January 1,
2021, and ending December 31, 2024.

1

P8

5.

A Resolution recognizing the Honorable Sherman P. Lea, Sr., to be Mayor of the
City of Roanoke.

R 15

6.

A Resolution recognizing the Honorable Patricia White-Boyd as a member of the
City Council and Vice-Mayor of the City of Roanoke.

R 16

7.

A Resolution recognizing the services of the Honorable Joseph L. Cobb as the
Vice-Mayor of the City of Roanoke.

8.

A communication from Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr., recommending certain
committee assignments for the Members of City Council.

P 18

9.

A Resolution establishing a meeting schedule for City Council commencing
January 1, 2021, and terminating December 31, 2021.

R 21

10.
11.

Presentation of 2020 Investiture Ceremonies Compilation Video.
Adjournment.

2

R 17

ROANOKE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION
JANUARY 4, 2021
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER
215 CHURCH AVENUE, S. W.
AGENDA
The City of Roanoke is a safe, caring and economically vibrant community in
which to live, learn, work, play and prosper
A vibrant urban center with strong neighborhoods set amongst the spectacular
beauty of Virginia's Blue Ridge

1. Call to Order--Roll Call.
The Invocation will be delivered by Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr.
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America will
be led by Mayor Lea.
Welcome. Mayor Lea.

NOTICE:
This afternoon's Council meeting will be televised live and replayed on RVTV
Channel 3 on Thursday, January 7 at 7:00 p.m., and Saturday, January 9 at
4:00p.m.;
and
video
streamed
through
Facebook
Live
at
facebook.com/RoanokeVa. Council meetings are offered with closed captioning
for the hearing impaired.
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ANNOUNCEMENTS:
The Council of the City of Roanoke is seeking applications for the following
current vacancies and/or upcoming expirations of terms of office:
Board of Zoning Appeals - one vacancy
Towing Advisory Board- one vacancy (Citizen at-large)
Access the City's homepage to complete an online application for the
abovementioned vacancies.
Expiration of the three-year terms of office of Laura Day Rottenborn,
Mark K. Cathey and Richard M. Willis, Jr. (not eligible for reappointment),
as Trustees of the Roanoke City School Board ending June 30, 2021.
Information pertaining to the School Board process and application for
appointment are available on the City's website and in the City Clerk's
Office. Deadline for receipt of applications is Wednesday, March 10, 2021.
For questions and/or additional information, contact the City Clerk's Office
at (540) 853 -2541.

2. PRESENTATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Recognition of City employees with 30, 35 and 40 years of service.

3. HEARING OF CITIZENS UPON PUBLIC MATTERS:
City Council sets this time as a priority for citizens to be heard. If deemed
appropriate, matters will be referred to the City Manager for response,
recommendation or report to the Council.
Due to the recent increase and severity in COVID-19 cases in the City of
Roanoke, out of an abundance of caution, the Roanoke City Council has
determined that temporary changes are necessary. Roanoke City Council
Members will continue to meet in person in City Council Chambers,
observing all recommended safety protocols while members of the
community wishing to address the City Council during Hearing of Citizens
Upon Public Matters are required to participate virtually or via email by

4

contacting the City Clerk's Office at clerk@roanokeva.gov and (540) 8532541, by 12:00 p.m., on January 4. The Council Chamber will not be
accessible to the general public during the meeting. The meeting will
continue to be broadcast via RVTV-3 and on the City's Facebook account.

4.

CONSENT AGENDA:
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the
Members of City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of the items. If discussion is desired, the item will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

C-1

A communication from Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr., requesting that P 23
Council convene in a Closed Meeting to discuss vacancies on certain authorities,
boards, commissions and committees appointed by Council, pursuant to Section
2.2-3711 (A)(1 ), Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. A list of current vacancies
is included with the agenda for this meeting.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

C-2

A communication from the City Manager requesting that Council schedule P 25
a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, or such later date and time as the
City Manager shall determine, in his discretion, for renewal of lease of space to
the Orvis Company, Inc.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

C-3

Concur in the request.

Concur in the request.

A communication from the City Manager requesting that Council schedule
a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, or such later date and time as the
City Manager shall determine, in his discretion, to consider the vacation of the
two existing 15 foot public utility easements to Freedom First Credit Union.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Concur in the request.
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C-4

A communication from the City Attorney requesting that Council schedule
a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, or such later date and time as the
City Manager shall determine, in his discretion, to receive citizen comment with
regard to restrictions on firearms in municipal facilities.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

C-5

C-6

Concur in the request.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Western Virginia
Water Authority for Fiscal Year 2020.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

P 46

P 47

Receive and file.

Reports of qualification of Rosheta Chase as a member of the Roanoke
Neighborhood Advocates to fill the unexpired term of office of Katelynn Lewis
ending September 30, 2021; and Pamela Smith as a member (Citizen-atLarge/Medical) of the Youth Services Citizen Board for a term of office ending
June 30, 2023.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Receive and file.

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE.
6. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: NONE.
7. REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND COMMENTS OF THE
CITY MANAGER:
a.

CITY MANAGER:
BRIEFINGS:
•

Budget/Financial Planning FY 22/
General Real Estate Reassessment
ITEMS RECOMMENDED FOR ACTION:
1.

30 minutes

P 48
R 49
Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2020 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and B/O 50
Economic Security Act - Provider Relief Funds allocated for
eligible providers who bill for Medicare fee-for-service.
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2.

P 51
Acceptance of "pass through" funds from the Virginia Department R 52
of Emergency Management to reimburse the Hazardous Materials B/O 53
Response Team.

3.

Execution of Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Purchase and P 54
O 59
Sale of Real Property located at 23 Centre Avenue, N. W.

COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER.

8. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES: NONE.
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: NONE.
10. INTRODUCTION
AND
CONSIDERATION
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:
a.

OF

Repeal and replace Ordinance No. 41946-122120 adopted December 21,
2020, authorizing and approving a one-time payment in appreciation to
certain full-time and part-time City employees.

11. MOTIONS AND MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS:
a.

Inquiries and/or comments by the Mayor and Members of City Council.

b.

Vacancies on certain authorities, boards, commissions and committees
appointed by Council.

12. RECESS.
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING.

13. ADJOURN.
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CITY OF ROANOKE
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK
215 Church Avenue, S. W., Suite 456
Roanoke, Virginia 24011-1536

CECELIA F. MCCOY, CI\IC
Cit) Clerk

Telephone: (540) 853-2541
Fax: (540) 853-1145
E-mail: clerk@ roanokeva.gov

CECELIA T. WEBB, CI\IC
Deputy City Clerk

January 4, 2021

The Honorable Mayor and Members
of the Roanoke City Council
Roanoke, Virginia
Dear Mayor Lea and Members of Council:
I am attaching copy of the Roanoke City Electoral Board Abstract of votes cast in the
General Election held in the City of Roanoke on Tuesday, November 3, 2020, certifying
that Sherman P. Lea, Sr., Patricia White-Boyd, Stephanie Moon Reynolds and Robert L.
Jeffrey, Jr., received the largest number of votes for Members of City Council.
Oaths of Office were administered on Thursday, December 3, 2020 and Friday,
December 4, 2020, by the Honorable Judges of the Twenty-Third Judicial Circuit, as
follows:
Sherman P. Lea, Sr., as Mayor for a term commencing January 1, 2021
and ending December 31, 2024;
Patricia White-Boyd as a Member of Council for a term commencing
January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2024; and as Vice-Mayor for a
term commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2022;
Stephanie Moon Reynolds as a Member of Council for a term
commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2024; and
Robert L. Jeffrey, Jr., as a Member of Council for a term commencing
January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2024.
Sincerely,

C.u-c.lt.~ J-: 'tiU-~
Cecelia F. McCoy, CMC
City Clerk
Attachment

ABSTRACT of VOTES
Cast in ROANOKE CITY, VIRGINIA
at the 2020 November General Election held on November 03, 2020 for,

Mayor
TOTAL VOTES RECEIVED
(IN FIGURES)

NAMES OF CANDIDATES ON THE BALLOT

Sherman P. Lea Sr.

21552

David A. Bowers

19247
379

Total Write-In votes [From Write-Ins Certifications]
[Valid Write-Ins+ Invalid Write_ins =Total Write In Votes]

0

Total Number of Overvotes for Office

We, the undersigned Electoral Board, upon examination of the official records deposited with the Clerk of the Circuit
Court of the election held on November 03, 2020, do herby certify that the above is a true and correct Abstract of Votes
at the said election and do, therefore, determine and declare that the following person(s) has received the greatest
number of votes cast for the Mayor.

Sherman P. Lea Sr.

lo+h,

q

I

Given under our hands this _ __::_-'------ day of l~oJ -!-V"\ Be)

,}{))[)

ABSTRACT of VOTES
Cast in ROANOKE CITY, VIRGINIA
at the 2020 November General Election held on November 03, 2020 for,

Member City Council
NAMES OF CANDIDATES ON THE BALLOT

TOTAL VOTES RECEIVED
(IN FIGURES)

Trish A. White-Boyd

21892

Robert L. Jeffrey Jr.

13188

Stephanie M. Moon

12857

M. E. "Peg" McGuire

11268

Peter J. Volosin

10547

Kiesha N. Preston

9953

Maynard L. Keller Jr.

9127

Cesar J. Alberto

3900

Total Write-In votes [From Write-Ins Certifications]
[Valid Write-Ins + Invalid Write_ins =Total Write In Votes]
Total Number of Overvotes for Office

458

0

We, the undersigned Electoral Board, upon examination of the official records deposited with the Clerk of the Circuit
Court of the election held on November 03, 2020, do herby certify that the above is a true and correct Abstract of Votes
at the said election and do, therefore, determine and declare that the following person(s) has received the greatest
number of votes cast for the Member City Council.
1. Trish A. White-Boyd
2. Robert L. Jeffrey Jr.
3. Stephanie M. Moon

Oath or Affirmation of Office

Commonwealth of Virginia, City of Roanoke, to-wit:

I, Sherman P. Lea, Sr., do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the
United States of America and the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and that I
will faithfully and impartially discharge and perform all the duties incumbent upon me as
Mayor of the City of Roanoke, Virginia, for a term of four years commencing January 1,
2021 and ending December 31, 2024, according to the best of my ability (So help me
God).

~
~;f'
~~'\dCL--5
SHERMAN P. LEA, SR.

The foregoing oath of office was taken, sworn to, and subscribed before me by
Sherman P. Lea, Sr., this third day of December 2020.

Oath or Affirmation of Office

Commonwealth of Virginia, City of Roanoke, to-wit:

I, Patricia White-Boyd, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support the
Constitution of the United States of America and the Constitution of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, and that I will faithfully and impartially discharge and perform all the duties
incumbent upon me as a Member of the Council of the City of Roanoke, Virginia, for a term
of four years commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2024; and as
Vice-Mayor of the City of Roanoke, Virginia, for a term of two years commencing
January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2022, according to the best of my ability (So
help me God).

PATRICIA WHITE-BOYD

The foregoing oath of office was taken, sworn to, and subscribed before me by Patricia
White-Boyd this fourth day of December 2020.

Oath or Affirmation of Office

Commonwealth of Virginia, City of Roanoke, to-wit:
I, Stephanie Miranda Moon (also known as Stephanie Moon Reynolds), do
solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States of America and the
Constitution of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and that I will faithfully and impartially
discharge and perform all the duties incumbent upon me as a Member of the Council of the
City of Roanoke, Virginia, for a term of four years commencing January 1, 2021 and ending
December 31, 2024, according to the best of my ability (So help me God).

The foregoing oath of office was taken, sworn to, and subscribed before me by Stephanie
Miranda Moon this third day of December 2020.

Oath or Affirmation of Office

Commonwealth of Virginia, City of Roanoke, to-wit:
I, Robert L. Jeffrey, Jr., do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the
United States of America and the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and that I
will faithfully and impartially discharge and perform all the duties incumbent upon me as a
Member of the Council of the City of Roanoke, Virginia, for a term of four years
commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2024, according to the best of my
ability (So help me God).

The foregoing oath of office was taken, sworn to, and subscribed before me by Robert L.
Jeffrey, Jr., this fourth day of December 2020.

IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

. A RESOLUTION recognizing the Honorable Sherman P. Lea, Sr., as Mayor of the City
of Roanoke.
WHEREAS, the Honorable Sherman P. Lea, Sr., was elected Mayor for a four-year term,
which will commenced January 1, 2021, at the regular Councilmanic election held on the first
Tuesday in November, 2020.
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Roanoke that the
Honorable Sherman P. Lea, Sr., be, and he is, hereby recognized to be a duly elected Mayor of
the City of Roanoke for a term commencing on the P 1 day of January, 2021, and continuing for a
period of four years, and until his successor shall have been elected and qualified.

ATTEST:

City Clerk.

&.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

A RESOLUTION recognizing the Honorable Patricia White-Boyd to be a member of the
City Council and Vice-Mayor ofthe City of Roanoke.
WHEREAS, the Honorable Patricia White-Boyd received the largest number of votes of
any candidate running for City Council in the regular Councilmanic election held on the first
Tuesday in November, 2020, and was, therefore, elected Vice-Mayor of the City for a two-year
term, which commenced as of January 1, 2021, as provided by §4 of the Charter of the City of
Roanoke.
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Roanoke that the
Honorable Patricia White-Boyd be, and is, hereby recognized to be a duly elected member of the
Council of said City for a term commencing on the 1st day of January, 2021, and continuing for a
period of four years, and until her successor shall have been elected and qualified, and to be the
duly elected Vice-Mayor of the City for a term commencing January 1, 2021, and continuing for
a period of two years and until her successor shall have been elected and qualified.

ATTEST:

City Clerk.

1.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

A RESOLUTION paying tribute to the Honorable Joseph L. Cobb and expressing to him
the appreciation of the City and its people for his exemplary public service as the Vice-Mayor of
the City of Roanoke.
WHEREAS, Joseph L. Cobb was elected as Vice-Mayor in May 2018; and
WHEREAS, Joseph L. Cobb has worked diligently for the citizens of the City of Roanoke
during the past two-years as Vice-Mayor.
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Roanoke as follows:
1

Council adopts this Resolution as a means of recognizing and commending the

many services rendered to the City of Roanoke and its people by the Honorable Joseph L. Cobb,
as Vice-Mayor
2.

The City Clerk is directed to forward an attested copy of this Resolution to the

Honorable Joseph L. Cobb.

ATTEST:

City Clerk.

B.
CITY OF ROANOKE

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
215 CHURCH AVENUE. S.W.. SUITE 452
ROANOKE. VIRGil\: lA 2-iO 11-1594

SHER:\IA:\ P. LEA, SR.

TELEPHO:\E (5-lili ~53-2-l-l-l
FAX. !5.\0i X53-II..J5
E\IAIL: \IAYORru ROA'-.OKE\A Go\·

l\layor

January 4, 2021

The
The
The
The
The
The

Honorable Patricia White-Boyd, Vice-Mayor
Honorable William D. Bestpitch, Council Member
Honorable Joseph L. Cobb, Council Member
Honorable Robert L. Jeffrey, Jr., Council Member
Honorable Stephanie Moon Reynolds, Council Member
Honorable Vivian Sanchez-Jones, Council Member

Subject: Council Committee Assignments
Ladies and Gentlemen:
I ask that Council concur in the appointments/reappointments as set forth below:
•

Personnel Committee: Composed of the seven Members of Council.
Vice-Mayor Trish White-Boyd as Chair and Council Member Joe Cobb as ViceChair.

•

Greater Roanoke Transit Company: Board of Directors - Composed of two
Members of Council -- Council Member Joe Cobb as Director and Council
Member Vivian Sanchez-Jones as Director.

•

Audit Committee: Composed of at least three Members of the Council-- Council
Member Joe Cobb as Chair, Vice-Mayor Trish White-Boyd as Vice-Chair, and
Council Member Bestpitch as third member.

•

Equity and Empowerment Advisory Board: Two Council Representatives -Vice-Mayor Trish White-Boyd and Council Member Bill Bestpitch.

•

Roanoke Redevelopment and Housing Authority: Board of Commissioners
Council Liaisons -- Liaison Council Member Stephanie Moon Reynolds and
Council Member Vivian Sanchez-Jones, as Alternate Liaison.

The Honorable Vice-Mayor Patricia White-Boyd
and Members of Roanoke City Council
January 4, 2021
Page 2

•

Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Commission: Three Elected Official
representatives are Council Members Stephanie Moon Reynolds, Robert Jeffrey
and Vivian Sanchez-Jones.

•

Total Action for Progress Board of Directors: Council Representative -Council Member Vivian Sanchez-Jones.

•

Roanoke Valley Regional Cable Television Committee: Council
Representative -- Council Member Robert Jeffrey.

•

Legislative Committee: Composed of all Members of Council: Council Member
Bill Bestpitch as Chairman and Council Member Stephanie Moon Reynolds as
Vice-Chair.

•

Virginia's First Regional Industrial Facilities Authority: Elected Official
Representative -- Council Member Stephanie Moon Reynolds and
Alternate Representative Council Member Robert Jeffrey.

•

Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Comprehensive Economic
Development Strategy Committee: Two Elected Official Representatives-Council Member Vivian Sanchez-Jones and Council Member Joe Cobb.

•

Roanoke Valley Area Transportation Planning Organization: Two Elected
Official Representatives -- Council Member Bill Bestpitch and Council Member
Stephanie Moon Reynolds.

•

Hotel Roanoke Conference Center Commission: Council Representative -Mayor Sherman Lea.

•

Virginia Municipal League Environmental Quality Policy Committee:
Council Member Robert Jeffrey and Christopher Blakeman, Environmental
Manager as the Staff Representative.

•

Virginia Municipal League Human Development and Education Policy
Committee: Council Member Joe Cobb and Council Member Stephanie Moon
Reynolds as the Elected Official representatives.

•

Virginia Municipal League General Laws Committee: Council Member Bill
Bestpitch as the Elected Official representative and Timothy Spencer, City
Attorney, as Staff Representative.

The Honorable Vice-Mayor Patricia White-Boyd
and Members of Roanoke City Council
January 4, 2021
Page 3

•

Virginia Municipal League Transportation Policy Committee: Council
Member Robert Jeffrey and Dwayne D'Ardenne, Transportation Manager, as the
Staff Representative.

•

Virginia Municipal League Community and Economic Development Policy
Committee: Council Member Stephanie Moon Reynolds.

•

Virginia Municipal League Finance Policy Committee:
Amelia Merchant, Director of Finance, as the Staff Representative and
Paul Workman, Budget Manager, as the Alternate Staff Representative.

•

National Civic League Board of Directors:
(NCL will make recommendation.)

•

Virginia Municipal League Legislative Committee:
Council Member Bill Bestpitch as the Elected Official Representative.

Sincerely,

~~?i~
Sherman P. Lea, Sr.
Mayor

SPL:cfm

•

q.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

A RESOLUTION establishing a meeting schedule for City Council for January 1, 2021, and
terminating December 31, 2021.
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Roanoke as follows:
1.

This resolution establishes a schedule of regular meetings for City Council

commencing January 1, 2021 and terminating December 31,2021.
2.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic the disaster and the declarations of emergency

by the President of the United States, the Governor of the Commonwealth ofVirginia, and the City
of Roanoke, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 41703-032720, at a special session of City Council
on March 27, 2020, to effectuate temporary changes in certain deadlines, modifying public meetings
and public hearing practices and procedures to address the continuity of operations. Council
Meetings and public hearings of City Council may be conducted by electronic communication means
until the expiration of Amended Executive Order 51 issued by the Governor of the Commonwealth
ofVirginia on August 17, 2020.
3.

City Council shall hold regular meetings on the first and third Mondays of each

month, at the following times of commencement:
(a)

Unless otherwise provided by resolution of Council, each regular

meeting on the first Monday in each month shall commence at 9:00a.m. for the
conduct of informal meetings, work sessions, or closed meetings.

Thereafter,

Council shall take up the regular agenda at 2:00p.m. Council may recess between
the 9:00a.m. session and the 2:00p.m. session.

(b)

Unless otherwise provided by resolution of Council, each regular

meeting on the third Monday in each month shall commence at 2:00p.m. for the
conduct of regular business. The second meeting of each month shall be recessed
upon the completion of all business except the conduct of public hearings, and such
meeting shall be reconvened at 7:00p.m. on the same day for the conduct of public
hearings.
4.

When any regularly scheduled Monday meeting shall fall on a holiday of the City,

such meeting shall be held on Tuesday next following.
5.

City Council may prescribe a day or time other than that established by this resolution

or a meeting place other than that established by this resolution by adoption of a resolution
establishing a new meeting day, place or time. City Council shall cause a copy of such resolution to
be posted adjacent to the door of the Council Chamber and inserted in a newspaper having general
circulation in the City at least seven days prior to the date of the meeting at such amended day, time
or place.
6.

This Resolution shall have no application to special meetings of City Council called

pursuant to Section 10 of the City Charter.
ATTEST:

City Clerk.

C-!
CITY OF ROANOKE

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
215 CHURCH AVENUE, S.W.. SUITE 452
ROANOKE. VIRGINIA 24011-1594
TELEPHO'\E I 540)
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January 4, 2021

The Honorable Vice-Mayor Patricia White-Boyd and Members
of the Roanoke City Council
Roanoke, Virginia
Dear Vice-Mayor White-Boyd and Members of Council:
This is to request a Closed Meeting to discuss vacancies on certain authorities, boards,
commissions and committees appointed by Council, pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A)(1 ),
Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. A list of current vacancies is included with the
agenda for this meeting.
Sincerely,

Sherman P. Lea, Sr.
Mayor

SPL:ctw

COMMITTEE VACANCIES/REAPPOINTMENTS
January 4, 2021
Public

VACANCIES:
Unexpired term of office on the Board of Zoning Appeals ending December 31, 2021.
Term of office (Citizen at Large) on the Towing Advisory Board ending October 31, 2023.

C-~

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
To:

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

Meeting:

january 4, 2021

Subject:

Request Public Hearing to Renew Lease for the Orvis
Company, Inc., a Vermont Corporation

Background:
The Orvis Company, Inc., a Vermont Corporation (Orvis) currently leases
approximately 3,000 square feet of retail space from the City of Roanoke (Leased
Premises) pursuant to the terms of a five-year lease agreement with the City. The
Leased Premises is located on Campbell Avenue, S.E. in a portion of the building
commonly known as the Center in The Square Parking Garage. Orvis' current lease
expires january 31, 2021. Orvis has expressed an interest to renew the current
lease for one year due to the current pandemic situation. The City desires to
continue leasing the Leased Premises to Orvis. Under the terms of a proposed e
new lease, the initial term would commence February 1, 2021 and expire january
31, 2022 (New Lease). Orvis will have the option to renew the New Lease upon the
expiration of the initial term for four additional one-year terms, upon the mutual
agreement of Orvis and City. The rent due under the initial term of the New Lease
will begin at a monthly base rent of $1 ,245.23, together with one and one-quarter
percent (1 .2 5%) of the gross revenue from sales generated from the Leased
Premises for the previous year. Should the parties exercise the renewal terms of
the New Lease, the rent amount will increase three percent (3%) each year from the
prior year. A public hearing is required under state law before City Council may
consider the lease of publically owned property.

Recommended Action:
Authorize the City Manager and the City Clerk to schedule and advertise this
matter for a public hearing to be held at City Council Chamber, 4th Floor, Noel C.
Taylor Municipal Building, 21 5 Church Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia on Tuesday,
january 19, 2021, at 7:00 pm, or at some time thereafter as the matter may be
reached, or at such later date and time as the City Manager may determine.
__)

_,

/
.//

Robert S. Cowell, Jr.
City Manager

Distribution:

Council Appointed Officers
W. Brent Robertson, Assistant City Manager for Community Development
Amelia C. Merchant, Director of Finance
Robert Ledger, Director Economic Development
Cassandra L. Turner, Economic Development Specialist

LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Lease"), made and entered in duplicate on this
_ _ _ _ _day of,

2021, by and between the CITY OF ROANOKE,

VIRGINIA, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, hereinafter referred to as "Lessor", and THE ORVIS COMPANY, INC., a
Vermont Corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Lessee".
RECITALS:
WHEREAS, the Lessor owns certain property in Roanoke, Virginia, commonly
referred to as the Market Square Parking Garage, "hereinafter referred to as the
"Garage" located at 11 Campbell Ave SE, Roanoke, VA 24011 in the downtown area of
the City,
WHEREAS, the Lessee desires to lease approximately 3,000 square feet of retail
space located in the Garage for the purpose of selling clothing and other items and
products to the public; and
WHEREAS, after a public hearing was held on January 19, 2021, pursuant to
Section 15.2-1800 of the Code of Virginia (1950) as amended, Roanoke City Council
authorized
No.

the

execution

of

this

lease

agreement

pursuant

to

Ordinance

, adopted by Roanoke City Council on January 19, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the recitals and mutual covenants

contained herein, the above recitals which are incorporated herein by reference, and
other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.

Leased Premises. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee leases

from Lessor, subject to and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, those
certain premises in the Garage consisting of approximately 3,000 square feet of retail
space and the separate storage space described as follows:
Hereinafter referred to as "Leased Premises" and identified as
such on the drawing labeled Center in the Square 1 which is
attached to and made a part of this Lease Agreement as
Exhibit "A".
The Lessor agrees to hold in reserve three (3) parking spaces during the term of this
Lease in the Garage, the cost of which is to be paid by the Lessee at the annual market
rate. Such parking permits, however, are not a part of this Lease.
2.

Lessor's Warranties. Lessor represents and warrants that:

A.

Lessor is the sole owner in fee simple of the Leased Premises and has full

right and power to grant the estate demised and to execute and perform this Lease;
B.

The Leased Premises is now and will remain free and clear of all

encumbrances created by Lessor which could adversely affect Lessee's leasehold
estate;
C.

As of the date of execution of this Lease Agreement, the intended use of

the Leased Premises for the purposes stated herein is permitted by all applicable
zoning laws and regulations; and,
D.

As of the date of execution of the Lease Agreement, to the best of

Lessor's knowledge, the Leased Premises complies with all applicable ordinances,
regulations and zoning and other laws, and the use of the Leased Premises for the retail
sale of merchandise is a permitted use.
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3.

Term of Lease.

Lessee shall have and hold the Leased Premises for an

initial term of one (1) year, commencing at 12:01 a.m., February 1, 2021, and ending
January 31, 2022. Upon expiration of the initial term, this Lease may be extended
for up to four (4) additional renewal terms of one (1) year each, on the same terms and
conditions, upon the mutual agreement of the Lessor and Lessee in writing. For any
renewal term to be exercised, Lessee must provide written notice to Lessor no later
than sixty days prior to the expiration of the initial term, or a renewal term. Lessor shall
then have a period of time not to exceed thirty (30) days to either reject or accept
Lessee's request for such renewal term. If a written response to Lessee's request for
such renewal is not made by Lessor within such time, Lessee's request for a renewal
term of the Lease shall be deemed to be rejected.
4.

Rent. For the first year of the initial five -year term of this Lease, Lessee

shall pay to the Lessor, as rent, for the use of the Leased Premises the sum of
$1,245.23 per month ($14,942.76) for the first year of the term of the lease), payable
monthly in advance, and due no later than the 5th of each month. The parties agree that
rent shall further consist of one and one-quarter percent (1.25%) of the gross revenue
from sales made from the Leased Premises during the prior calendar year, which sum
shall be payable within sixty (60) days of the end of each calendar year. The monthly
rental payment will be adjusted each subsequent year (every twelve (12) months)
during the term of the lease, in the event the term of the Lease is extended pursuant to
the provisions of Section 3, by an increase of three percent (3%) of the amount of the
monthly rental for the previous year. Provided, however, although 1.25% of Lessee's

3

gross revenue from sales shall continue to be due and owing during any renewal term,
such amount shall not be used in calculating the 3% annual increase of rent.
Rent payments must be submitted to the Roanoke City Treasurer's Office,
located in Room 254, Noel C. Taylor Municipal Building, 215 Church Avenue, Roanoke,
VA 24011, or to P.O. Box 1451, Roanoke, VA 24011.

Payments by check shall be

made payable to Roanoke City Treasurer.
There shall be excluded from gross revenue any sales tax or other similar tax,
uncollected funds, credit card fees and charges, credits or similar items due to
merchandise returns or exchanges, sales of trade fixtures, gift certificate sales (until
redeemed), layaway sales (until completed), charges for alterations, gift wrapping or
other service done on a non-profit basis, insurance recoveries, sales to employees, and
any catalog sales.
Lessor shall have the reasonable right to inspect Lessee's financial records to the
extent necessary to verify the amount of Lessee's yearly gross receipts from sales on
the Leased Premises.
5.

Use of Premises. Lessee hereby agrees that the Leased Premises will be

used for the retail sale of clothing and other items and products and for operations in
conjunction with its catalogue sales operation, and that the Leased Premises shall not
be put to any other use without the prior written consent of Lessor.
6.

Maintenance.

Lessor, at its sole cost and expense, will service and

maintain, repair, or replace the structural foundation of the walls, (excluding the
awnings), utility and service lines, and roof of the Leased Premises, and shall repair or

4

replace any HVAC equipment which requires replacement. Lessor shall have no further
obligation with respect to maintenance of the Property.
Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, will service and maintain the Leased
Premises in good repair, condition and appearance during the term of this Lease,
ordinary wear and tear excepted, and Lessee will make all non-structural changes of
every kind or nature which may be required to be made for any reason in connection
with Lessee's use of the Leased Premises, and in order to keep the Lease Premises in
good repair and condition, including maintenance of the Leased Premises that is
cosmetic in nature (e.g. painting, janitorial, flooring, etc.)
Lessee shall keep in good running order electric wiring, toilets, water pipes,
water, gas and electric fixtures; replace all locks, trimmings, glass and plate glass
broken during the tenancy, and unstop all water fixtures that may become choked.

If

there be any elevators, escalators, lifts, machinery or appliances (herein called
"equipment") on the Leased Premises, Lessee shall care for, maintain, and repair same,
and shall indemnify and save harmless Lessor from any liability or claims for damages
for injuries to persons and property arising therefrom, except to the extent due to
Lessor's sole negligence.

Lessee shall not make any alterations of, additions to or

changes in the Leased Premises or equipment without the prior written consent of
Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, with the exception of
replacement of the awnings, discussed below. Lessee further covenants and agrees
that all signage and the general appearance of the Leased Premises shall be subject to
the prior approval of the Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Lessee shall remove any signage or other materials which negatively affect the general
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appearance of the Leased Premises, in the sole and exclusive discretion of Lessor. All
permanent alterations, changes, and improvements, by whosoever made, shall be the
property of Lessor. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as requiring
Lessor to make any repairs, except repairs of a structural nature, and as specified
earlier in this paragraph.
7.

Replacement and Maintenance of Awnings. The parties agree that Lessee

may replace and thereafter maintain and replace the existing awnings that are attached
to the Leased Premises, at Lessee's sole expense. The parties agree that any such
awnings attached to the Leased Premises shall be considered a fixture to the property,
and property owned by the Lessor in accordance with Virginia law. Lessee shall have
the sole responsibility to maintain and keep the awnings in good repair and condition at
Lessee's expense. The Lessee agrees that it shall obtain Lessor's consent in writing as
to the design and wording of the awnings before such awnings are attached to the
Leased Premises, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld. The Lessor
agrees that the Lessee shall receive a rent credit for the actual cost of the awning
upgrades, such rent credit not to exceed the amount of five thousand five hundred and
no/dollars ($5,500), to be applied in even installments to the rent that will be due Lessor
by Lessee each month over the next twelve (12) months of the term of this Lease from
the date of the installment of such awnings. Lessee shall provide Lessor upon demand
such documentation (e.g. receipts, invoices, etc.) that shows the costs of such awnings.
8.

Inspection. Lessee shall permit Lessor or its authorized agents to enter

the Leased Premises for the purpose of inspection of any reasonable time or times and
upon reasonable notice during the term of this Lease provided, however, that such
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inspections shall not unreasonably interfere with Lessee's use and occupancy of the
Leased Premises.
9.

Utilities. Lessee shall promptly pay all fuel, water, gas, sewage, electricity,

lighting, and other bills as the same may become due, it being understood and agreed
that the Lessee shall promptly make all required deposits for meters and utility services.
The Lessor agrees to install separate meters for all utilities which are Lessee's
responsibility.
10.

Insurance and Indemnification. (A) Lessee agrees to pay and to protect,

indemnify and save harmless Lessor from any and all liabilities, damages, costs,
expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, causes of action,
suits, claims, demands, or judgments of any nature whatsoever arising from injury to or
death of persons or damages to property resulting from Lessee, its agents, employees,
or assign's use of the Leased Premises caused by any act or omission of Lessee, its
agents, employees, or assigns.
B.

Lessee shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain during the life

of this Lease Agreement, the insurance policies required by this Section. Any required
insurance policies shall be effective prior to the beginning date of this Lease Agreement.
The following policies and coverages are required:
(1)

Commercial General Liability.

Commercial General Liability insurance,

written on an occurrence basis, shall insure against all claims, loss, cost, damage,
expense or liability from loss of life or damage or injury to person or property arising out
of the Lessee's actions under this Lease Agreement. The minimum limits of liability for
this coverage shall be $1,000,000 combined single limit for any one occurrence.
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(2)

Contractual Liability.

Broad form Contractual Liability insurance shall

include the indemnification obligation set forth herein.
(3)

Lessee's Insurance.

Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain

and maintain during the life of this Lease Agreement a property insurance policy written
on an "all risk" basis insuring all of Lessee's personal property, including, but not limited
to, equipment, furniture, fixtures, furnishings, and leasehold improvements which are
Lessee's responsibility, for not less than full replacement cost of such property.

All

proceeds of such insurance shall be used to repair or replace Lessee's property.
(4)

Workers' Compensation.

Workers' Compensation insurance covering

Lessee's statutory obligation under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and
Employer's Liability insurance shall be maintained for all its employees engaged in work
on the Leased Premises.

Minimum limits of liability for Employer's Liability shall be

$100,000 bodily injury by accident each occurrence; $500,000 bodily injury by disease
(policy limit); and $100,000 bodily injury by disease (each employee). With respect to
Workers' Compensation coverage, the Lessee's insurance company shall waive rights
of subrogation against the City, its officers, employees, agents, volunteers and
representatives.
(5)

Fire and Extended Coverage for

Structures. Lessee shall obtain and

maintain fire and extended coverage insurance insuring the improvements on the
Leased Premises, Lessee's personal property, equipment, and trade fixture, for direct
and indirect loss or damage by fire and any other casualty covered under a broad perils,
"all risks" typical fire and extended coverage property insurance policy, in an amount
equal to the current fair value of the improvements. This coverage shall include the cost
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of demolition and removal of the improvements, or any portions thereof, damaged by
fire or other casualty. The proceeds of the fire and extended coverage insurance shall
be payable to Lessor. Lessor shall have the sole right to use the proceeds to repair the
improvements and continue this Agreement or retain the proceeds of insurance and
terminate this Agreement.
The insurance coverages and amounts set forth in subsections (1), (2), (3) (4)
and (5) of this Section may be met by an umbrella liability policy following the form of
the underlying primary coverage in a minimum amount of $1,000,000.

Should an

umbrella liability insurance coverage policy be used, such coverage shall be
accompanied by a certificate of endorsement stating that it applies to the specific policy
numbers indicated for the insurance providing the coverages required by subsections
(1 ), (2), (3) (4) and (5) and it is further agreed that such statement shall be made a part
of the certificate of insurance furnished by Lessee to Lessor.
C.

All insurance shall meet the following requirements:

(1)

Lessee shall furnish Lessor a certificate or certificates of insurance

showing the type, amount, effective dates and date of expiration of the policies.
Certificates of insurance shall include any insurance deductibles.
(2)

The

required

certificate or certificates of insurance

shall

include

substantially the following statement: 'The insurance covered by this certificate shall not
be canceled or materially altered, except after thirty (30) days written notice has been
received by City of Roanoke, Virginia." Shall follow notification procedures in policy.
(3)

The required certificate or certificates of insurance shall name the City of

Roanoke, its officers, employees, agents, volunteers and representatives as additional
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insured. Additional insured coverage must be primary and Lessor's insurance is noncontributory. The Fire and extended coverage insurance shall insure the Lessor and the
Lessee in the Building, as their interests may appear.
(4)

Where waiver of subrogation is required with respect to any policy of

insurance required under this Section, such waiver shall be specified on the certificate
of insurance.
(5)

Insurance coverage shall be in a form and with an insurance company

approved by Lessee which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any insurance
company providing coverage under this Lease Agreement shall be authorized to do
business in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
11.

Destruction of Premises.

Lessee shall be responsible for insuring all

personal property, equipment, and trade fixtures, and Lessee shall hold Lessor
harmless for said items, if destroyed or damaged by fire or otherwise, unless caused by
Lessor's negligence.
Lessor shall be responsible for and shall maintain fire and extended coverage
insurance on the Garage and the structural portions of the Leased Premises paid for by
the City at replacement cost in reputable insurance companies.
If the Leased Premises are damaged or destroyed in whole or in part by fire or
other casualty and the same can be repaired or restored within one hundred twenty
(120) days from the date of the damage, Lessor shall repair the Leased Premises within
such period and, in that event, there shall be a proportional abatement of rent to the
extent Lessee is unable to conduct its business in a normal manner while Lessor repairs
the Leased Premises.
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In the event the Leased Premises are damaged and destroyed and cannot be
repaired or restored within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of the damage,
either Lessor or Lessee may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to the other
within thirty (30) days after the damage occurs, in which event this Lease shall
terminate, and rent shall abate in total from the date of such damage or destruction.

If

neither party elects to terminate this Lease, Lessor shall proceed with due diligence to
repair and restore the Leased Premises and the rent shall abate in proportion to the
extent Lessee is unable to conduct its business in a normal manner from the date of
such damage or destruction.
12.

Eminent

Domain.

Eminent

domain

proceedings

resulting

in

the

condemnation of part of the Leased Premises that leave the rest usable by Lessee for
the purposes of the business for which the Leased Premises are leased will not
terminate this Lease, unless Lessee at its option terminates it by giving written notice of
termination to the other party. The effect of such condemnation, should such option not
be exercised, will be to terminate the Lease as to the portion of the Leased Premises
condemned and leave it in effect as to the remainder of the Leased Premises, and the
rent and utilities and charges fee provided for herein shall be adjusted accordingly.
Compensation awarded as a result of such condemnation shall be that of Lessor,
except to the extent that part of the award is allocated and specifically identified as
damages for the value of Lessee's leasehold estate, its trade fixtures or to relocation
costs. Lessor agrees not to use its power of eminent domain to take all or any portion
of the Leased Premises.
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13.

Assignment.

Lessee shall not assign or transfer this Lease in whole or in

part, sublet or license the Leased Premises or any part thereof without the prior written
consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, except that that
Lessee shall have the right without Lessor's consent to sublease or assign the Leased
Premises or any part thereof to a parent, subsidiary, or affiliate of Lessee to be used for
the purposes set out in Paragraph 5 above. If consent to assign or sublease is given,
no such assignment or sublease shall in any way release or relieve Lessee from any of
its covenants or undertakings contained in this Lease, and Lessee shall remain liable on
this Lease during the term thereof.
14.

Force Majeure.

The obligations of the parties hereunder shall be subject

to force majeure (which shall include lawful strikes, riots, floods, accidents, Acts of God,
and other causes or circumstances beyond the control of the party claiming such force
majeure as an excuse) for nonperformance of such obligations.
15.

Default. It is understood and agreed by and between the Lessor and the

Lessee that if default be made in timely payment of rent set out in Paragraph 4, above,
or any part thereof, or in the event of breach by Lessor or Lessee of any of the
covenants and agreements herein contained, the aggrieved party may serve a written
sixty (60) day notice of default, specifying such default, on the breaching party. If such
default is not remedied within sixty (60) days, this Lease Agreement shall automatically
end and expire and the Leased Premises shall automatically revert to Lessor, provided
however, if the default involves the failure of Lessor to perform its maintenance
obligations under Paragraph 6 and the failure impairs Lessee's business operations,
Lessor shall have a reasonable period of time to cure, not to exceed seven (7) days.
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16.

Taxes and Assessments. Lessee agrees that it will be responsible for the

payment of any leasehold taxes or other legal taxes, charges or assessments imposed
by virtue of its occupancy of the Leased Premises.
17.

Compliance with Laws. Lessee agrees to conform to and not to violate

laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and requirements of federal, state, municipal, or
other governmental authorities and the various departments thereof now existing or
hereinafter created affecting Lessee's use and occupancy of the Leased Premises.
18.

Lessee's Obligation to Quit Premises. Lessee shall, upon the expiration or

termination of this Lease, peaceably quit and deliver to Lessor possession of the
Leased Premises in the same condition as of the date of commencement, normal wear
and tear and damage caused by fire or natural disaster excepted, and shall promptly
clean up and remove all personal property and non-fixture items on the Leased
Premises. If Lessee fails to vacate the Premises at the end of the term, Lessee shall
become a tenant from month-to-month at the monthly rent payable for the last month of
the expiring term.
19.

Fixtures.

All fixtures, equipment, improvements, and appurtenances

permanently vacated to or built into the Leased Premises, whether or not by or at the
expense of Lessee, and any personal property of the Lessor or installed by Lessor in
the Leased Premises shall be and remain a part of the Leased Premises and shall be
deemed property of the Lessor and shall not be removed by Lessee.
All movable partitions, other business and trade fixtures, furnishings, furniture,
machinery and equipment, communications equipment, and other personal property
located in the Leased Premises and acquired by or for the account of Lessee without
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expenses to Lessor may be removed by Lessee at any time during the term hereof,
provided that Lessee shall repair any damage to the Leased Premises resulting from
such removal to the reasonable satisfaction of Lessor.
20.

Peaceful Enjoyment. Lessor covenants and agrees that if and so long as

Lessee shall pay the rent called for under this Lease as the same shall become due and
shall keep all the covenants and agreements required by it to be kept during the Lease
and shall perform all its other obligations hereunder. Lessee shall have the peaceful and
quiet occupation and enjoyment of the Leased Premises.
21.

Notices.

Notices given under the terms of this Lease shall be deemed

properly served if such notice is mailed by Certified United States Mail, Return Receipt
Requested; if to Lessor addressed to City Manager, City of Roanoke, Room 364,
Municipal Building, 215 Church Avenue, S. W., Roanoke, Virginia 24011; and if to
Lessee addressed to The Orvis Company, Inc., 178 Conservation Way, Sunderland,
Vermont 05250. Notice mailed in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be
deemed to have been given as of the date of receipt or the third business day following
the date of such mailing, whichever date is earlier.
22.

Covenants and Conditions.

Each provision of this Lease shall be deemed

to be both a covenant and a condition running with the land unless otherwise provided.
23.

Conveyances.

If Lessor sells, conveys or passes title to the Leased

Premises, the Lessee shall be bound by the terms and conditions herein to the new
owner of the Leased Premises and the new owner shall take title subject to this
leasehold interest.
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24.

Severability. If any clause or provision of this Lease is or becomes illegal

or unenforceable because of present or future laws or rules or regulations of any
governmental body or entity, effective during the term of this Lease, the intention of the
parties hereto is that the remaining parts of this Lease shall not be affected thereby
unless such clause or provision is, in the reasonable determination of both Lessee and
Lessor, essential and material to their respective rights, in which event either party shall
have the right to terminate this Lease upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the other
party.
25.

Completeness of Agreement.

This document, together with Exhibit "A"

constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any prior
understanding or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within
subject matter, including the license agreement between the parties governing Lessee
use of the Leased Premises for the month of January 2016.

No changes or

modifications of any of the covenants, terms or conditions hereof shall be valid unless in
writing and signed by authorized officers of the parties hereto.
26.

Successors and Assigns.

This Lease shall be binding upon the parties

and their successors and assigns.
27.

Non discrimination. During the performance of this contract, the Lessee

agrees as follows:
Lessee will not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or national origin, except where
religion, sex, or national origin is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably
necessary to the normal operation of the contractor.

Lessee agrees to post in
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conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices
setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

Lessee, in all solicitations

or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Lessee, will state such
Lessee is an equal employment opportunity employer.
Notices. advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law,
rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the
requirements of this section.
Lessee will include the provisions of this Paragraph 27 in every subcontract or
purchase order for construction at the Leased Premises of over ten thousand dollars
($1 0,000.00), so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.
Any inadvertent failure by the Lessee to comply with the terms of this Paragraph shall
not be grounds for terminating this Lease.
28.

Governing Law.

This Lease shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia without regard to its choice
of law principles. Venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction in the City of
Roanoke, Virginia. Lessee acknowledges that it and the City have both participated in
the drafting of this agreement, and agrees that if there is any ambiguity, such ambiguity
will not be construed against either of the parties.
29.

No Broker. The parties covenant that this Lease was directly negotiated

between them and no broker was involved in bringing about this Agreement. No claim
of a broker's fee shall be made against either party.
30.

Memorandum of Lease- Recording. The parties agree that in the event

either party hereto shall desire to file this Lease of record, the parties hereto shall
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forthwith cause to be prepared, and shall thereafter execute, a memorandum of this
Lease in the form prescribed by statute, which memorandum, and not this Lease, shall
then be so filed for record.
31.

Subordination. This Lease and rights of the Lessee hereunder are and

shall be subject to the lien of any and all mortgages which may now or hereafter affect
the Leased Premises or the Garage, provided that such mortgagee agrees not to
disturb the tenancy of Lessee under this Lease so long as Lessee is not in default
hereunder.
32.

Waiver of Subrogation. Each of the parties to this Lease hereby waives all

causes of action and rights of recovery against the other party, and their respective
heirs, administrators, successors, officers, employees, agents and assigns for any loss
or damage occurring to the Leased Premises, or the improvements, fixtures,
merchandise and personal property of every kind located in and about the Leased
Premises resulting from any perils covered by insurance, or would have been covered
by insurance had the parties obtained the insurance required by this lease, regardless
of cause or origin, including the negligence of either party, their respective heirs,
administrators, successors, officers, employees, agents and assigns to the extent of
any recovery under a policy or policies of insurance.

To the extent necessary to effect

the foregoing waiver of subrogation, each of the parties agree to obtain from their
respective insurance carriers endorsements to such policies of insurance waiving the
right of subrogation of the insurance carrier.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures the day
and year first above written.
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CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA
ATTEST:

Stephanie M. Moon, City Clerk

By __~-------------------
Robert S. Cowell, City Manager

ATTEST:

THE ORVIS COMPANY, INC.

By ________________________
(title)
Printed Name:
Title:

-----------------

-----------------------

Approved as to Form:

Approved as to Execution:

Assistant City Attorney

Assistant City Attorney
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

To:

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

Meeting:

January 4, 2021

Subject:

Request a Public Hearing for the Vacation of an Existing 15' P.U.E.
Associated with Vacated Alleys on Tax Map Nos. 4012008 and
4012009 and a Second 1 5' P.U.E Associated with Tax Map Nos.
4012013 and 4012016

Background:
Freedom First Federal Credit Union (Freedom First) purchased several parcels along 3'd
Street, SE, including the parcels cited in this request and will utilize the parcels for
their headquarters. There currently exist two 1 5' Public Utility Easements ("P.U.E.s")
that need to be vacated without any further encumbrances. The location of one of the
easements extends between Tax Map No. 401 2008 and 4012009 and used to be an
alley which when vacated was retained as a P.U.E. The location of the second P.U.E.
exists between Tax Map No. 4012013 and 4012016 currently parking lots for the
former owner which also used to be an alley. Vacating these two P.U.E.'s alleviates any
further encumbrances.

Recommended Action:
Authorize the scheduling and advertising of a public hearing for the vacation of the
two existing 1 5' P.U.E. to Freedom First for January 1 9, 2021, at 7:00 pm, or such
later date and time as the City Manager may determine.

Robert S. Cowell, Jr.
City Manager
Distribution:

Council Appointed Officers
Sherman M. Stovall, Deputy City Manager
Amelia C. Merchant, Director of Finance
Mark Jamison, P.E., Director of Public Works
Luke Pugh, P.E., City Engineer
Cassandra L. Turner, Economic Development Specialist
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CITY OF ROANOKE
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
464 MUJ\JICIPAL BtJILDINCJ
2 I 5 CHURCH AVEt\UE, SW
Rl !At\l !KE, VIRliil\'IA 240 ll-15l)1

Timothy R. Spencer

City Attorney

TELEPHl!NE 540-81"3-24) I
fAX 540-81"3-122 I
EMAIL: rityatry(cllruanoke\·~l.gu\·

David L. Collins
Heather P. Ferguson
Laura l\1. Carini
Douglas P. Barber, Jr.

Assistant City Attorneys

January 4, 2021
The Honorable Shennan P. Lea, Sr., Mayor
and Members of City Council
Roanoke, Virginia
Rc:

Request a Public Hearing for public comment regarding adding a new
Section 24-2.1 Prohibition of Firearms on City Property

Mayor Lea and Members ofCouncil:
Effective July I, 2020, Section 15.2-915 of the Code of Virginia was amended to allow localities to adopt
an ordinance prohibiting firearms on City property. The law docs not require a public hearing prior to
adoption of an ordinance that would prohibit firearms on City property. However, in an cft(xt to promote
transparency and to allow residents of the City to patiicipatc in their government, City Council has
indicated that it would like to hold a public hearing prior to consideration of an ordinance prohibiting
firearms on cctiain City property.
Therefore, I ask that Council formally authorize the City Clerk to schedule and advertise a public hearing to
he held Tuesday, January 19, 2021, to receive citizens input regarding the consideration by City Council of
a new Section 24-2.1 Prohibition of Firearms on City Property. This new code section would prohibit the
possession, carrying or transportation of firearms in certain municipal facilities.

Sincerely,

~/
_________./
~
Tit~1 . Spencer
/

/

( ·~ Attorney

l.S( 'il

c:

RobertS. Cowell, Jr.. City Manager
Sherman M. Stovall, Deputy City Manager
Amelia Merchant. Director of Finance
Troy D. !Iarmon, ( 'ity Auditor
Cecelia F. McCoy. City Clerk

C-6

NOTICE:
Due to the large size of
item C-5, it was posted as
a separate document.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

To:

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

Meeting:

January 4, 2021

Subject:

FY20 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act Provider Relief Fund

Background:
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) created a
Provider Relief Fund (PRF) for allocations to eligible providers who bill for
Medicare fee-for-service.
The City of Roanoke received an allocation of
$1 99,646 in PRF funds. These funds were awarded as a revenue supplement for
EMS calls. The funds will be used to cover the increased cost associated with
EMS delivery to include staffing, medical supplies, and equipment.

Recommended Action:
Accept the CARES Act - Provider Relief Fund allocation described above, and
authorize the City to Manager to execute the allocated funding, and all related
documents to be approved as to form by the City Attorney.
Adopt the accompanying budget ordinance to establish a revenue estimate in
the amount of $199,646, and to appropriate funding in the same amount into
an account to be established by the Director of Finance in the Grant Fund.

Robert S. Cowell, Jr.
City Manager

Distribution: Honorable Sherman A. Holland, Commissioner of the Revenue
Honorable Evelyn W. Powers, Treasurer
Sherman M. Stovall, Deputy City Manager
W. Brent Robertson, Assistant City Manager for Community Development
Amelia C. Merchant, Director of Finance

! .
·~
!

1.Q.l.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

A RESOLUTION authorizing the acceptance of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES) funding in the amount of $199,646.00 by the City of Roanoke from the
United States Department ofHealth and Human Services as part of the CARES Act Provider Relief
Fund, which provides reimbursement of fees to eligible providers who bill for Medicare fee-forservice in connection with the COVID-19 Coronavirus Pandemic, and authorizing the acceptance,
execution, and filing of appropriate documents to obtain such funds.
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Roanoke as follows:
1.

The City of Roanoke hereby accepts the CARES funding in the amount of

$199,646.00 from the United States Department of Health and Human Services, with no local match
required from the City, as part of the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund which provides
reimbursement of fees to eligible providers who bill for Medicare fee-for-service in connection with
the COVID-19 Coronavirus Pandemic, as more particularly described in the City Council Agenda
Report dated January 4, 2021.
2.

The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept, execute, and file on behalf of the

City of Roanoke any and all documents required to obtain such funding. All such documents are to
be approved as to form by the City Attorney.
3.

The City Manager is further directed to furnish such additional information as may be

required in connection with the acceptance of the foregoing funding.
ATTEST:

City Clerk.
R-accept FY20 CARES funding (7.6.20)

\.o.\.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

AN ORDINANCE to appropriate funding from the United States Treasury for the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act)- Provider Relief Fund,
amending and reordaining certain sections of the 2020-2021 Grant Fund Appropriations,
and dispensing with the second reading by title of this ordinance.
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Roanoke that the following
sections of the 2020-2021 Grant Fund Appropriations be, and the same are hereby,
amended and reordained to read and provide as follows:
Appropriations
Coronavirus Expenses
Revenues
CARES Act FY21 -EMS Provider Relief

35-250-5239-3081
35-250-5239-5239

$

199,646
199,646

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of the City Charter. the second reading of
this ordinance by title is hereby dispensed with.

ATTEST:

City Clerk.

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

To:

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

Meeting:

January 4, 2021

Subject:

Virginia Department of Emergency Management Hazardous
Materials Funds Acceptance for Roanoke Fire-EMS Department

Background:
Roanoke Fire-EMS serves as the Regional Level Ill Hazardous Materials Response
Team. The Roanoke Fire-EMS Department receives funds from the Virginia
Department of Emergency Management (VDEM) to assist the Hazardous
Materials Response Team with the purchase of equipment and training. This
funding is called "Pass-Thru Funds."
Considerations:
City Council approval is needed to formally accept $1 5,000 for the Hazardous
Materials Response Team.
Recommended Action:
Adopt the accompanying resolution accepting the funds from VDEM as
described above and authorize the City Manager to execute any required
agreements or documents, such to be approved as to form by the City Attorney.
Adopt the accompanying budget ordinance to establish a revenue estimate in
the Grant Fund for State grant funds of $1 5,000 and appropriate funds in the
same amount in an account to be established by the Director of Finance.

RobertS. Cowell, Jr.
City Manager
Distribution: Council Appointed Officers
Sherman M. Stovall, Deputy City Manager
Amelia Merchant, Director of Finance

IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA,

A RESOLUTION authorizing the City Manager to accept, on behalf of the City of
Roanoke, "pass-through" funding from the Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of
Emergency Management to support Roanoke Fire-EMS in its service as the region's Level III
Hazardous Materials Response Team.
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Roanoke that the City Manager is
hereby authorized, on behalf of the City, to accept, execute, and file any and all documents
required to obtain the $15,000.00 in "pass-through" funding from the Commonwealth of
Virginia, Department of Emergency Management, to support Roanoke Fire-EMS in its service as
the region's Level III Hazardous Materials Response Team, as is more particularly set forth in
the City Council Agenda Report dated January 4, 2021.

ATTEST:

City Clerk.

1 (/. ~.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

AN ORDINANCE appropriating funding from the United States Department of
Transportation through the Commonwealth of Virginia Department of Emergency
Management (VDEM) for hazardous materials emergency responses and training and
development, amending and reordaining certain sections of the 2019-2020 Grant Fund
Appropriations, and dispensing with the second reading by title of this ordinance.
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Roanoke that the following
sections of the 2019-2020 Grant Fund Appropriations be, and the same are hereby,
amended and reordained to read and provide as follows:

Appropriations
Expendable Equipment (<$5,000)
Training and Development

35-520-3247-2035
35-520-324 7-2044

$ 10,000
5,000

Revenues
Haz-Mat Response Grant FY21

35-520-324 7-324 7

15,000

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of the City Charter, the second reading
of this ordinance by title is hereby dispensed with.

ATTEST:

City Clerk.

7. (}. 6.
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
To:

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

Meeting:

january 4, 2021

Subject:

Request Amendment No. 2 For Sale of a Portion of City-Owned
Property Located at 23 Centre Avenue, N.W.

Background:
The Roanoke Higher Education Authority (Buyer) had requested that the City of
Roanoke convey an approximately 0.2684 acres, more or less of a property
(Property) located at 23 Centre Avenue, N.W., (Official Tax Map No. 2013016) to
the Buyer for the development of a landscaped pedestrian plaza/courtyard and
related improvements on the Property for use by the Buyer (Project). Park Roanoke
currently uses the Property as a paid short-term public parking lot.
The City and RHEA entered into the Contract for Purchase and Sale of Real Property
dated january 22, 2020 (the "Contract") under which Contract, the City agrees to
sell, and RHEA agrees to purchase, the Property, all as in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Contract.
The City and RHEA entered into Amendment No. 1 dated September 14, 2020, to
extend the Approval Period and Closing Date.
Due to additional time to
proceed to Closing required by RHEA, the parties desire to extend the Closing Date
to March 22, 2021.
Recommended Action:
Adopt the attached ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute an
Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement between the City of Roanoke and the Roanoke
Higher Education Authority (Buyer), substantially similar to the Amendment No. 2
attached to this Report, with an extended closing period to March 2 2, 2021, and
make such other amendments to the Agreement that are set forth in the proposed
Amendment No. 2. All documents are subject to approval as to form by the City
Attorney.

---~-----------

RobertS. Cowell, Jr.
City Manager

Distribution:

Council Appointed Officers
W. Brent Robertson, Assistant City Manager for Community Development
Robert Ledger, Director, Economic Development
Cassandra L. Turner, Economic Development Specialist

AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO
CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL PROPERTY
DATED JANUARY 22,2020
BETWEEN
CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA
AND
ROANOKE HIGHER EDUCATION AUTHORITY

This Amendment No. 2 to the Contract for the Purchase and Sale of Real Property dated
January 22, 2020, between the City of Roanoke Virginia, a Virginia municipal corporation (the
"City"), and Roanoke Higher Education Authority, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth
of Virginia ("RHEA") ("Amendment No. I") is dated this _ _ day of January, 2021.
RECITALS
A.
The City and RHEA entered into the Contract For Purchase and Sale of Real
Property dated January 22, 2020 (the "Contract") under which Contract, the City agrees to sell,
and RHEA agrees to purchase, the Property, all as in accordance with the tenns and conditions of
the Contract.
B.
The City and RHEA entered into Amendment No. 1 dated September 14, 2020, to
extend the Approval Period and Closing Date.
C.
Due to additional time to proceed to Closing required by RHEA, the parties desire
to extend the Closing Date to March 22, 2021.
Based on the foregoing, for good and valuable consideration and the representations set
forth in the Recitals which are a material part of this Amendment No. 2 and are incorporated herein,
the parties agree as follows:
1.
Section ll.C of the Contract is amended by deleting the first sentence in its entirety
and inserting the following sentence in its place:
Buyer and Seller shall consummate and complete the closing of this transaction on
or before March 22, 2021, with the specific Closing date being designated by Buyer
in writing to Seller at least ten ( 10) business days in advance thereof (the "Closing
Date").
2.
Except as amended herein, the Contract remains in full force and effect in
accordance with its terms. The parties acknowledge and agree that the Contract, as amended by
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Amendment No. 1 and this Amendment No.2, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
with respect to the purchase and sale of the Property.
3.
Capitalized terms not defined in this Amendment No. 2 shall have the meaning
ascribed to such terms as set forth in the Contract.
Dated as of the day and date first above written.

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGES
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No.2 by their authorized
representatives as of the date of this Amendment No.2.

WITNESS:

CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

Print name and title

By: ---------------------------------RobertS. Cowell, Jr.
City Manager

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
CITY OF ROANOKE
The foregoing Amendment No. 1 was acknowledged before me this _ _ day of January, 2021,
by Robert S. Cowell, Jr., the duly authorized City Manager of the City of Roanoke, Virginia, a
Virginia Municipal Corporation, on behalf of the City of Roanoke, Virginia.
My Commission expires:
Notary Public
SEAL

Approved as to form:

Approved as to execution:
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WITNESS/ ATTEST:

ROANOKE HIGHER EDUCATION
AUTHORITY

By: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
Name:
------------Title: ---------------------COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
CITY OF ROANOKE, to-wit:
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ _ day of January, 2021, by
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , the
of Roanoke Higher Education Authority, a
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, for and on behalf of such entity.
My commission expires:

Notary Public
SEAL
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1a.3.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

AN ORDINANCE authorizing the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to the
Contract for Purchase and Sale of Real Property dated January 22, 2020 (the "Contract")
between the City of Roanoke, Virginia (the "City"), and Roanoke Higher Education Authority
("RHEA"); authorizing the City Manager to execute all documents necessary to perform,
effectuate, administer, and enforce the proposed Amendment No.2 and Contract; and dispensing
with the second reading of this Ordinance by title.
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Roanoke adopted Ordinance No. 41657-012120,
adopted on January 21, 2020, in which Council approved the terms of the Contract between the
City and RHEA;
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Roanoke adopted Ordinance No. 41856-090820
approving Amendment No. 1 to the Contract to extend the Approval Period to December 22,
2020, to complete the Parties due diligence review of the Property, and extend the Closing Date
to January 29, 2021; and
WHEREAS, RHEA has requested an extension of time for the Closing Date to March 22,
2021.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Roanoke as follows:
1.

City Council hereby approves the terms of Amendment No. 2 to the Contract as

set forth in the City Council Agenda Report dated January 4, 2021, which Amendment No. 2
amends the Contract approved by City Council by Ordinance No. 41657-012120, adopted on
January 21,2020.

1

2.

The City Manager is hereby authorized on behalf of the City to execute

Amendment No. 2 to the Contract, to amend certain terms of the Contract to extend the Closing
Date to March 22, 2021, as set forth in the aforementioned City Council Agenda Report.
Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement is to be substantially similar to the Amendment No. 2
attached to the Agenda Report.
3.

The City Manager is further authorized on behalf of the City to negotiate and

execute such further documents and take such further actions related to this matter and as may be
necessary to implement, administer, and enforce the conditions and obligations pursuant to the
Contract and Amendment No.2.
4.

The form of the documents referred to above and in the Agenda Report are to be

approved by the City Attorney.
5.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 ofthe City Charter, the second reading of

this Ordinance by title is hereby dispensed with.
ATTEST:

City Clerk.
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tO. a.
IN THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA

AN ORDINANCE repealing Ordinance No. 41946-122120, adopted December21,
2020; adopting a new Ordinance restating the content with the change of the date which
employees were in the employ of the City of Roanoke; deletion of the Deputy City Manager
and the Assistant City Manager as persons who were "not" to receive payment; and
dispensing with the second reading of this ordinance by title.
WHEREAS, it was the intent of the City Manager that the Deputy City Manager
and the Assistant City Manager be included in the employees who were to receive a onetime payment in appreciation in the amount of $1,000, in Ordinance No. 41946-122120,
they were listed as "not" receiving any payment, and
WHEREAS, in Ordinance No. 41946-122120, the date of employment with the
City was listed as October 1, 2020, and the correct date should have been December 14,
2020.
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Roanoke that:
1.

Ordinance No. 41946-122120, adopted December 21, 2020, for the reasons

stated herein, is hereby REPEALED.
2.

All full-time employees who worked for the City as of December 14, 2020,

including all department directors, the City's Constitutional officers and their employees,
Court Clerks and personnel, as well as Council-appointed officers, shall receive a payment
in appreciation oftheir service during the COVID-19 pandemic in the amount of$1,000
each on the City's January 6, 2021 pay date, such payment to be subject to all applicable
tax withholdings.
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3.

All part-time employees who worked for the City as ofDecember 14,2020,

including all employees of the City's Constitutional officers, shall receive a payment in
appreciation of their service during the COVID-19 pandemic in the amount of $500 each
on the City's January 6, 2021 pay date, such payment to be subject to all applicable tax
withholdings.
4.
pr~rated

Employees who work under a prorated work agreement will receive a

payment.

5.

City Council, the City Manager, members of any Boards or Commissions,

poll workers, Berglund Center event staff, temporary staffing agency employees, and any
separated or furloughed employees at the time this payment is made, shall not receive any
payment authorized by this Ordinance.
6.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of the City Charter, the second

reading of this ordinance by title is hereby dispensed with.
ATTEST:

City Clerk.
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BESTPITCH
41961-010421

ROANOKE CITY COUNCIL
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
JANUARY 4, 2021
2:00 P.M.
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER
215 CHURCH AVENUE, S. W.
AGENDA
The City of Roanoke is a safe, caring and economically vibrant community in
which to live, learn, work, play and prosper
A vibrant urban center with strong neighborhoods set amongst the spectacular
beauty of Virginia’s Blue Ridge

1.

Call to Order.

2.

Roll Call. All Present. (Council Member Bestpitch participated by electronic
means).

NOTICE
This morning’s meeting will be televised live and replayed on RVTV Channel 3 following
the 2:00 p.m. session on Thursday, January 7 at 7:00 p.m., and Saturday, January 9 at
4:00 p.m.; and video streamed through Facebook Live at facebook.com/RoanokeVa.
Council meetings are offered with closed captioning for the hearing impaired.
3.

Statement of Purpose. Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr.

4.

A report from the City Clerk advising of the qualification of the Honorable
Sherman P. Lea, Sr., as Mayor, and the Honorable Patricia White-Boyd,
Stephanie Moon Reynolds and Robert L. Jeffrey, Jr., as Members of the
Roanoke City Council for terms of four years, each, commencing January 1,
2021, and ending December 31, 2024.
Received and filed.
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5.

A Resolution recognizing the Honorable Sherman P. Lea, Sr., to be Mayor of the
City of Roanoke.
Adopted Resolution No. 41961-010421. (7-0)

6.

A Resolution recognizing the Honorable Patricia White-Boyd as a member of the
City Council and Vice-Mayor of the City of Roanoke.
Adopted Resolution No. 41962-010421. (7-0)

7.

A Resolution recognizing the services of the Honorable Joseph L. Cobb as the
Vice-Mayor of the City of Roanoke.
Adopted Resolution No. 41963-010421. (7-0)

8.

A communication from Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr., recommending certain
committee assignments for the Members of City Council.
Concurred in recommendation.

9.

A Resolution establishing a meeting schedule for City Council commencing
January 1, 2021, and terminating December 31, 2021.
Adopted Resolution No. 41964-010421. (7-0)

10.

Presentation of 2020 Investiture Ceremonies Compilation Video.
Received and filed.

11.

Adjournment - 2:32 p.m.
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ROANOKE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION
JANUARY 4, 2021
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER
215 CHURCH AVENUE, S. W.
AGENDA
The City of Roanoke is a safe, caring and economically vibrant community in
which to live, learn, work, play and prosper
A vibrant urban center with strong neighborhoods set amongst the spectacular
beauty of Virginia’s Blue Ridge

1. Call to Order--Roll Call.

All Present.
Bestpitch participated by electronic means).

(Council Member

The Invocation was delivered by Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr.
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America was
led by Mayor Lea.
Welcome. Mayor Lea.

NOTICE:
This afternoon's Council meeting will be televised live and replayed on RVTV
Channel 3 on Thursday, January 7 at 7:00 p.m., and Saturday, January 9 at
4:00 p.m.;
and
video
streamed
through
Facebook
Live
at
facebook.com/RoanokeVa. Council meetings are offered with closed captioning
for the hearing impaired.
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ANNOUNCEMENTS:
The Council of the City of Roanoke is seeking applications for the following
current vacancies and/or upcoming expirations of terms of office:
Fair Housing Board – one vacancy
Board of Zoning Appeals – one vacancy
Towing Advisory Board – one vacancy (Citizen at-large)
Access the City’s homepage to complete an online application for the
abovementioned vacancies.
Expiration of the three-year terms of office of Laura Day Rottenborn,
Mark K. Cathey and Richard M. Willis, Jr. (not eligible for reappointment),
as Trustees of the Roanoke City School Board ending June 30, 2021.
Inasmuch as Mr. Willis will have served three consecutive terms of office,
he is ineligible for reappointment. Information pertaining to the School
Board duties and copies of application for appointment are available on the
City's website www.roanokeva.gov and in the City Clerk's Office. Deadline
for receipt of applications is Wednesday, March 10, 2021, at 5:00 p.m., in
the City Clerk’s Office. For questions and/or additional information, contact
the City Clerk's Office at (540) 853 - 2541, or by email at
clerk@roanokva.gov.

2. PRESENTATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Recognition of City employees with 30, 35 and 40 years of service.
Mayor Lea recognized the service of employees with 30 - 40 years of
service with the City of Roanoke.

3. HEARING OF CITIZENS UPON PUBLIC MATTERS:
City Council sets this time as a priority for citizens to be heard. If deemed
appropriate, matters will be referred to the City Manager for response,
recommendation or report to the Council. None.
Due to the recent increase and severity in COVID-19 cases in the City of
Roanoke, out of an abundance of caution, the Roanoke City Council has
determined that temporary changes are necessary. Roanoke City Council
Members will continue to meet in person in City Council Chamber,
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observing all recommended safety protocols while members of the
community wishing to address the City Council during Hearing of Citizens
Upon Public Matters are required to participate virtually or via email by
contacting the City Clerk’s Office at clerk@roanokeva.gov and (540) 8532541, by 12:00 p.m., on January 4. The Council Chamber will not be
accessible to the general public during the meeting. The meeting will
continue to be broadcast via RVTV-3 and on the City's Facebook account.

4.

CONSENT AGENDA:
(APPROVED 7-0)
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the
Members of City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of the items. If discussion is desired, the item will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

C-1

A communication from Mayor Sherman P. Lea, Sr., requesting that
Council convene in a Closed Meeting to discuss vacancies on certain authorities,
boards, commissions and committees appointed by Council, pursuant to Section
2.2-3711 (A)(1), Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. A list of current vacancies
is included with the agenda for this meeting.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Concurred in the request.

C-2

A communication from the City Manager requesting that Council schedule
a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, or such later date and time as the
City Manager shall determine, in his discretion, for renewal of lease of space to
the Orvis Company, Inc.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Concurred in the request.

C-3

A communication from the City Manager requesting that Council schedule
a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, or such later date and time as the
City Manager shall determine, in his discretion, to consider the vacation of the
two existing 15 foot public utility easements to Freedom First Credit Union.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Concurred in the request.
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C-4

A communication from the City Attorney requesting that Council schedule
a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January 19, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, or such later date and time as the
City Manager shall determine, in his discretion, to receive citizen comment with
regard to restrictions on firearms in municipal facilities.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Concurred in the request.

C-5

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Western Virginia
Water Authority for Fiscal Year 2020.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Received and filed.

C-6

Reports of qualification of Rosheta Chase as a member of the Roanoke
Neighborhood Advocates to fill the unexpired term of office of Katelynn Lewis
ending September 30, 2021; and Pamela Smith as a member (Citizen-atLarge/Medical) of the Youth Services Citizen Board for a term of office ending
June 30, 2023.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Received and filed.

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE.
6. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: NONE.
7. REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND COMMENTS OF THE
CITY MANAGER:
a.

CITY MANAGER:
BRIEFINGS:
•

Budget/Financial Planning FY 22/
General Real Estate Reassessment
Received and filed.

-

30 minutes

ITEMS RECOMMENDED FOR ACTION:
1.

Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2020 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act — Provider Relief Funds allocated for
eligible providers who bill for Medicare fee-for-service.
Adopted Resolution No. 41965-010421 and Budget Ordinance
No. 41966-010421. (7-0)
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2.

Acceptance of "pass through" funds from the Virginia Department
of Emergency Management to reimburse the Hazardous Materials
Response Team.
Adopted Resolution No. 41967-010421 and Budget Ordinance
No. 41968-010421. (7-0)

3.

Execution of Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Purchase and
Sale of Real Property located at 23 Centre Avenue, N. W.
Adopted Ordinance No. 41969-010421. (7-0)

COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER.
The City Manager offered the following comments:
COVID-19 Vaccine Information
• The Community Engagement Office has created a new page on the
City’s website, emphasizing the "Vaccinate Roanoke" message.
• The page includes information from local and state health partners
about the COVID-19 vaccine, including its development process,
vaccination efforts, answers to questions about the vaccine, and
more.
• Citizens
may
check
out
this
page
at
roanokeva.gov/VaccinateRoanoke.
2021 Solid Waste Collection Guide
• In early January, residents will receive the "2021 Solid Waste
Collection and Hazardous Weather Preparation Guide" in their
mailbox.
• This guide is a great resource for understanding what is collected
for solid waste, recycling, bulk, and brush.
• It also contains information about the City's snow removal process,
flood preparedness, and the 2021 recycling calendar.
• In addition to printed copies, the guide is posted on the City’s
website homepage – roanokeva.gov, under “Important Resources”
– and on the Solid Waste Management Division’s website –
roanokeva.gov/SolidWaste.
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Roanoke 100 Miler
• There is still time to sign up for this year’s Roanoke 100 Miler
challenge.
• The challenge runs from Jan. 19, 2021 to April 19, 2021.
Participants must commit to complete 100 miles in 100 days.
• This is one of Roanoke’s favorite fitness traditions, and a great way
to learn more about the parks, trails, and greenways in our area.
• Go to PLAYRoanoke.com/Roanoke-100-Miler to register for this
event.

8. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES: NONE.
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: NONE.
10. INTRODUCTION
AND
CONSIDERATION
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:
a.

OF

Repeal and replace Ordinance No. 41946-122120 adopted December 21,
2020, authorizing and approving a one-time payment in appreciation to
certain full-time and part-time City employees.
Adopted Ordinance No. 41970-010421. (7-0)

11. MOTIONS AND MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS:
a.

Inquiries and/or comments by the Mayor and Members of City Council.
Council Member Moon-Reynolds recommended that Council honor
the late Dr. Wendell H. Butler, a former Vice-Mayor and City Council
Member and first African American Council Member appointed to
serve as Chairman of Roanoke City School Board, who passed on
November 5, 2020, with a Memorial Resolution from the Mayor and
City Council at the January 19, 2021 Council Meeting.

b.

Vacancies on certain authorities, boards, commissions and committees
appointed by Council. See below.

At 3:50 p.m., Mayor Lea declared the Council Meeting in recess for a Closed
Meeting in the Council’s Conference Room, Room 450, fourth floor, Noel C. Taylor
Municipal Building.
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At 4:35 p.m., the Council Meeting reconvened with Mayor Lea presiding and all
Members of the Council in attendance, with Council Member Bestpitch
participating by electronic means.
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING. (7-0)
Appointed Betty Jean Wolfe to fill the unexpired term of office of Marcus
Huffman as a member of the Board of Zoning Appeals ending December 31,
2021.
Appointed Laura Carini to replace Kenneth Cronin as a Citizen member of
the City of Roanoke Finance Board for a term of office ending June 30,
2022.
Reappointed Cindy McFall as a member of the Local Office on Aging
Advisory Board for a one-year term of office, commencing March 1, 2021,
and ending February 28, 2022.
Reappointed John R. Clements as a City representative of the Roanoke
Regional Airport Commission for a four-year term of office, commencing
March 10, 2021 and ending March 9, 2025.

12. ADJOURNED – 4:38 P.M.
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